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Exhibit 6.
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Attachments

List of material information made public in Japan

from July 1, 2005 to September 30, 2005

Descriptions

Summary of First Quarter Consolidated and
Non-Consolidated Business Results (FY2005) dated
July 25, 2005 (English translation)

Data Book (First Quarter Report for the fiscal year
ending March. 2006) dated July 25, 2005 (English
translation contained)

Annual Report AIFUL Corporation 2005 dated August
4, 2005 (English version)

Supplement to the Shelf Registration Statement filed
on February 7, 2005, dated July 6, 2005 (brief
description in English)

The Report on Treasury Stock Purchase, dated July
13, 2005 (brief description in English)

Press Release dated July 6, 2005 with a title “AIFUL
Announce 48", 49" Unsecured Straight Bond Issues”
(English translation)

Press Release dated August 4, 2005 with a
title "AIFUL Announces US Dollar Denominated
Unsecured Notes Issues” (English translation)

Press Release dated September 12, 2005 with a
title "AIFUL Announces Personnel Changes and
Organizational Change” (English translation)

e (M
Information

Provided to
(i) TSE/OSE

Public

Shareholders
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) “DKALFB” means Director-General of Kanto Local Finance Bureau,



“DKILFB” means Director~General of Kinki Local Finance Bureau.
“TSE” means Tokyo Stock Exchange.
“OSE” means Osaka Securities Exchange.
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MEMBERSHIP

July 25, 2005

For the fiscal year ending March 2006

AIFUL Corporation

(Securities code: 8515, 1st Section, Tokyo and Osaka Stock Exchanges)

(URL: http://www.aiful.co.ip)

Representative: Yoshitaka Fukuda, President and Chief Executive Officer

Inquiries: Kenichi Kayama, General Manager, Public Relations Department
TEL (03) 3274-3560

I. Items Used to Compile Financial Data for the First Quarter

1. Company adopted simplified accounting methods (yes/no): Yes
Details:
Computations of business tax and some reserves are based on estimates taking factors such as past results into account.

2. Any differences between the accounting practices used here and those used in preparing consolidated accounts for the previous business
year (yes/no): Yes
Details:
Starting in the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company adopted the Opinion Concerning Establishment of the Accounting Standard for the
Impairment of Fixed Assets, issued by the Business Accounting Council on August 9, 2002, and Guidance for the Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets (Implementation Guidance for Accounting Standard No. 6), issued by the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan on October 31, 2003. The effect of this change was equivalent to a decrease in net income before tax of 743 million yen.

3. Changes in the scope of consolidation and change accounted for by the equity method (yes/no): No

II. Summary of Business Results for the First Quarter; FY2005 (April 1 — June 30, 2005)

1. Consolidated Business Performance
(In millions of yen - rounded down, except per share data

_Operating Revenue Operating Income . Ordinary Income | Net income for the quarter
Ist quarter, FY2005 134,675 11.3% 35,385 20.6% 36,018 21.9% 20,205 25.6%
1st quarter, FY2004 121,047 3.4% 29,339 12.7% 29,553 13.1% 16,088 12.8%
Reference: FY2004 518,416 9.5% 134,716 19.7% 135294  20.3% 75,723 21.1%

Net Income per Share Diluted Net Income per Share
for the Quarter (Yen) for the Quarter (Yen)

Ist quarter, FY2005 142.69 142.66

Ist quarter, FY2004 170.29 170.25

Reference: FY2004 800.36 800.30

Notes:

1. Percentage figures shown for operating revenue, operating income, ordinary income and net income show year-on-year change
2. AIFUL implemented a 1:1.5 stock split on May 23, 2005.

2. Qualitative Data Concerning Consolidated Business Performance
A. Summary of Results

Although the Japanese economy was characterized by a general tone of moderate recovery, including improvements in personal consumption
and the employment environment, during the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the recovery in exports and production was slow, and it appeared
that it would take a little more time to break out of the plateau of low growth. In this environment, bad debt expenses in the consumer finance
industry are on the decline, with the number of applications for personal bankruptcy as published by the Supreme Court registering year-on-
year declines for 17 months in a row. Nevertheless, there is increasingly stiff competition for share in the overall consumer credit market .
across industry boundaries as major consumer finance companies and mega-banks become involved in operational tie-ups, 1T companies
enter the finance industry, and credit card companies strengthen their cash advance operations.

Based on this business environment, the AIFUL Group is aiming to step beyond the limits of the niche consumer finance industry and
become a comprehensive retail finance company that targets the entire consumer credit market. The Company has continued to promote
diversification of products and sales channels to cater to a wider range of customer needs, while diversifying risks to ensure stable growth



Moreover, each company that belongs to the Group has been establishing a brand value based on the unified concept of “A Company for
Security and Creation.” At the same time, while working together to generate synergistic effects and strengthen the Group, they have also
been striving to develop efficient operations.

B. Operations
(1) AIFUL Corporation .

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, AIFUL’s loan business witnessed the company pursuing product diversification strategies chiefly in
unsecured loans as well as home equity loans and small business loans, in order to more comprehensively cater to customer needs.

A summéry by product is as below.
i) Unsecufed Loans

There were 135,000 new applications for unsecured loans during the first quarter of fiscal 2005, a decrease of 5.7% compared to the same
quarter last year, and new account acquisitions were 83,000, down 7.2% year-on-year. Among these, the proportion of new account
acquisitions via the Internet, including cellular phone and PC, rose steadily to 14.0%, up 10.6% year-on-year, as a result of aggressive use of
banner advertisements on websites.

As aresult, unsecured loans outstanding stood at 1,101,762 million yen, up 1.8% year-on-year at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003.
" ii) Home Equity Loans and Small Business Loans

ATFUL’s diversification strategy involves home equity loans and small business loans, and the Company has positioned these areas as key
products in maintaining long term growth potential.

As a result of proactive marketing to cater to a whole range of customer needs, the balance of loans outstanding for these products in the first
quarter of fiscal 2005 was 376,965 million yen, up 1.9% year-on-year.

A summary of business other than loan operations is as follows.
iii) Credit Guarantees

The guarantee business is a fee business in which AIFUL provides guarantees for loan products handled by financial institutions, and the
Company has been developing the business as a new source of earnings. In addition to unsecured personal loans, the Company has also been
active in guarantee operations for unsecured small business loans using the expertise it has built up, through product diversification strategies,
in the provision and screening of small business loans. The entire financial industry is now taking note of this credit guarantee market,
especially loans to small businesses, and AIFUL is becoming more active in it.

As a result of these efforts, at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005, AIFUL’s guarantee partners numbered 41 unsecured personal loan
companies and 36 small business loan companies, and the balance of guarantees stood at 47,588 million yen, marking steady growth of
54.1% compared with the first quarter last year.

iv) Credit Cards

With regard to AIFUL’s own AIFUL MasterCard credit card operation, card operations were transferred in April 2005 from the credit card
division of the Company and merged with LIFE with the aim of conducting a more efficient credit card strategy in the Group.

v)  Expansion of Channels

To expand customer acquisition channels, AIFUL began the full-scale roll out of the “Suguwaza” a simple auto loan contract machines; 44
machines have been installed, as of the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005. Moreover, in the rebuilding of its branch network, the Company
opened 40 branches and closed six branches, bringing the total number of branches to 1,606, with 545 staffed and 1,061 non-staffed facilities,
at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

AIFUL is stepping up the installation of Suguwaza loan application machines as a new customer acquisition channel and has revised the
number of machines to be installed by the end of the current consolidated fiscal year from the 50 in initial projections to 250.

In its expansion of cash deposit and withdrawal services, the Company actively entered partnerships with banks and convenience stores to
improve convenience for customers. As a result, customers had access to 77,894 CDs/ATMs, including AIFUL’s own ATMs and those of 91
banks and 14 companies,

For ATFUL, bad debt expenses were 23,574 million yen at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005, down 10.3% yéar-on-year, as a result of
factors such as the contraction in the number of personal bankruptcies and an improvement in the unemployment rate.

As a result, ATFUL’s loans outstanding at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005 stood at 1,478,728 million yen, an increase of 1.8% year-
on-year.



Apart from this, AIFUL has been working to open up its own nationwide ATMs to other companies in an efficient use of management
resources, and it had 14 ATM partner companies at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

(2) LIFE Co,, Ltd.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, LIFE further increased its focus on the credit card business at the same time as improving efficiency in its
other businesses, thus secking to strengthen its high earning structure.

In its credit card business, LIFE has promoted its existing co-branded cards as well as actively expanding into industries other than retail,
which has been its main target for co-branded cards in the past. In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, it has been seeking a steady expansion in
the number of cardholders based on a wide-ranging co-branded card strategy that includes the launch of TRX Card, a new social contribution
card issued in conjunction with a recycling group.

From the customer service perspective, LIFE has sought to broaden its services, including the addition of four times the number of birthday
bonus points to basic points in the month of customers’ birthdays, in order to make the points program more attractive.

Apart from this, LIFE achieved a big impact as its second round of mixed media commercials were placed on its website, in magazines and
so on in April with the aim of establishing its brand image as a credit card company. These results included a three-fold increase in the
number of hits on the company’s website compared to before the commercials.

Furthermore, LIFE has also been actively involved in social contribution initiatives through the promotion of sport, sponsoring the LifeCard
Ladies Golf Tournament 2005, which is recognized by The Ladies Professional Golfers’ Association of Japan.

As channels for delivering its cash advance services, the company has 130,000 CD/ATMs at 486 partner financial institutions and credit card
companies, as of the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

As a result, the total number of credit card holders at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005 rose 250,000 to 12,170,000.

In addition, on July 11, 2005 LIFE began handling the “Higashi Nippon Bank Cash Card — Next to You,” a Bank Alliance Card that
incorporates a credit card with a cash card issued in conjunction with a financial institution, based on its alliance with Higashi Nippon Bank.
In the future, LIFE will promote this business aggressively with the aim of expanding its involvement with other banks.

In its per-item credit business, LIFE is working to increase business volume and accumulate prime assets by strengthening and enhancing the
efficiency of its sales organization.

In its consumer finance business, LIFE opened three new unstaffed branches, bringing the number of LIFE Cash Plazas to 114 staffed
branches and 91 unstaffed branches. LIFE is continuing to expand its balance of loans by aggressively acquiring new customers and stepping
up per-item credit to existing members.

In its guarantee business, LIFE had guarantee partnerships with 123 banks, and it will continue its efforts to expand bank loan guarantee
products in the future. '

As a result of the foregoing, operating loans outstanding in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 totaled 751,553 million yen, up 6.5% year-on-year
(including 177,418 million yen in operating loans taken off the balance sheet by securitization.) This total consisted of credit card shopping
up 13.8% year-on-year to 93,368 million yen, per-item credit up 8.6% to 199,015 million yen, credit card cash advances up 8.2% to 374,275
million yen, credit guarantee installment receivables down 7.3% to 96,541 million yen, and other businesses down 4.9% to 8,788 million yen.

Meanwhile, the volume of business was up 24.3% year-on-year to 106,120 million yen for credit card shopping, down 9.1% to 33,950
million yen for per-item credit, up 7.4% to 7,719 million yen for credit guarantees, and up 9.3% to 86,573 million yen for credit card cash
advances.

(3) Other Group Companies
i)  Small Business Loans

Business results at Businext, a joint venture between AIFUL and Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd., have been steady with the
introduction of the corporate scoring system in April 2004, proactive marketing activities and the improvement in economic sentiment.

Moreover, following the Nagoya Branch ‘and the Sendai Branch last year, Businext’s Fukuoka Branch opened in April 2005, aiming to
consolidate a new marketing organization that can cater adequately to the financing needs of sole proprietors and small and medium-sized
businesses in the Kyushu area. Apart from this, Businext opened new branches based primarily on face-to-face sales visits in Niigata City -
and Utsunomiya City in May 2005, in an active expansion to meet even more financing needs.

As a result, at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 20035, loans outstanding at Businext stood at 52,521 million yen, up 64.1% year-on-year.

City’s Corporation has concentrated on acquiring good quality customers by turning its marketing expertise into manuals and making the
most of these manuals to empower its human resources. Due to the improvement in business sentiment at small and medium-sized
enterprises, the widening base of economic recovery, and the effect of the new branches opened since last fiscal year (the total number of
branches at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005 stood at 57), loans outstanding at City’s stood at 51,613 million yen at the end of the
first quarter of fiscal 2003, up 58.5% year-on-vear.



iiy Consumer Finance

Tryto Corporation is seeking to expand its business in an efficient manner while reducing bad debt expenses. As a result, loans outstandmg
stood at 59,993 million yen, up 7.8% year-on-year

The company began to offer home equity loans in October 2004, and it will be expanding the acquisition channels for home equity loans
within the Group in the future in efforts to meet a wide range of customer needs.

In addition, the company opened the Hakata Eki-Mae Branch in the Kyushu area in June 2005, and is aiming for further growth in its
business area.

Wide Corporation is seeking to actively expand its business in eastern Japan and has also recommenced TV commercials. As a result, loans
outstanding totaled 97,909 million ven (including 7,000 million yen in off-balance sheet receivables resulting from securitization) at the end
of the first quarter of fiscal 2005.

In addition, loans outstanding at TCM Co., Ltd., which became a consolidated subsidiary in fiscal 2004, was 9,138 million yen. TCM will
continue to pursue even greater business efficiency and synergistic effects as a member of the AIFUL Group in the future.

iii) Servicer

AsTry Loan Services Corporation, a joint venture with Aozora Bank, has concentrated diligently on expanding the claims handled in its
management and collection of a range of money claims.

iv) Venture Capital

New Frontier Partners Co., Ltd., a venture capital business, has been active mainly in investing in new ventures as well as secondary and
content investment, and its loans outstanding stood at 4,171 million yen at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2003.

As a result, AIFUL and it subsidiaries had 2,124,180 million yen in loans outstanding, up 10.7% year-on-year, 292,463 million yen in
installment receivables, up 10.1%, 144,131 million yen in credit guarantee installment receivables, up 6.8%, and 10,271 million yen in other
business, up 2.6%, at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005. The amounts above include 184,418 million yen in off-balance sheet loans
due to securitization (including 107,242 million yen in loans outstanding and 77,176 million yen in installment receivables.)

Operating revenue of the AIFUL Group for the first quarter of fiscal 2005 increased by 11.3%, to 134,675 million yen. AIFUL’s operating
revenue grew 1.4% year-on-year to 85,741 million yen, comprlsmg 63.7% of the Group’s revenue. LIFE recorded operating revenue of
32,385 million yen, an increase of 9.6% year-on-year, comprising 24.0% of the Group’s revenues.

Of consolidated operating revenue, 120,680 million yen, or 89.6%, was accounted for by operating interest on loans, 6,914 million yen or
5.1% by revenue from credit card shopping and per-item credit, 2,027 million yen or 1.5% by credit guarantee revenue and 5,053 million yen
or 3.8% by other revenue.

AIFUL’s operating interest on loans accounts for 69.0% of the Group’s consolidated operating interest on loans. This figure can be broken
down into 80.7% in unsecured loans, 16.7% in home equity loans, and 2.6% in small business loans.

Operating expenses for the AIFUL Group totaled 99,289 million yen, up 8.3% year-on-year. Of this amount, AIFUL’s non-consolidated
operating expenses accounted for $8.8%, or 58,431 million yen, of this total, while LIFE’s operating expenses accounted for27.4%, or 27,254
million yen.

Total Group operating expenses can be broken down into 39,758 million yen (or 40.0%) for bad debt expenses, 9,485 million yen (or 9.6%)
in financial expenses, 7,454 million yen (or 7.5%) in advertising expenses, 14,436 million yen (or 14.5%) in personnel expenses, and 6,438
million yen (or 6.5%) in commissions paid.

The 433 million yen in write-down of consolidation adjustment account accrued with the purchase of consolidated companies was recorded
as an operating expense.

As a result of the foregoing, consolidated operating income for the first quarter of fiscal 2005 rose 20.6% to 35,385 million yen, ordinary
income was up 21.9% to 36,018 million yen, and net income increased 25.6% to 20,205 million yen.

ATFUL’s non-consolidated operating income rose 7.8% to 27,310 million yen, ordinary income climbed 10.5% to 29,194 million yen, and net
income rose 17.7% to 17,145 million yen. ‘

3. Basic Stance with Regard to Corporate Governance and Current Status of Related Policies
A. Basic Stance with Regard to Corporate Governance

The AIFUL Group considers speed in decision-making, the establishment of management supervisory functions, and the reinforcement of
compliance and disclosure to be its basic policies for the enhancement of corporate governance. Its corporate governance, business execution,
management supervisory and internal controls, and risk management systems are as indicated in the diagram below.
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B. AIFUL’s Business Execution, Management Supervisory and Internal Controls, and Risk Management Systems

In a measure aimed at speedy management decision-making, the AIFUL and LIFE Boards of Directors meet weekly (Boards of Directors
meet monthly at other group companies) to fully discuss and examine management issues and business opportunities facing the companies,
as well as strategies to address them. Speedy management decisions follow these discussions.

In its efforts to enhance legal compliance, AIFUL has had an Inspection Department, an Internal Audit Department, and Legal Department, in
charge of preventative legal affairs, in place for some time. In addition to this, the Company established a Compliance Committee, which
includes lawyers and other external members and serves as a consultative body for the Board of Directors, in April 2002. At monthly
meetings, the Compliance Committee gathers risk information, implements preventative measures, and conducts employee education based
on the committee guidelines, working to reinforce compliance systems throughout the whole company.

In addition, ATFUL has established a new Compliance Office, an organization dedicated to conducting ongoing examination and assessment
of these issues on a company-wide basis to ensure that the compliance system continues to improve and that appropriate corporate ethics take
root group-wide. »

With these efforts, AIFUL is appropriately synchronizing information with other group companies and working to enhance the group’s
overall compliance system.



C. Current Status of Corporate Governance Strategies

(1) Management Control System and Other Corporate Governance Structures Relating to Management Decision Making, Business
Execution and Monitoring and Status of Efforts to Enhance Corporate Governance during the Past Year

i)  Details of Company Organizations and Establishment of Internal Control System
a.  Details of Company Organizations

In order to respond to the establishment of new legislation and legal amendments that profoundly affect AIFUL’s operations, such as the
Personal Information Protection Act, as well as to ensure further enhancement of its compliance system and the establishment of appropriate
corporate cthics, the Company has established a new Compliance Office in April 2005, as a specialist division to conduct ongoing
examination and assessment of these issues on a company-wide basis.

b.  Training and Establishment of Hotlines

Other steps taken here include the formulation and distribution to each and every Group employee of the “AIFUL Group Ethical Code,” as
well as the establishment of hotlines in the Personnel and Inspection Departments for discussion of breaches of the code. AIFUL has also
established a Customer Service Center within the Legal Department t¢ respond promptly to customer inquiries and complaints, with the aim
of increasing customer satisfaction and reinforcing the legal compliance system, which includes guidance and education for the sales and
marketing staff in cooperation with the Compliance Committee. In addition to the establishment of a new Compliance Hotline in June 2003,
the Company standardized its internal reporting system, establishing a structure that prevents breaches of the law and internal regulations
before they happen. ’

¢.  Ensuring Accuracy in Disclosure of Financial Information and Internal Control

The AIFUL Group’s system for ensuring the accuracy of financial information' consists of the prescribed checking procedures in the
Accounting Department and audits based on the Commercial Code and the Securities and Exchange Law. Apart from this, AIFUL has long
maintained an organizational structure based on the separation of the division in charge of financial accounting (Accounting Department) and
the division in charge of management accounting (Management Planning Department), which provides a system of checks and balances.

Moreover, the Company’s efforts to ensure accuracy include additional checks made in advance of the disclosure of financial reports by
related departments, including the Investor Relations Office, the Public Relations Department, the Legal Department, and the Management
Planning Department.

d.  Enhancing Disclosure and Internal Control

AJFUL believes that appropriate disclosure of business information will make external monitoring of management more effective. Based on
the principle of aiming for transparent management and effective corporate governance, AIFUL strives to provide full disclosure that is
timely and easy to understand. Its activities include maintaining an investor relations web site, disclosing information through press releases,
settlement data books and similar materials, as well as providing information and briefings for the domestic and foreign mass media,
investors and analysts. AIFUL also provides regular feedback to the president, Board of Directors’ meetings and departmental managers on
the opinions and desires of investors in its efforts to enhance the corporate governance system.

if)  Establishment Status of Risk Management System

With regard to its risk management system, AIFUL has established a system in which the Risk Management Committee within the
Management Planning Division primarily gathers information on latent and apparent risk factors within the Company, and conducts crisis
management in cooperation with related departments, including the Investor Relations Office, Public Relations Department and Legal
Department. Moreover, in response to the Personal Information Protection Law, which came into force on April 1, 2005, the Company
launched a project in April 2004 to prevent the leaking of information, carrying out a review of the proper handling of personal information
and company-wide security management measures to prevent the leakage of personal information before it happens in terms of the human,
organizational and technical aspects and establishing a system to prevent the disclosure of personal information.

Moreover, AIFUL has prepared an action plan for when problems relating to personal information or corporate information arise at the
Company or at Group companies, and has set up a new Information Management Contingency Plan, for which the Information Management
and Administration Office within the Management Planning Department is responsible, with the aim of addressing emergencies properly and
promptly, thus establishing a strong system for responding to emergencies.

iii) Internal Auditing and Auditing System and Status of Auditing
a.  Internal Auditing and Auditing System

AIFUL established the Inspection Department with the aim of monitoring the appropriateness and legality of business processes, including at
Group companies. It works on a day-to-day basis to detect and curb deviations by conducting regular inspections, primarily at the business
offices of AIFUL and its Group companies.

With regard to the management supervisory function, AIFUL employs an auditor system, which has four auditors, including three external
auditors. The auditors not only supervise management through attendance at the weekly Board of Directors meetings at AIFUL and LIFE, but
also attend the Compliance Committee and work in close cooperation with the Inspection Department, the internal audit department, to
firmly implement the auditing system. Moreover, the auditors of the Company and each group company work in.conjunction with the Group



b Auditing

AIFUL employs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Shimbashi & Co. as auditors based on the Commercial Code and for audits based on the
Securities and Exchange Law. There are no beneficial relationships between these audit corporations and the employees engaged in
conducting audits at ATFUL and AIFUL.

AIFUL concludes an audit agreement regarding auditing under the Commercial Code and auditing under the Securities and Exchange Law
with these audit corporations, and it pays the fees based on the contract.

(2) Existence of Personal, Financial, Business or Any Other Beneficial Relationship Between the Company, and the External Directors and

External Auditors

There is no business or other beneficial relationship between the Company and its external auditors.

4. Consolidated Financial Position

(In millions of yen - rounded down, except where noted

Shareholders’ Shareholders’ Equi Shareholders’ Equity per
Total Assets Equity Ratio (%) v Share (Yom P
1st quarter, FY2005 2,617,471 634,278 24.2 4,479.15
1st quarter, FY2004 2,451,691 561,821 22.9 5,933.27
Reference: FY2004 2,574,286 617,352 24.0 6,538.03

Note: AIFUL implemented a 1:1.5 stock split on May 23, 2005.

Consolidated Cash Flows

(In millions of ven - rounded down, except where noted)

Cash Flow from Cash Flow from Cash Flow from Cash and Cash Equivalents
Operating Activities | Investing Activities Financing Activities at the End of the Period
1st quarter, FY2005 (25,963) 3,371 25,564 111,928
Ist quarter, FY2004 (31,006) (7,708) 117,011 176,624
Reference: FY2004 (63,408) (11,211 80,318 108,965

5. Qualitative Information on Changes in Consolidated Financial Position

A. Assets

Loans totaled 2,016,938 million yen, an increase of 11.6% year-on-year. This was primarily due to steady increases in Group loans. Wide
Corporation’s loans amounted to 90,909 million yen, Businext’s loans totaled 52,521 million yen, and City’s loans were 51,613 million yen.

Installment receivables rose 21.3% year-on-year to 215,287 million yen, due to the steady progress made by the credit card shopping and per-
item credit businesses at LIFE Co., Ltd.

Credit guarantee installment receivables rose 6.8% to 144,131 million yen as a result of AIFUL and LIFE’s active promotion of their
guarantee businesses.

While allowance for bad debts is on the decline at each group company now that bad debts have peaked out, expansion in the scale of the
Group increased allowance for bad debts 9.6% year-on-year to 161,651 million yen. Consolidated loans and installment receivables do not
include 184,418 million yen in receivables (107,242 million yen in loans and receivables and 77,176 million yen in installment receivables)
taken off the balance sheet by securitization of receivables at LIFE and Wide Corporation.

The consolidated adjustment account was 10,573 million yen, down 23.7% year-on-year.

B. Liabilities

Total capital procured, including debt, commercial paper and bonds, rose 4.2% year-on-year to 1,701,994 million yen. This was due to an
increase in the demand for funds corresponding with the steady increase in operating receivables at Wide, Businext, and City’s.

C. Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated shareholders’ equity at the end of the conso]idéted fiscal year under review was 634,278 million yen, and the equity ratio stood
at 24.2%. AIFUL’s non-consolidated shareholders’ equity was 598,117 million yen, and the equity ratio stood at 29.5%.

D. CashFlows

Despite a decline due to growth in loans outstanding, cash and cash equivalents (“cash” below) at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2005
stood at 111,928 million yen, up 2,962 million yen compared with the end of fiscal 2004. This slight increase was a result of investing
activities that included the sale of commercial paper with repurchase agreements and financing activities that included the issuance of



(1) Cash flow from operating activities

With net income before taxes of 35,218 million yen, operating activities used net cash of 25,963 million yen, compared to 31,006 million yen
for the same quarter last year, due to an increase in loans and other operating receivables (including installment receivables) and to the
payment of corporate tax.

(2) Cash flow from investing activities

Despite the acquisition of fixed assets relating to branch facilities, investing activities generated net cash of 3,371 million yen compared with
7,708 million yen in cash used in the same period for the previous year, which was mainly due to the sale of commercial paper with
repurchase agreements.

(3) Cash flow from financing activities

Financing activities generated net cash of 25,564 million yen, compared with 117,011 million yen for the same period a year earlier, due to
direct and indirect procurement to meet the funding requirements accompanying cash used in operating activities.

IIL. Consolidated Results Forecasts for FY2005 (April 1, 2005 - March 31, 2006):
Qualitative Data Concerning Results Forecasts

Results in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 represent steady progress in line with the full-year forecasts previously announced on May 10, 2005.



(Supplementary Data)

I. Summary of Consolidated Balance Sheet for the First Quarter, FY2005
(In millions of yen, %)
End of current End of same quarter Reference:
quarter last year Change FY2004
Category (As of June 30, (As of June 30, (As of Mar.
' 2005) 2004) 31, 2005)
Amount Amount Amount % Amount
(Assets)
1. Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 112,513 176,725 (64,211) (36.3) 109,575
Loans 2,016,938 1,807,851 209,086 11.6 1,995,621
Installment receivables 215,287 177,496 37,791 213 192,401
Credit guarantee installment receivables 144,131 135,002 9,129 6.8 141,407
Deferred tax assets 28,510 25,894 2,616 10.1 30,809
Other 78,859 70,329 8,530 12.1 79,241
Allowance for bad debts (139,075) (127,463) (11,611) 9.1 (137,935)
Total current assets 2,457,165 2,265,836 191,329 8.4 2,411,119
II. Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 48,293 46,179 2,114 4.6 48,252
Intangible fixed assets 30,446 35,219 4,772) (13.6) 31,816
Consolidation adjustment account 10,573 13,855 (3,281) (23.7) 11,007
Other 19,873 21,363 (1,490) (7.0) 20,809
Investment and other fixed assets 80,907 103,868 (22,960) (22.1) 82,453
Claims in bankruptcy 30,400 26,296 4,103 15.6 28,535
Deferred tax assets 3,732 14,816 (11,084) (74.8) 4,288
Other 69,350 82,838 (13,487) (16.3) 71,177
Allowance for bad debts (22,576) (20,083) (2,492) 124 (21,547)
Total fixed assets 159,647 185,266 (25,619) (13.8) 162,522
III. Deferred assets 658 588 70 11.9 643
Total assets 2,617,471 2,451,691 165,779 6.8 2,574,286
(Liabilities)
I. Current liabilities
Credit guarantees payable 144,131 135,002 9,129 6.8 141,407
Short-term debts 100,225 99.692 532 0.5 71,695
Current portion of bonds 117,500 114,000 3,500 31 94,000
Current portion of long-term debts 456,758 414,601 42,157 10.2 436,661
Reserve for accrued bonuses 2,199 1,977 222 11.3 4,243
Gains on deferred installments 15,681 12,389 3,291 26.6 14,523
Other 114,958 94,001 20,957 22.3 96,335
Total current liabilities 951,454 871,663 79,791 9.2 858,865
1. Long-term liabilities
Bonds 357,390 371,000 (13,610) (3.7 384,890
Long-term debts 646,621 623,548 23,072 3.7 686,212
Allowance for retirement benefits for employees 698 2,284 (1,586) (69.4) 687
Allowance for retirement benefits for directors 1,424 1,199 224 18.8 1,419
Other 19,949 15,407 4,541 29.5 19,474
Total long-term liabilities 1,026,083 1,013,440 12,642 1.2 1,092,683
Total liabilities 1,977,537 1,885,104 92,433 49 1,951,548
(Minority interests)
Minority interests 5,655 4,765 889 18.7 5,384
(Shareholders’ equity)
I. Common stock 83,317 83,317 - - 83,317
1I. Capital surplus 104,123 104,143 (17 0.0) 104,125
I1I. Retained earnings 444 855 370,852 74,002 20.0 427.609
1V. Differences in evaluation of other marketable 5,057 5,083 (26) (0.5) 5,363
securities ‘
V. Treasury stock (3,077) (1,5753) (1,502) 954 (3,063)
Total shareholders’ equity 634,278 561,821 72,456 129 617,352
Total Liabilities, minority interests and 2,617,471 2,451,691 165,779 6.8 2,574,286
shareholders’ equity




II. Summary of Consolidated Income Statement for the First Quarter, FY2005

(In millions of yen, %)

Current quarter Same quarter last year Reference: FY2004
Category (Apr. 1 to June. 30, (Apr. 1 to June, 30, Change (Apr. 1, 2004 to
2005) 2004) Mar. 31, 2003)
Amount Amount Amount | % Amount

1. Operating revenue 134,675 121,047 13,628 | 11.3 518,416
Interest on loans to customers 120,680 108,930 11,749 10.8 466,429
Credit card revenue 2,338 2,078 260 12.5 9,090
Per-item credit revenue 4,575 4,063 512 12.6 17,200
Credit guarantee revenue 2,027 1,642 384 | 234 7,087
Other 5,053 4,331 721 16.7 18,607

II. Operating expenses 99,289 91,707 7,582 8.3 383,700
Financial expenses 9,485 9,287 197 2.1 39,682
Cost of sales 39 - © 39 - 357
Operating expenses - other 89,763 82,419 7,344 8.9 343,660
Operating income 35,385 29,339 6.046 | 20.6 134,716

I1I. Non-operating income 655 333 322 | 96.7 1,493
IV. Non-operating expenses 23 119 (96) |(80.6) 914
Ordinary income 36,018 29,553 6,464 | 219 135,294

V. Extraordinary income 141 360 (218) [(60.6) 1,184
V1. Extraordinary losses 941 236 705 | 299.1 7,037
Net income for the quarter before taxes 35,218 29,677 5,540 | 187 129,441
Tax expenses 14,743 13,505 1,237 92 53,015
Gain on minority interests 269 83 185 |221.1 702
Net income for the quarter 20,205 16,088 4,117 25.6 75,723

IIL. Summary of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the First Quarter, FY2005

(In millions of yen)

Current quarter Same quarter last year | Reference: FY2004
Category (Apr. 1 to June. 30, (Apr. 1 to June. 30, (Apr. 1, 2004 to
2005) 2004) Mar. 31, 2005)
Amount Amount Amount
1. Cash flow from operating activities
Net income for the quarter before taxes 35,218 29,677 129,441
Depreciation expenses 2,540 2,466 11,188
Increase (decrease) in allowance for bad debts 2,168 1,790 5,002
" Decrease (increase) in loans to customers (21,316) (20,911) (134,434)
Decrease (increase) in installment receivables (22,885) (23,211) (38,116)
Other 1,697 5,104 7,584
Subtotal (2,576) (5,083) (19,335)
Payments for corporate and other taxes (23,557) (26,039) (44,256)
Other ' 170 116 182
Cash flow from operating activities (25,963) (31,006) (63,408)
II. Cash flow from investing activities ’
Funds used for purchase of intangible fixed assets (607) (1,147) (5,014)
Other 3,978 (6,560) (6,197)
Cash flow from investing activities 3.371 (7,708) (11,211)
II.  Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in short-term debts 254,730 238,281 875,186
Repayment of short-term debts (226,200) (195,624) (869,351)
Increase in long-term debts 90,385 145,485 629,726
Repayments of long-term debts (109,879) (104,112) (566,683)
Cash from issue of corporate bonds 19,875 29,811 113,153
Loss on redemption of bonds (24,000) - (90,000)
Other 20,653 3,170 (11,713)
Cash flow from financing activities 25,564 117,011 80,318
IV. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ©) ) (5)
V. Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ) 2,962 78,294 5,692
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 108,965 98,329 98,329
~ period ‘
VIIL. Increase in cash and cash equivalents from new - - 4,943
consolidations
VIIL Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 111,928 176,624 108,965




IV. Results of Operations (Consolidated) for the First Quarter

1. Operating Revenue -

(In millions of yen, %)

Current quarter Same quarter last year Reference: FY2004
Item (Apr. 1 to June. 30, 2005) | (Apr. 1 to June. 30, 2004) (Apr. 1, 2004 to
Mar. 31, 2005)
Amount % Amount [ % Amount %

Interest on loans to customers 120,680 89.6 108,930 90.0 466,429 90.0
Unsecured loans 99,832 74.1 90,237 74.6 387,839 74.8
Secured loans 14,138 10.5 13,915 11.5 56,531 10.9
Small business loans 6,709 | 5.0 4,778 3.9 22,059 4.3
Credit card revenue 2,338 1.7 2,078 1.7 9,090 1.7
Per-item credit revenue 4,575 34 4,063 34 17,200 3.3
Credit guarantee revenue 2,027 1.5 1,642 14 7,087 1.4
Financial revenue - other 8 0.0 30 0.0 144 0.0
Interest on deposits 0 0.0 0 0.0 2 0.0
Interest on marketable securities 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Interest on loans - - 22 0.0 111 0.0
Other 8 0.0 8 0.0 31 0.0
Operating revenue - other 5,044 3.8 4,300 3.5 18,462 3.6
Revenue from operational investment securities 92 0.1 - - 664 0.1
Collection of bad debts 2,298 1.7 2,061 1.7 7,719 1.5
Other 2,653 2.0 2,239 1.8 10,077 2.0

Total 134,675 100.0 121,047 100.0 518,416 100.0

Note: “Other” included in “Operating revenue — other” is card membership fees.

2. Other Operating Indicators

(In_millions of yen - except where noted)

ltem End of current quarter | End of same quarter last year Rgvf;;%%ie:

(As of June 30, 2005) (As of June 30, 20042004) (As of Mar. 31, 2005)

| Total-amount of loans outstanding 2,124,180 1,918,770 2,095,201
Unsecured loans 1,641,407 1,483,551 1,622,032
Secured loans 351,707 344,439 352,213
Small business loans 131,065 90,779 120,955
Number of customer accounts 3,815,971 3,523,773 3,796,141
Unsecured loans 3,632,510 3,366,124 3,618,577
Secured loans 100,711 94,956 99,827
Small business loans 82,750 62,693 77,737
Number of branches 2,369 1,975 2,326
Staffed branches 891 828 884
Unstaffed branches 1,478 1,147 1,442
Number of loan-contracting machines 2,169 1,850 2,170
Automatic processing machines for loan applications 44 - 7
Number of ATMs 150,330 134,306 148,705
Company-owned 2,290 2,037 2,292

Partner-owned 148,040 132,269 146,413

Number of employees 6,848 6,237 6,510

Note: Total amount of loans outstanding and the number of customer accounts do not include loans and customer accounts related to claims
in bankruptcy. However, off-balance sheet operating loans from the securitization of receivables, which came to 107,242 million yen
at the end of the current quarter (110,918 million yen at the end of same quarter last year and 99,580 million at the end of the previous

consolidated fiscal year) have been included.
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Summary of First Quarter Non-Consolidated Business Results
For the fiscal year ending March 2006

AIFUL Corporation

(Securities code: 8515, 1st Section, Tokyo and Osaka Stock Exchanges)
(URL: http://www.aiful.co.jp)

Representative:  Yoshitaka Fukuda, President and Chief Executive Officer

Inquiries: Kenichi Kayama, General Manager, Public Relations Department
TEL (03) 3274-3560

I. Items Used to Compile Financial Data for the First Quarter

1. Company adopted smphf ed accounting methods (yes/no): Yes
Details: :
Computations of business tax and some reserves are based on estimates taking factors such as past results into account.

2. Any differences between the accounting practices used here and those used in preparing non-consolidated accounts for the previous
business year (yes/no): Yes

Details:

Starting in the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company adopted the Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standard for the
Impairment of Fixed Assets, issued by the Business Accounting Council on August 9, 2002, and Guidance for the Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets (Implementation Guidance for Accounting Standard No. 6), issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on October 31, 2003. The adoption of these accounting practices had no impact on financial results.

II. Summary of Business Results for the First Quarter, FY2005 (April 1 — June 30, 2005)

1. Non-Consolidated Business Performance
In millions of yen - rounded down, except per share data)

Operating Revenue Operating Income Ordinary Income | Net income for the Quarter
Ist quarter, FY2005 85,741 1.4% 27,310 7.8% 29,194 10.5% 17,145 17.7%
1st quarter, FY2004 84,587 1.9% 25,333 11.2% 26,429 10.6% 14,571 21.1%
Reference: FY2004 340,615 1.7% 1 107,581 13.0% 112,533 13.7% 67,301 26.8%

Net Income per Share
for the Quarter (Yen)

Diluted Net Income per Share
for the Quarter (Yen)

Ist quarter, FY2005 121.07 121.05
1st quarter, FY2004 154.23 154.20
Reference: FY2004 711.20 711.14

Notes:
1. Percentage figures shown for operating revenue, operating income, ordinary income and net income show year-on-year change
2. AIFUL implemented a 1:1.5 stock split on May 23, 2005.

2. Non-Consolidated Financial Position
(In millions of yen - rounded down, except where noted)

Total Assets Shareholders’ Equity Sharelg(;]tciloe r(so/ol)iqulty Sharehg&ifgs(i?glty per
1st quarter, FY2005 2,025,927 598,117 29.5 . 4.223.79
ist quarter, FY2004 1,962,849 535,653 273 5,656.92
Reference: FY2004 2,033,547 584,308 28.7 6,188.00

IT1. Non-Consolidated Results Forecasts for FY2005 (April 1, 2005 — March 31, 2006):
Qualitative Data Concerning Results Forecasts :

Results in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 represent steady progress in line with the full-year forecasts previously announced on May 10, 2005,
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Supplement to
the Shelf Registration Statement

AJIFUL CORPORATION

(504043)



Supplement to the Shelf Registration Statement dated July 6, 2005 relating
to the Unsecured Straight Bonds- Forty-eighth and Forty-ninth - Series
(with special covenant of rating pari passu solely with the other series of
bonds) (the “Supplement”)

The Supplement is required to be filed with the authority under the Securities
and Exchange Law when AIFUL Corporation (the “Company”) proposes to
issue or distribute through a public offering in Japan of the securities designated
in the Shelf Registration Statement filed with the Director-General of Kanto
Local Finance Bureau on February 7, 2005 (the “Shelf Registration Statement”)
which became effective as of February 15, 2005, including the Unsecured
Straight Bonds - Forty-eighth and Forty-ninth - Series (with special covenant of
rating pari passu solely with the other series of bonds), each worth ¥10,000
million of the aggregate principal amount thereof in such offerings.

The Shelf Registration Statement so supplemented by the Supplement contains
or incorporates by reference the information concerning the terms and
conditions of the public offering of the Unsecured Straight Bonds- Forty-eighth
and Forty-ninth - Series and the information pertaining to the Company’s
business.

The information contained in the Supplement which is material to an investment
decision is substantially contained in the press releases dated July 6, 2005
(Exhibit 6).



The Report on Treasury Stock Purchase

AIFUL CORPORATION

(504043)



The Report on Treasury Stock Purchase, dated July 13, 2005, in connection
with the open market purchase of treasury stock for the purpose of transfer
to directors and employees (see Note below)

The Report shows that no treasury stock purchase has been made as of June 30,
2005.

Note:

Under the Securities and Exchange Law, a report on treasury stock purchase is required to be
filed with the authority in connection with the open market purchase of treasury stock of a
listing company. ‘



AIFUL PRESS RELEASE

AIFUL Corporation (8515)

381-1, Takasago-cho, Gojo-Agaru, Karasuma-Dori, Shimogyo-ku, Kyot

Mr. Yoshitaka Fukuda, President & CEQ

Listings: Tokyo Stock Exchange First Section,

Osaka Stock Exchange First Section,

Fiscal year end: March 31 '

For information, contact:  Mr. Kenichi Kayama
General Manager, Public Relations Department
Tel: 03-4503-6050

AIFUL Announce 48", 49" Unsecured Straight Bond Issues

TOKYO, July 6, 2005 - AIFUL Corporation announced its 48", 49" unsecured straight bond
issues. These bond issues are part of AIFUL's diversified plan for further improvements in
financial position, and the continued strengthening of its overail financial health based on
careful observation of market movements.

Issue name:

Issue amount:
Interest rate:
Issue price:
Offering date:
Payment date:
Maturity date:

Use of funds:

Lead underwriter:

Trustees:

Rating:

Issua name:

Issue amount:
Interest rate:
Issue price:
Offering date:
Payment date: -
Maturity date:

Use of funds:

AIFUL Corporation 48" Unsecured Bond
(Limited Inter-bond Pari Passu Clause)

10 billion yen

0.45% per annum

100% of face value; face value equals 100 yen
July 6, 2005

July 20, 2005

July 18, 2008

(3 year bond redeemable in lump sum at maturity)
Operating loans

The Nomura Securities Co., Ltd.

Deutsche Securities Limited.

_Aozora Bank, Ltd.

Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCR)

has rated the bonds A .

Japan Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I)
has rated the bonds A~ .
Fitch Ratings Limited

has rated the bonds A~

AIFUL Corporation 49 Unsecured Bond
(Limited Inter-bond Pari Passu Clause)

10 billion yen

0.80% per annum

100% of face value; face value equals 100 yen
July 6, 2005

July 20, 2005

July 20, 2010

(5 year bond redeemable in lump sum at maturity)

Operating loans



Lead underwriter:

Trustees:

Rating:

Credit Suisse First Boston Securities Japan Limited.
Goldman Sachs (Japan) Ltd.

Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

Japan Credit Rating Agency (JCR)

has rated the bonds A

Japan Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&1)
has rated the bonds A-

Fitch Ratings Limited

has rated the bonds A-



Aiful Press Release

AIFUL Corporation (8515)

Mr. Yoshitaka Fukuda, President & CEO
Listings: Tokyo Stock Exchange First Section,
Osaka Stock Exchange First Section,
Fiscal year end: March 31
For information, contact:  Mr. Kenichi Kayama
General Manager, Public Relations Department
Tel: (81) 03-4503-6050

AIFUL Announces
US Dollar Denominated Unsecured Notes Issues

TOKYO, August 4, 2005 — AIFUL Corporation (President: Yoshitaka Fukuda) announced its US
dollar denominated unsecured notes issues. These notes issues are part of AIFUL's diversified
plan for further improvements in its financial position, and the continued strengthening of its
overall financial health based on careful observation of market movements.

1. Issuer AIFUL CORPORATION

2. Outline of the Notes

(1)  Amount of the Notes to be Issued Five Hundred Miilion US Dollars
(US$ 500,000,000)
(2) Maturity Five (5) years
(3) Conditions of Issue Interest Rate 5.00%
Issue Price 99.603% of the
denomination of the
Notes
(4) Place of Offering Private placement to qualified institutional

investors in the United States and
offerings in other foreign markets, mainly
in Europe.

(5) PaymentDate August 10, 2005

This document shall not constitute offering or sale of securities in the United States. Except for
either the case of registration or exemption from registration of the securities under the U.S.
Securities Act of 1933, offering or sale of the securities in the United States shall not be permitted.
Our securities have not been registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933. This document is
prohibited from distribution within the United States. Also, in case of the Stabilization Act in

relation to these notes issues, application of such Act shall be subject to the rules of the Financial
Qearvireas Aiithoritvy (FSA)
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AIFUL Announces Personnel Changes and Organizational Change

KYOTO — AIFUL Corporation hereby announces the following personnel changes and
organizational change approved at the board of directors’ meeting held on September 12, 2005.

1. Appomtment of departmental manager (effective September 12, 2005)
Name Position

General Manager, Marketing

Shinichiro Okuyama Department

2. Transfer of departmental manager (effective October 1, 2005)

Name New Pasition _ Former Position
General Manager, IT Planning
- ) - Department General Manager, IT Planning
Isao Okada Director, Next Generation Systems Department
Office

3. Organizational Change (effective October 1, 2005)

Establishment of the Next Generation Systems Office

A new Next Generation Systems Office will be established within the Management Planning
Division for the purpose of planning and building systems for the entire AIFUL Group.

4. Organizational Change (effective October 1, 2005)

Please see attachment.

AIFUL Corporation ‘

Headquarters: 381-1 Takasagocho, Gojo Agaru,
Karasumadon, Shimogyo-ku, Kvoto

President: Yoshitaka Fukuda

Stock code: 8515

Exchanges: TSE 1st Section; OSE 1st Section

Fiscal year:  Ending March 31

Inquiries: Kenichi Kavama, General Manager,
Public Relations Department

Telephone: - (03) 3274-3560 (Public Relations)
(03) 3274-4561 (Investor Relations)

Fax: (03) 3274-4581




AIFUL Corporation Organization Chart (As of October 1, 2005).
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CORPORATE PHILOSOPHY

“WIN THE GOOD FAVOR OF SOCIETY”

SUCCESSFUL SYNERGIES FOR CUSTOMERS,
THE COMPANY, AND EMPLOYEES
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Our corporate philosophy is “Win the good favor of society.” By this, we mean coex-
isting harmoniously with and maintaining a good relationship with saciety at large, as
an innovative, comprehensive finance group that customers can rely on.

“Successful synergies for customers, the Company and employees”

With this philosophy we believe we can achieve successful synergies for all of our
stakeholders, namely, our customers, shareholders and employees.

The history of the consumer finance industry is a mixed one. In the late 1970s to the
early 1980s, consumer finance companies were not widely known and were the sub-
ject of much public criticism.

Our corporate philosophy to “Win the good favor of society” reflects our sincere
intentions to improve the way we, and the rest of the industry, are viewed by the pub-
lic, attract a broader base of customers and contribute to society.

Forward-Looking Statements i
The figures contained in this Annual Report with respect to AIFULs plans and strategies and other statements that are not historical
. facts are forward-looking statements about the future performance of AIFUL, which are based on management’s assumptions and
. peliefsin light of the information currently available to it and involve risks and uncertainties and actual results that may differ from
those in the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Potential risks and uncertainties include, without limitation,
I general economic conditions in AIFUL's market and changes in the size of the overall market for consumer loans, the rate of default
by customers, and the Ievel of interest rates charged by AIFUL.




CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S T I I S T S S B S e S L Y A R RV A S A )

a N
Percentage of Thousands of
AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries Millions of Yen Change U.S. Dollars
Years Ended March 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 2005 2004 2003 05/04 2005
For the Year:
Total income ¥ 520,737 ¥ 479,473 ¥ 451,168 8.6 $ 4,886,700
Total expenses 391,285 375,659 343,715 4.2 3,655,962
Credit costs 155,466 157,349 138,479 -1.2 1,452,953
Income before income taxes and minority interests 128,442 103,814 107,453 247 1,208,738
Net income 75,723 62,548 59,911 211 707,692
At Year-End:
Loans 1,985,622 1,786,940 1,670,782 11.7 18,650,673
Installment accounts receivable 192,402 154,285 147,857 24.7 1,798,150
Bad debts 175,136 149,826 120,399 16.8 1,636,785
Total assets 2,574,286 2,332,761 2,282,113 10.4 24,058,748
Aflowance for bad debts 159,483 145,757 132,130 . 8.4 1,480,495
Long-term debt, including current portion therecf 1,601,763 1,451,777 1,436,104 183 14,959,748
Total shareholders’ equity 617,353 547,504 485,991 12.8 5,769,654
Number of shares issued 142,035,000 94,690,000 94,690,000 50.0
Percentage of
Yen Change U.S. Dollars
Per Share Data:
Net income . ¥ 53357 ¥ 44065 ¥ 42506 211 $ 499
Net income—diluted 533.53 - - - 499
Total shareholders’ equity 4,358.69 3,863.06 3.428.97 12.8 40.74
Cash dividends ¢0.00 60.00 50.00 0 ' 0.56
Nates: 1. The U.S. dollar amounts have been translated, for convenience anly, at ¥107=$1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005.
2. Net income per share has been computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each period, after retroactive adjustment for stack splits.
3. Figures in the financial section are based on audited English-language statements. Figures in the feature section and review of operations are based on Japanese financial
statements. Dug to certain reclassifications, some figures and items do not match.
« 4. On May 23, 2005, each common, par value share held as of March 31, 2005, was split into 1.5 shares according to the provisions of Article 218 of the Japanese Commercial Code)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuit of our comprehensive financial services strategy in the retail sector has
led to an even greater contribution to earnings by group companies.

(CFEIATING BRI,

Japan's economy gradually impraved during fiscal 2004, the fiscal year

ended March 31, 2005. There was a brief period of weakness due to
the much higher cost of oil and slowing economic growth in China.

However, the Japanese economy was supported by strang corporate
sales and earnings as many companies, chiefly large corporations,
reported record-setting results. Held back by concerns about the
economic outlook, consumer spending remained flat despite an
improvement in employment levels and an end to the decline in
perscnal income.

In the consumer finance industry, a realignment of consumer finance
and credit card companies occurred under the leadership of Japan's
megabanks. There were twa equity and business alliances: ACOM Co.,
Ltd. and Mitsubishi Tokya Financial Group, Inc.; and Promise Ca., Ltd. and
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. Furthermore, Credit Saison Co.,
Ltd. and Mizuho Financial Group, Inc. announced a business alliance.
Another notable trend is the determination among credit card companiss

affiliated with retailers and manufacturers tc expand their operations.

We also saw the acquisition of consumer finance companies by
companies in the IT field. These events are fueling even more

intense competition for market share. On the positive side, the
steady growth in Japan’s personal bankruptcies, based on
Supreme Court statistics, has come to an end. Due to
amendments to the Maneylending Business Restriction Law

that mainly targeted predatory lenders, these bankruptcies fell
12.8% in fiscal 2004 to 211 thousand. This was the first year-
- on-year decling in a decade. All major consumer finance
companies saw dbuble-digit declings in their credit costs
s aresult Consequently, the volume of charge-offs
probably reached its peak in the past fiscal year.

Yoshitaka Fukuda
President and CEQ




1. Consolidated summary

Consolidated aperating revenue increased 9.5% to ¥518.4 biltion and
ordinary income was up 20.3% to ¥135.2 billion. As in the prior fiscal
year, AIFUL Group was again the only major consumer finance
company in Japan to post increases in revenue and earnings. Most of
our peers reported higher eamings but lower revenue. Two factars
were respansible for this accomplishment. The first was the downtumn
in credit costs because of the double-digit decline in personal
bankruptcies, a trend that benefited all members of the consumer
finance industry. The second factor is unique to AIFUL Group: higher
earnings from group companies resulting from our comprehensive
financial services strategy.

{Ilustrating the contribution of this strategy is the much faster
growth of the AIFUL Group compared with AIFUL Corporation itself.
While non-consolidated operating revenue increased only 1.7%, our
consolidated revenue was up 9.5%. Consolidated ordinary income rose
20.3% compared with 13.7% on a non-consolidated basis. In addition to
the larger earings contribution of group companies, all group companies
achieved profitability in the past fiscal year. | believe this is irrefutable
proof of the success of our comprehensive financial services strategy.

Consolidated operating expenses increased 6.3% to ¥383.7 billion.
This was mostly attributable to expenses associated with the June
2004 acquisition of Wide Corporation and to up-front investments that
target growth opportunities at group companies. AIFUL's non-
consolidated operating expenses declined 2.8% to ¥233.0 billion.
Rising expenses for group companies demonstrate that we are shifting
resources away from the mature unsecured consumer finance market
to the credit card and business loan markets. In December 2004, the
family ownership was reduced to raise the liquidity of AIFUL shares.
This action meant that the retained earnings tax on closely held
companies was no longer applicable to AIFUL Corporation (non-
consolidated). Consequently, our consolidated net income increased
21.1% to ¥75.7 billion.

We expect double-digit earmings growth to continue in the fiscal
year ending in March 2006 due to another increase in earnings from
group companies. For this fiscal year, our business plan calls for a
7.1% increase in consolidated receivables to ¥2,700.0 billion, a 7.1%
increase in operating revenue to ¥555.0 billion and a 14.6% increase in
ordinary income to ¥155.0 billion.

2. The transformation in LIFEs profitability

Credit card issuer LIFE Co., Ltd. is the (argest component of growth in
consolidated revenue and earnings. Since joining the AIFUL Group in
March 2001, LIFE has posted consistently strong growth. In the past
fiscal year, LIFE's fourth as an AIFUL Group member, ordinary income
improved 36.8% to ¥16.5 billion, ¥2.0 billion more than our initial plan for
the year. Since joining the group, this company’s ordinary income has
grown from ¥2.4 billion to ¥8.0 billion, ¥12.0 billion and, last year, to
¥16.5 billion. The last three years were all-time highs.

LIFE's credit card business has been achieving remarkable growth.
Central to this expansion are affinity card alliances with prominent
partners such as Aoyama Capital Co., Ltd., an apparel retailer, and
DEODEDO Corporation and EIDEN Ca., Ltd., both consumer electronics
retailers. LIFE has consistently issued more than 2 million new cards
annually. The number of cardholders has thus increased from 7.48
mitlion in March 2001 to 11.81 million in March 2005. We expect that
LIFE will issue more than 2 million new cards in the March 2006 fiscal
year, t00. A number of new initiatives will make this possible, including
the Bank Alliance Card that we began issuing in July 2005 with THE
HIGASHI-NIPPON BANK, LIMITED. We expect that LIFE will achieve a
6.4% increase in receivables to ¥799.5 billion, a 9.3% increase in
operating revenue to ¥135.4 hillion, on a managed asset basis, and a
27.1% increase in ardinary income to ¥21.0 billion.

3. Small business loans — A new core growth driver
Small business loan receivables increased 72.6% during the past fiscal
year to total ¥47 6 billion at the end of March 2005. Responsible for
much of this growth was BUSINEXT CORPORATION, a joint venture
with The Sumitomao Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. that serves moderate-risk
borrowers. The main reason was the completion of two scoring
systems. Oneg is for evaluations of business owners, making it possible
to extend loans backed by no collateral or guarantees to these
individuals. The other system is for evaluations of smal! business
companies. Due to this growth, BUSINEXT had ordinary income of ¥0.6
billion compared with the prior year's loss of ¥1.0 billion, the first profit
since its January 2001 establishment. Moderate-risk business loans is
a market with comparatively little competition. We plan to maximize
the advantages of our position as the leader in this market sector to
continue the steep growth in receivables. BUSINEXT plans to raise
receivables 46.0% to ¥69.5 billion in March 2006 and achieve 116.7%
growth in ordinary income to ¥1.3 billion. Group member City's
Corporation, which we bought in October 2002, targets the high-risk
business loan category. Here, an enlargement of the branch netwaork
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Redundancy and dispersion. A basic stance that |
allows us to generate steady earnings growth by
meeting the needs of many customer segments.

was largely responsible for a 46.3% increass in receivables to ¥45.6
billion. Ordinary income was ¥2.5 billion, well above the ¥1.8 billion
initially planned.

For all small business loans, we are planning on another year of
strong growth, backed primarily by the opening of new branches,
mostly in the Tokyo area. Overall, we are aiming for a 53.3% increase
in receivables to ¥70.0 billion and an 18.0% increase in ordinary
income to ¥3.0 billion in the fisca! year ending in March 2006.

4. TRYTO and Wide, our second group of consumer
finance companies
Group members TRYTO CCRPORATION and Wide Corporation make up
what we call our second consumer finance group. TRYTO, which began
operations in Aprit 2004, substantially cut its credit costs and boosted
operating efficiency in the past fiscal year. The result was ordinary
income of ¥2.8 hillion. Wide, which we acquired in June 2004, recorded
significant expenses assaciated with the unification of bad debt charge-
offs and reserve standards, based on a conservative stance, with other
AIFUL Group members. Despite these actions, ordinary income surpassed
the initial plan by ¥0.6 billion to reach ¥1.6 billion. The combined ordinary
income of TRYTO and Wide rose 58.5% from ¥15.5 billion to ¥24.6
billion. Two recent acquisitions of consumer finance companies have
further enlarged this “second group.” In February 2005, we acquired
TCM. Ce. Ltd. which had receivables of ¥9.2 billion at the end of March
2005. The next month we acquired Passkey Co., Ltd., which had
receivables of ¥8.3 billion at the end of February 2005.

gl

1. The advantages of the comprehensive financial
services strategy

The AIFUL Group is executing a comprehensive financial services

strategy with three goals in mind. First is sustaining steady growth in
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the entire consumer credit market, which is expected to continue
expanding, by targeting an even broader spectrum of customers.
Secand is reducing risk by assembling a more diverse business
portfolic. Third is using the benefits of lower risk to increase leverage,
thereby raising our return on equity.

Since we are targeting markets that are in a growth phase, our
fundamental stance is “redundancy and dispersion” rather than “focus
and selectivity.” We can serve a broad array of customer needs by
using group companies to sell many kinds of products. | firmly believe
this approach is the best means to sustain earnings growth. As | noted
earlier, Japan's consumer credit market is undergoing a realignment
and diversification in participants. This is mainly the result of actions
by megabanks to reinforce retait operations and of the entry of
companies from outside the consumer finance industry. These new
entrants are attracting a broader range of customers to the consumer
finance market. At the same time, we foresee a continuation in
diversity of our customer base. If these momentous changes continue,
there will be a growing gap between companies able to adapt with
speed and those that do not. Weaker companies will ng longer be able
to survive. | am convinced that the comprehensive financial services
strategy is the best way to continue growing in this environment.

2. Riming to be Japan's leading “"non-bank” financial
company

We are executing our comprehensive financial services strategy in

three ways: continuing to realign our business portfalio, reinforcing the

credit card business, and expanding through acquisitions.

Regarding the business portfolio, we are raising credit cards, small
business loans and guarantees as a share of total receivables. This is
taking place as we sustain growth in receivables and eamnings in all
businesses. We plan to lower unsecured consumer {oans from the current
65% to about half of total receivables, creating a more stable earnings base.

To reinforce the credit card business, we will continue to channel
resources to LIFE's credit card business, giving this priority over other
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Based on the corporate philocsophy to “Win the
good favor of scciety,” AIFUL prioritizes CSR to
ensure mutual prosperity with all stakeholders.

businesses. Affinity cards will be used to attract more cardholders and
new businesses will be launched. Through these actions, we expect
that growth in receivables will outpace market expansion.

Regarding the third point, we will target opportunities created by
the ongoing realignment of Japan's consumer credit industry to
strengthen the group through mergers and acquisitions. In business
sectars where we want to grow, such as credit cards and small
business foans, strategic investments will be made even if we need
to pay a premium where justified. For opportunities in the consumer
finance domain, we will aggressively target underpriced companies,
making acquisitions that will allow us to maximize returns.

Executing this three-point strategy will lead to growth in receivables
and earnings in all aur businesses, propelling AIFUL to the number-one
pasition among Japan's non-banks as a comprehensive source of
financial services.

3. AlFUL's position concerning industry realignment
We witnessed a series of announcements invalving equity and
business tie-ups between megabanks and consumer finance
companies during 2004. It appears that the primary benefit for
consumer finance companies is an improvement in financial
soundness. The AIFUL Group, though, has elected not to go down this
path. We believe that a megabank alliance would restrict our freedom
and prevent us from executing distinctive strategies.

Our position is different concerning credit cards, small business
loans and home equity loans. Market size and growth prospects
make these markets highly appealing. Most customers for these
products are similar to the customers served by banks. We therefore
envision business models that utilize bank brands either through
loose bank alliances or the acquisition of a bank.

These actions demonstrate our ability to select strategic options and
take actions entirely on our own. Two strengths make this possible.
One is our steadfast adherence to our comprehensive financial services
strategy. The other is our innovative approaches to product

development and risk management. This is why we have considerable
expertise in all our targeted fields. For example, our ability to supply
expertise in credit investigations was instrumental to the success of
LIFE once it joined the AIFUL Group. | believe that the cellective
knowledge of our group gives us a valuable advantage as Japan's
consumer credit industry realigns and becomes more competitive.

The corporate philosophy to “Win the good favor of society” has always
formed the basis for the AIFUL Group's activities. As a comprehensive

financial services group able to meet all our customers’ needs,
prospering along with society and maintaining a sound relationship with
the public are our highest priorities. Our strategic goal is to become a
comprehensive retail financial services company. To serve customers in
more ways, we plan to conduct mergers and acquisitions and form
alliances. This approach will raise our scale of operations, including
receivables and earnings, in a manner that effectively taps the strengths
of each group company. Gne major benefit will be even more
opportunities for our employees to excel. By executing our comprehen-
sive financial services strategy, we are firmly committed to generating
benefits for all three core stakeholder groups: customers, shareholders
and employees.

June 2005

é //;z vﬂé a-c(A

Yoshitaka Fukuda
President and CEQ
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GROWTH POTENTIAL REMAINS IN JAPAN’S CONSUMER CREDIT MARKET

JAPAN'S CONSUMER CREDIT
MARKET

Shown below is the basic composition of Japan's consumer credit mar-
ket. Based on Japan Consumer Credit [ndustry Association data, esti-
mated total credit extended during 2003 was ¥73,014 billion.
Representing about one-fourth of total final consumer spending in 2003
(approximately ¥282 trillion), this figure attests to the massive scale of
the consumer credit market in Japan.

Total consumer credit extended has remained basically flat over the past
decade. During this period, unsecured consumer loans extended by companies
specializing in this business have been the fastest-growing category. Following
the end of Japan's asset bubble in the early 1990s, the volume of unsecured
consumer loans has more than doubled even as the nation’s economy remained
mired in a prolonged period of weakness. The strong consumer response to a
constant stream of innavations by consumer loan companies was the main rea-
son for this growth. This same period also saw average annual growth of about
6% in credit card shopping and cash advances. On the other hand, there has
been a decline in consumer loans by banks and other financial institutions and
in shopping loans by shinpan companies.

With a scale of about ¥73 trillion, Japan's consumer credit market is
attracting the attention of many kinds of companies. Banks are forming

equity alliances and business tie-ups with major consumer finance
companies as one way to bolster retail operations. Communications carri-
ers, manufacturers and IT companies are entering the consumer credit mar-
ket. These events are forcing smaller consumer finance companies to
merge with each other or simply shut down. Realignment is also taking
place in the consumer credit market. The result is sweeping changes in the
structure of the entire consumer credit industry. These events are removing
boundaries that once separated the consumer loan, consumer credit and
credit card categories. Companies in Japan are now fighting for a share of
the entire consumer credit market, just as in the United States.

The AIFUL Group is convinced that this market still has grawth poten-
tial. One reason is likely to be efforts to serve new customer segments as
competition intensifies. Growth is expected in all four major market cat-
egories: traditional consumer finance companies; credit card shopping and
shopping loans; credit card cash advances; and consumer loans by shinpan
companies and credit card companies. A gradual expansion in Japan's con-
sumer credit market is therefore expected to continue.

As these trends redefine the nature of this market, companies offering
nothing but consumer finance will no longer be able to sustain growth.
This is why the AIFUL Group is executing a “comprehensive financial ser-
vices strategy.” By extending operations to include credit cards, real
estate-backed loans and small business loans, the group is building a base
that can support consistent earnings growth.

" JAPAN’S GROWING CONSUMER CREDIT MARKET
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OUTLOOK FOR THE CORE MARKETS OF AIFUL GROUP

To translate its comprehensive financial services strategy into concrete actions,
the AIFUL Group is aggressively enlarging three market sectors: consumer loans
from consumer finance companies; credit cards; and small business loans. The fol-
lowing sections explain why each of these sectors has excellent growth prospects.

VTE SPECAUST CONSUNIER FRANEE COMPANTES
MARKED

The solid growth in Japan's consumer finance industry

Even as Japan's consumer credit market remained flat, consumer loans
extended by companies specializing in this business have more than
doubled over the past decade. At the end of 2002, these loans topped ¥10
trillion. Furthermore, the number of individuals with information registered
at the Federation of Credit Bureaus of Japan had increased about 83%
over the past decade to 20.79 million as of December 31, 2004,

There are a number of social factors that explain why consumer finance
companies have been able to earn this degree of support from customers.
One is the rising demand for loans to enjoy free time as a result of the
steadily rising affluence of Japanese consumers during the period of strong
economic growth. Anather factor is the tendency for consumers to use cash,
a characteristic seldom seen elsewhere in the world. People in Japan have
no concerns about carrying cash because of the nation’s low crime rate.

One more reason is that consumer loans offered by banks and the ser-
vices of credit card companies have not been as appealing as those of con-
sumer finance companies.

In addition to these social factors, major consumer finance companies
have driven growth by constantly taking innovative actions to attract more
customers. In the mid-90s, major consumer finance companies significantly
enlarged branch office networks and added unmanned loan-contracting
machines to enhance convenience. Beginning in 1999, these companies
started using TV commercials to soften their public images. Actions such
as these have led directly to the current strength of Japan's consumer
finance market. AIFUL, Takefuji, Acom and Promise, the industry's major
four, have constantly channeled resources to enhance convenience and
corporate images. All four companies have been skillful at
using these investments to differentiate
themselves. Due to these efforts, the
major four now account for about 60%
of the consumer finance market.

Qutloak {or the consumer finance market
Gradual changes are becoming evident in the market for services provided
by companies specializing in consumer loans, which has posted strong
growth for some time. The majority of consumer loan customers are in
their 20s and 30s, a segment that is declining in Japan as its popuiation
ages and the number of children falls. Based on AIFUL Group's forecasts,
however, the market for consumer loan companies will grow from approxi-
mately ¥10.2 trillion in 2002 to about ¥14.0 trillion in 2012. After that, the
outlook is for the market to enter a period of stable growth and maturity.
One reason for this forecast is the large number of customers in their
late 50s and early 60s, part of the baby-boom generation, already served
by specialist consumer loan companies. Anather is the consistently high
rate at which people in their 20s patronize these companies. This is a
reflection of the low resistance in this age group toward using a consumer
loan company due to TV commercials that create a better image for the
industry and improvements in customer services. In addition, Japan's con-
sumer finance business model offers the unique benefit of privacy.* Based
on all these considerations, the AIFUL Group believes that the consumer

finance market will continue to expand.

* Consumer finance companies allow customers to receive documents and statements
directly at branch offices and ATMs, whereas shinpan companies and credit card compa-
nies mail documents and statements to customers’ homes.
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Japan's Credit Card Market

In the credit card market, where AIFUL Group is active primarily through
group company LIFE, the number of cards in issue exceeded 260 million at
the end of 2003 according to statistics of the Japan Consumer Credit
Industry Assaciation. That equates ta an average of two to three cards for

every adult in Japan. The Central Council for Financial Services Information
conducts regular surveys cancerning household financial assets. Results
show that the share of househalds using credit cards as the primary means
of making purchases increased from 9.7% in 1993 to 21.5% in 2003, Qbvi-
ously, the credit card is now an essential part of life in Japan. According to
statistics of the Japan Consumer Credit Industry Association, total credit
card turnover has almast doubled between 1993 and 2003, rising from
¥18.7 trillion to ¥34.1 trillion.
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On the other hand, credit cards account for only about 10% of all
consumer spending in Japan, much less than the 24% utilization rate in
the United States. Furthermore, mare than 90% of amounts due on credit
cards are paid in full the following month in Japan through automatic
bank transfers. Only about 10% of credit card transactions are financed
with revolving credit, a scheme that is frequently used in the United
States and other countries.

One reason is that, almost every time a credit card is used in Japan,
the cashier asks if the customer wants to select a one-time or installment
payment. That forces individuals to state their payment method in front of
others, information that should remain private. Consumers tend to choose
the one-time payment as a result. This is a highly unusual system by inter-
national standards.

Due to these circumstances, Japan is a country where many people

have cards, but few use them frequently. Even when a credit card is used,
people tend to avoid the credit function, using them instead as a debit card
by paying in full the following month.
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The outlook {or the credit card market

Rapid advances in information technology in recent years have driven
pragress in the establishment of a high-performance, low-cost infrastruc-
ture for credit card use. At the same time, credit card companies are mak-
ing their products more appealing by introducing programs that allow
customers to accumulate airline mileage, receive points at major retailers
and enjoy other benefits. These actions are encouraging consumers to use
their credit cards mare often.

Currently, Japan is witnessing fierce competition among issuers of
credit cards such as banks, shinpan companies, retailers and manufactur-
ers. Issuers are enticing people with credit cards that include an e-monay
function as well as cash rebates and ather features.

Credit cards are likely to account for a rising percentage of household
spending in Japan. Supporting this growth will be infrastructure investments
by credit card companies along with the introduction of more innovations. In
fact, the advantages of using a credit card in Japan are increasing rapidly.
Consumers are using cards for Internet shopping and making use of new
functions made possible by IC card and e-money technology. A growing num-
ber of credit cards double as bank cash cards. Furthermore, credit cards can
be used to pay utility and medical bills, both of which have customarily been
settled using cash. Japan is also seeing a fundamental shift in the perception
of money as a new generation of consumers emerges. Instead of placing
importance on hard work and frugality, today's consumers are willing to take
on debt to enrich their lives. These trends suggest that Japan's credit card
market is on the verge of even mare growth.

Furthermore, credit card companies have adopted a strategy of in-
creasing the volume of cash advancaes to create another source of earn-
ings. In the past, card issuers were reluctant to extend credit lines for
these loans due to the resulting risk exposure. But today, these companies
have switched to an aggressive stance, promoting these loans with direct
marketing activities, raising credit lines and taking other steps to make
cash advances more accessible to their customers.

Because of these events, the consumer finance and credit card mar-
kets are both likely to continue expanding while each sector targets largely
different customer segments. That means the AIFUL Group, which has both
consumer finance and credit card companies, is well positioned to execute
a strategy that can produce consistent growth in earnings.
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Targeting the latent needs of small and midsize companies
Accarding to data from The Small and Medium Enterprise Agency, there
were about 5.6 million companies in Japan with 20 or fewer emplayees at
the end of 2001. Traditionally, the awners of these companies have taken
out low-interest loans from local banks, credit unions and other financial
institutions by using real estate as collateral. Another fund procurement
option is using guarantors to obtain loans at a higher interest rate from
companies specializing in higher-risk loans. Small and midsize companies
also have access to government-backed financial institutions and loans
backed by a credit guarantee corporation. However, the rising incidence of
defaults that force these corporations to repay loans is causing the balance
of loans to small and midsize companies to fall. These companies are find-
ing it increasingly difficult to procure funds as a result.

The appeal of small business loans

The moderate-risk categories of the consumer finance and business loan
markets are completely different. The size of the moderate-risk consumer
loan market is extremely limited because of the affluence of most custom-
ers in this category. Demand for moderate-risk business loans, however, is
substantial. Many companies of all sizes and credit standings have a con-
stant need for financing. Despite the magnitude of demand for these loans,
the number of lenders remains insufficient. AIFUL Group therefore views
moderate-risk business loans as a market with immense growth potential
(See page 22).

Looking only at the high-risk segment of the SME loan market, fallout
from the shokoloan uproar in Japan of about six years ago caused by
unethical loan collection practices is still holding down the balance of SME
loans extended by the major lenders. But the balance of loans extended to
small and midsize companies by other SME loan companies continues to
climb. This is proof of the scale and consistency of demand far funds
among SMEs and individual praprietarships.

On the other hand, there is virtually no competition in the market for
extending unsecured small business loans, a moderate-risk category. A
few megabanks and regional banks have announced plans to increase
loans to these companies. But in practice, these banks are increasing
loans to larger, middle-market companies, a borrower segment with a
relatively low risk profile.

To succeed in each of these market segments, the AIFUL Group has
City's to serve high-risk borrowers and BUSINEXT for the medium-risk
category. By strengthening these borrower segment-specific distribution
channels, the AIFUL Group is executing the most effective strategy for suc-
cess in the small business loan market.
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THE COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL SERVICES STRATEGY

THE COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL SERVICES STRATEGY

Advantage of The Comprehensive Financial Services Strategy
The AIFUL Group is pursuing a comprehensive financial services strategy
for three key reasons: sustained earnings growth; business portfolio diver-
sity; and the benefits of higher leverage.

Sustaining eamings growth would be difficult by relying solely on the
consumer finance market. Since the primary customers for these loans are
young adults, this market is expected to grow more slowly after 2012
because of Japan’s aging population and falling number of children. At the
same time, the entry of IT and other new competitors is making the con-
sumer loan business more competitive. We decided that the best way to
succeed in this environment wes to lack beyond consumer loans, targeting
instead the entire consumer credit market. To accomplish this, we acquired
LIFE in 2001, a company that can sustain consistent growth in earnings.

Diversifying our business partfolio is another goal. At the end of March
1998, unsecured loans accounted for 82% of our loan partfolio and home
equity loans for 16%. Since then, we have made large investments in

businesses active in other, faster-growing market categories. Credit card
issuer LIFE and small business foan firms BUSINEXT and City's have all
grown rapidly since joining the AIFUL Group. Due to this growth, unsecured
loans at AIFUL accounted for 43% of consolidated receivables at the end of
March 2005. Receivables at LIFE accounted for 30%, home equity loans for
14%, small businass loans for 5% and other loans for the remaining 8%.

Portfolio diversification is also an effective means of spreading risk. In
the fiscal year that ended in March 2005, AIFUL’s non-consolidated unse-
cured loan charge-off ratio was 7.6%, compared with only 3.1% for home
equity loans and 5.3% for LIFE's credit card receivables. Specializing in the
consumer finance business clearly results in greater expasure to credit risk.

Maost Japanese consumer finance companies are structured so that,
when the consumer finance market matures a number of years from now,
their high profitability will continue to raise equity even though the volume
of receivables is flat. The resulting rise in equity ratios will erode their
returns on equity. The AIFUL Group is different. At 3.1%, the ROA is less
than at peer companies. However, the group’s comparatively low 24.0%
equity ratio produces a debt-equity ratio of 4.2 times, keeping the ROE con-
sistently high. AIFUL therefore believes that increasing receivables through
mergers and acquisitions, while preserving its credit ratings, is the most
productive way to use capital.

" CONSOLIDATED OPERATING REVENUE AND ORDI- \

NARY INCOME AT JAPAN’S FOUR MAJOR CONSUMER '
, FINANCE COMPANIES ‘

: {Billions of yen} i
600 1 | Acquisition s ‘
L ofLRE | .0
L 1 {the turning: .
500 . point) .
; 400 - o
| 0
300 | i
i
; 200 I
! cuenel] :
o e _[:_1 §
100 - =
| 0~

;l 00 01 02 03 04 05 O6(E)

Operating Revenue

© @ AlFUL <© < Promise O @ Takefuji © < Acom !
Ordinary Income !
o @& AFUL o+ Promise -4 Takefuji << Acom

e

% 010  AIFULCORPORATICN  Annual Report 2005

R

‘ DIVERSIFICATION OF RECEIVABLES AND THE RISK

| PROFILE

X {Billions of yen}

Change (m
Rescslvabiss

3,000
2,500

12000

1,500

1,000 r

! 02 03 04 05 06(E)

W LIFE credit card receivables

T LIFE shopping loans

O LIFE credit card cash advances
7 LIFE Cash Plaza (unsecured loans)
O LIFE Joan guarantees

# AIFUL unsecured foans

I O AIFUL home equity loans

I OAIFUL small business loans

3 Small business loans at subsidiaries
O Unsecured loans at subsidiaries




s
. FUTURE POSITIONING OF AIFUL GROUP COMPANIES BY MARKET SECTOR

Consumer Finance

B Selbmmeslem |

| G el Gt | NomoGpiyles |

Banks

¥ AIFUL CORPORATION
 ETTRYTO “M{BE

i

YN OSHId]
l ‘

@:@ usinext @:,g
Mfé ¥ AIFUL COHPORATIOlf\ ‘
CARD ETRYTO VH{2E City's |
1
o !
q—!’;@ @usinext @Lg ‘

SIWVAIORIOD)

Accordingly, as the consumer credit market continues to expand, we
are following a policy of “redundancy and dispersion” rather than focusing
only on certain businesses. We are convinced this is the best approach to
implementing our comprehensive financial services strategy.

Taking the Comprehensive Financial Services Strategy to
the Next Level

AIFUL is taking many initiatives aimed at rapidly enlarging specific busi-
nesses as part of the comprehensive financial services strategy. In the con-
sumer finance industry, two of the largest companies, Acom and Pramise,
became members of megabank groups in 2004 through equity and business
alliances. AIFUL, however, has elected not to join a bank group because of
the many restrictions and limited benefits associated with such a move.
AIFUL will remain an independent corporate group that pursues growth by
fostering brands like AIFUL, LIFE, TRYTO and Wide. Acquisitions will be
used to serve more customers and raise receivables. The combination of a
diverse brand portfalio and acquisitions will support growth in the AIFUL
Group’s market share.

The credit card, small business loan and home equity loan sectors are
all targe markets with much growth potential. The AIFUL Group is targeting
these markets for rapid expansion as well as for strategic investments to
execute acquisitions and mergers. Moreover, since bank alliances can pro-
vide significant advantages in these three markets, AIFUL believes that
banking capability should be added to the group.

Cne AIFUL Group strategy is to diversify the customer base by using
loose alliances with financial institutions. fllustrating this is the recent alli-
ance with THE HIGASHI-NIPPON BANK, LIMITED to issue the Bank Alli-
ance Card. For small business loans, the operations of BUSINEXT, a joint
venture with Sumitomo Trust & Banking, demonstrated that small business
owners place much importance on a brand, when selecting a lender.
Partnering with this bank, and benefiting from its respected name, thus
played a big part in the growth of BUSINEXT. Furthermore, BUSINEXT has
developed a small business scoring system that no other financial institu-
tion can match. To maximize the benefits of this unprecedented technol-
ogy, AIFUL plans to enlarge its business portfolio even faster. Plans call for
quickly increasing the volume of small business loans through actions that
may include the acquisition of a bank if the opportunity arises. AIFUL Group
now has complete freedom in selecting business sectors for growth.
Making this possible is constant innovation in product development and
risk management based on the steadfast execution of the comprehensive
financial services strategy. Due to this process, the AIFUL Group has
advanced skills in consumer lcans, credit cards, small business loans and
home equity loans. The group thus has an invaluable edge over competi-
tors as realignments and intense competition continue to define the finan-
cial services sector.
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DIVERSIFICATION IN RISK AND BUSINESS DOMAINS

ASSEMBLING THE VISION

This diagram demonstrates how the AIFUL Group has diversified its exposure to
risk and business domains. Each group company is positioned relative to credit
risk and the business category where it is active.

Below is an outline of AIFUL Group companies.
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Consumer finance Credit cards and “Shinpan”

Small business loans

(Please refer to the management’s discussion and analysis section that begins cn page 31 for information on operating results by loan category)

Serves a broad range of customer nesds mainly through the pravision of unsecured loans.
Also extends home equity loans and small business loans. As of March 31, 2005, receiv-
ables totaled ¥1,471,767 million, 1.4% higher than one year earlier. Receivables are rising
steadily due to a strategy of diversifying the praduct lineup.

Established in 1952 as a consumer credit and credit card company, LIFE became a subsid-
jary of AIFUL in March 2001. Main businesses are credit cards and shopping loans.
Receivables were up 7.0% year on year to ¥751,553 million as of March 31, 2005. The
number of active accounts increased 8.0% to 11.91 million.

A company owned by AIFUL and Sumitomo Trust & Banking, BUSINEXT began operations in
January 2001. Extends small business loans primarily to borrowers in the moderate-risk cat-
egory within the 18% interest rate limit imposed by the Interest Rate Restriction Law.
Receivables were up 72.6% during the past fiscal year to ¥47,622 million as of March 31,
2005, mainly a reflection of the development of a scoring system for small business loans
requiring no collateral or guarantees.

This small business loan company became an AIFUL subsidiary in October 2002. Loans are
extended within the 29.2% interest rate limit imposed by the Capital Subscription Law.
Has recently expanded operations to the Tohoku and Hokkaido regions, raising the number
of offices by 12 during the past fiscal year to 50 as of March 31, 2005. Receivables
increased 46.3% to ¥45,673 million.

A consumer finance company formed in April 2004 through the integration of AIFUL subsid-
iaries Happy Credit, Sinwa and Sanyo Shinpan. At the end of March 31, 2005, receivables
totaled ¥58,121 million. TRYTO aims to increase earnings by taking advantage of the larger,
more efficient operating base created by the integration of the thres companies.

A medium-sized consumer finance company acquired by AIFUL in June 2004, Including
¥17,000 million of receivables that have been securitized and sold, receivables totaled
¥95,345 million as of March 31, 2005. Pursuing further improvements in operating effi-
ciency and sales activities by leveraging expertise of the AIFUL Group.
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Advantages of the Product Diversification Strategy

Praduct diversification is a pillar of AIFUL's management strategy.
AIFUL is the only major cansumer finance company committed to offer-
ing a diverse line of products, extending from mainstay unsecured con-
sumer loans to home equity loans and small business loans. Currently,
unsecured consumer loans account for more than 70% of receivables
at AIFUL. As all other consumer finance companies have seen their
receivables decline, AIFUL has consistently increased its receivables by
increasing sales of home equity loans and small business loans.

This preduct diversification strategy has three central
objectives.

The first is to consistently deliver stable earnings growth as the con-
sumer loan market matures by offering products not available from
competitors. Second is greater cost efficiency. Offering a number of
products at the same office using the same employees raises sales
efficiency. Third is diversification of business risk. Having a variety of
products with different risk-return profiles—such as in terms of cus-
tomer characteristics, average balances and loan rates—allows AIFUL
to avoid the risks associated with a loan partfolio that is excessively
concentrated on a specific customer segment. For example, while the
core customer base of consumer loans consists of young adults, home
equity loan customers are primarily middle-aged and older adults.

In the year ended March 2005, AIFUL had record-setting revenue
and earnings as the product diversification strategy raised receivables
1.4% to ¥1,471,767 million. Operating revenue increased 1.7% to
¥340,615 million and ordinary income rose 13.7% to ¥112,533 million.
This performance demanstrates the success of AIFUL's strategy of diver-
sifying its product selection.
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Large consumer finance companies have been increasing alliances
with banks and ather financial institutions to extend guarantees of con-
sumer loans and small business loans. This stance is one facet of ini-
tiatives to establish mare channels that can build ties with new cus-
tomers. Banks and other alliance partners use their cwn brands to sell
loans to customers. Consumer finance companies perform credit inves-
tigations and guarantee loans that they approve. These companies are
quickly enlarging this business as a means of establishing relationships
with new customers. Consumer loan applications are examined using
each company’s scoring system. Competition is intense among compa-
nies that have their own unsecured loan scoring models. Based on
actual data, the loan customers of banks and other alliance partners
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overlap with AIFUL's customer base by only about 10%. This shows
that guarantees are highly effective at creating inroads to new custom-
ers. Due to rapid expansion of AIFUL's consumer loan guarantees busi-
ness, there were guarantee alliances with 41 financial institutions as
of March 31, 2005 and loans guaranteed totaled ¥35,267 million, a
year-on-year increase of 35.9%.

In the small business loan category, AIFUL has established a scor-
ing system by using knowledge gained through the operation of
BUSINEXT, which is owned jointly with Sumitoma Trust & Banking,
and City's. Backed by expertise that no competitor can match, AIFUL is
rapidly increasing the number of alliances to take full advantage of its
position at the forefront of the small business loan guarantees market.
During the year ended March 2005, new alliances were formed with 25
financial institutions, raising the total to 32 at March 31, 2005. More
significantly, the volume of small business loans guaranteed rose
almost fivefold during the fiscal year to ¥7,912 million.
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After increasing steadily for many years, the volume of credit costs in
the year ended March 2005 finally turned downward. All major con-
sumer finance companies saw double-digit declines in their credit
costs. These events appear to confirm that the long-term rise in credit
costs has ended. AIFUL believes this is due to three factors.

First is the decline in predatory lenders. According to a survey of
personal bankruptcies by the Federation of Moneylenders Association
of Japan, about 50% of bankrupt individuals were victims of predatory
lending. In response to this serious social problem, the Moneylending
Business Restriction Law came into force in January 2004. Police
clamped down on predatory lending, backed by harsher penalties for
unregistered companies and bans on advertising and solicitations by
unregistered companies. The result was a swift decline in the number
of victims of predatory lenders.

The secand factor is the reluctance of finance companies to extend
loans. In 2000 and 2001, Japan's four major consumer finance compa-
nies were allowed to resume advertising on television. Commercials
succeeded in attracting a large number of new customers and boosting
loans outstanding. But taking on so much risk over a short time inevita-
bly leads to higher credit costs after a certain period of time. As its re-
ceivables increased during this period, AIFUL took many steps over
about two and a half years starting in late 2002 that were aimed at
limiting credit costs. For example, lending criteria were tightened and
the acceptance ratio {the number of loans extended as a proportion of
total loan applications) was lowered from 75% to about 65%.

The third factor behind the decline in credit costs is Japan's
strengthening economy, which has produced an impravement in em-
ployment conditions. The ratio of job openings to job seekers is rising
and the unemployment rate is falling. Because of these trends, per-
sonal bankruptcies in 2004 fell 12.8% to 211,000, the first year-on-year
decline since 1994.

The collective result of these three factors was a big fall in credit

costs in the past fiscal year.

AIFUL continues to face difficult market conditions for attracting new
customers. The fastest growth in new customers at large consumer fi-
nance companies occurred during Japan's asset-bubble period of the
late 1980s. Concerns about the future faded away as individuals saw
their incomes climb. People thus had no warries about repaying loans.
Compared with this period, the number of loan applications from new
customers is currently down by about 17%. In terms of loans extended,
the number of new customers is now 35% lower.

Shifts in consumers’ thinking are partly responsible for the 17%
decline in loan applications. The public hears frequent reports about
Japan's lackluster economy, predatory lenders and other problems. For-
tunately, consumer mindsets appear to be improving. There are struc-
tural factors, too. The downturn reflects the emergence of competitors
from other industries and the decline in Japan’s population of young
adults. But why are loan approvals down by about twice as much as
applications? Tighter loan approval standards at all companies are a
major cause. Now that credit costs have passed their peak, though,
these companies are switching to more aggressive postures. Indica-
tions thus paint to a recovery in the number of new accounts.
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AIFUL has seen the number of new customers decline in each of the
past three years. A rebound in new customers is expected in the cur-
rent fiscal year. Driving growth will be Japan's gradual economic
recovery and the ability to serve mare customer segments due to diver-
sification in the kinds of companies offering consumer loans. AIFUL is
increasing its actions to attract new customers in order to benafit from
this upturn in demand.

The first action is raising advertising and marketing expenditures
by about ¥3.0 billion compared with the previous fiscal year. The public
will see mare AIFUL television commercials and a large number of
Internet banner ads. The second action is increasing the number of
“Suguwaza” simple auto contract machines. Speed is the main
advantage. These machines meet customers’ needs by reaching a deci-
sion on a loan application in only about 10 minutes and issue loan
cards. AIFUL initially planned to open 50 booths with these machines
during the year ending in March 2006. Results from the first locations
have shown these booths to be more cost-efficient than canventional
unmanned branches. Furthermore, the machines demaonstrated their
ability to fulfill specific customer needs. Based on these results, AIFUL
decided at the end of June 2005 to open 250 " Suguwaza” booths dur-
ing the current fiscal year, five times more than originally planned.

Members of Japan's consumer finance industry are facing a much
different operating environment even compared with a few years ago.
Competition is mare heated. Companies from the IT and other indus-
tries are offering consumer loans. Interest rates are being used to cap-
ture market share. On a positive note, credit costs are finally declining.
By prioritizing actions to cope with these events, AIFUL believes that
the stable growth in its receivables will continue.
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Credit card company LIFE became a wholly owned subsidiary of AIFUL in

March 2001, giving AIFUL a presence in the consumer credit and credit
card business, a field with considerable growth potential. Established in
1952, LIFE developed into one of Japan's major shinpan companies.
However, a sharp drop in revenue and earnings due to weak consumer
spending in the aftermath of Japan's asset bubble and concerns among
lenders about LIFE's financial stability forced this company to file for
bankruptcy in June 2000. AIFUL was selected as the sponsor of this com-
pany in October 2000. Following the completion of payments to all debt
holders in March 2001, LIFE became a wholly owned subsidiary of AIFUL,
which had until then been devoted exclusively to consumer finance. With
LIFE, AIFUL also became a source of shopping credit and cash advances
through credit cards as well as a provider of shopping loans. This acquisi-
tion took the AIFUL Group much closer to its goal of becoming a source
of comprehensive financial services.
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When LIFE joined the AIFUL Group, it had a relatively low-margin
business portfolio, as was the case at most other shinpan companies
in Japan. Therefore, one element of LIFE's revitalization plan was to
terminate the unprofitable auto loan and housing loan businesses
while strengthening the credit card business. By restructuring the
business portfolio to focus on highly profitable activities, LIFE dra-
matically improved its profitability. This process continues with the
goal of firmly positioning LIFE as a shinpan company that excels in
terms of profitability and growth.

In the March 2002 fiscal year, LIFE’s first as an AiFUL Group
member, the company had ordinary income of ¥2.4 billion. The next
year, ordinary income rose to an all-time high of ¥8.0 bilijon and then
¥12.0 billion. In the fiscal year that ended in March 2005, ordinary
income rose to ¥16.5 billion, making a big contribution to growth in
consolidated earnings. LIFE has thus completed a transformation into
a highly profitable company that has performed much better than
peers such as Nicos and Orico.

/COMPARISON OF JAPAN’S MAJOR FOUR SHINPAN COMPANIES {Millians of yen);
Nicos Orico JACES
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005

Cardholders (thousand) 12,348 12,345 10,231 10,513 6,770 7,@@9]“

Total receivables outstanding™’ 3,693,317 3,369,233 4,135,358 4,134,085 2,613,135 2,638,@3@;

Instaliment receivables 519,378 486085 1,283,058 1,169,931 606,470 639,914 |

Loans {cash advances) 338,137 Bl 983,319 910,736 911 631 957,764 364,377 346,@3?

Guarantees ﬂk ' 2190619 1,892,432 1,940,669 2006380 1,642,288 ‘ﬂ,65ﬂ,5‘ﬂ3i

Operating revenue ﬂ‘ﬂ@j , 263,406 283,521 296,053 305,240 145,085 144,267 f

. Operating revenue margin*? 16.4% 16.9% 7.1% 7.5% 7.2% 7.8% 5.5% 5.‘5%;

Ordinary income 12081 & 12,051 32,774 30,906 39,457 11,312 1]3,2%;
*1. Includes off-balance-sheet receivables that have been securitized and sold (estimates based on earnings releases of each company).

*2. Gperating revenue divided by receivables J
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(MALCR SOURCES OF GROWTH )
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Credit Card Business

The primary reason for the strong eamings growth at LIFE is the
company'’s ability to consistently expand its credit card and shopping
loan businesses faster than the market as a whole.

In the core credit card business, the number of cardholders has
grown from 7.48 million when AIFUL acquired LIFE to 11.91 million in
March 2005, just four years later. LIFE has passed major shinpan
companies JACCS and Orico to become Japan's second-largest credit
card issuer after Nicos. Much of this growth was propelied by affinity
cards, which account for about 30% of all credit cards issued by LIFE.
These cards offer advantages for cardholders, card issuing partners
and LIFE. By making qualifying purchases, cardholders accumulate
points that can be used like cash to receive merchandise and other
benefits. Retailers benefit by using the point system to build a base
of loyal shoppers. The card also makes it easier to sell high-priced
merchandise, thus raising sales. For LIFE, affinity cards increase
credit card charge volume, leading to higher transaction fees as well
as interest income when cardholders purchase on credit.

Two components are vital to the success of affinity cards. One is
the establishment of agreements with retailers that serve a large num-
ber of customers. The other is the provision of a point system that is
highly appealing to customers. LIFE issues cards with a number of
major retailers. Amang them are apparel retailer Aoyama Capital, con-
sumer electronics retailers EIDEN and DEODEQ, and home improve-
ment center operator KOMERI. Together, large retailers account for
about 80% of the credit cards that LIFE issues sach year to new cus-
tomers. These relationships are instrumental to LIFE's ability to issue
more than 2 million cards every year.

The number of LIFE Proper Cards, issued by LIFE only, increased
7.8% during the past fiscal year to 207,000. Adding member stores and
allowing individuals to use the Internet to submit applications backed
this growth. Also contributing is a new visual identity campaign that
began in April 2004,

Card shopping transactions have grown along with the number of
cardholders. During the four-year period ended March 2005, these
transactions increased at an average annual rate of more than 15%,
rising from ¥233.5 billion to ¥378.1 billion. This outstripped the mar-
ket growth rate of about 6% per annum.

‘/A BUSINESS PORTFOLIO FOCUSED ON GROWTH {Millions of yen)\:Q
o0 as A3 B
S . 1< 0 S icichinge)
__ Total 4 702,202 731,383 +1% 733,581 +6%
Growinpbusinesses 603022 66078 +11% 75167 <9%
Credit card shopping 71,508 79,622 +11% 83,518 +5%
Shopping loans 173.560 197,123  +14% 211,796 +7%
Credit card cash advances 202,819 ‘ 209,300 +3% 224,772 +7%
Cash Plaza {unsecured loans) 135,543 1 157,630 +16% 176,744  +12%
Bank loan guarantees (new products) 19,590 | 26,046  +23% 28,336  +18%
Jewrsizing busingssss 89,179 83,830 -15% 78,4874 =11%
2,504 1,194 -52% 655  —45%
Housing loans 35,8606 30,726 -12% 28,074 -12%
Bank loan guarantees (previous products) 48,329 41,258 -15% 36389 -12%
Others 12,479 9650 -23% 9280 4% |
) Growing busiresses 86% 8%% - 91% ~
Downsizing businesses 14% 11% - %% -
N J
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Shopping Loans

The shopping loan market has contracted for seven consecutive years.
At the end of December 2003, shopping loan receivables totaled ¥11
tritlion according to data provided by the Japan Consumer Credit Indus-
try Association. Many companies are withdrawing from this market.
One reason is the widespread use of credit cards. Another is consumer
credit company strategies that prioritize credit cards. LIFE, however,
believes there is still growth potential because of its small market
share. Following its acquisition by AIFUL, LIFE revised and cancelled
low-margin and unprofitable shopping loan agreements. Based on a
palicy of avoiding dumping, LIFE adopted a system of revising credit
lings at member stores in accordance with their sales formats and
credit quality. This created & framewaork that raised interest rates. In
addition to raising the volume of receivables, this framework enables
LIFE to hedge risks associated with shopping loans. Although LIFE con-
tinues to shift resources to its credit card business, it is targeting shop-
ping loans by using an efficient sales organization already in place.
Businesses where prospects for higher yields are poor, such as auto
loans and housing loans, are being shut down. At the same time, LIFE
is expanding along with higher transaction volume and quality receiv-
ables supparted by growth in member stores. Consequently, total
receivables increased 11.3% in the past fiscal year, and the yield
improved by 0.3 of a percentage point to 9.5%.

ITAKINGRTHERMEEICARDINFAYN EVWIDIRECTION

Bank Alliance Card

Setting the stage for a new means of growth, LIFE formed & credit card
alliance in December 2004 with THE HIGASHI-NIPPON BANK, LIMITED.
In July 2005, the Bank Alliance Card was unveiled. This card functions

as a bank cash card and a LIFE credit card complete with the ability to
take out cash advances, thereby offering greater convenience for cus-
tomers. LIFE expects that this alliance will help increase its cardholder
base by providing a channel to reach new types of cardholders.

By further raising emphasis on the credit card business, LIFE plans to
issue 2.18 million new cards during the year ending in March 2006, rais-

ing the number of cardholders to 12.8 million. Based on this growth,
LIFE expects to raise credit card receivables by 6.4% and the balance
of credit card cash advances by 7.4% (both managed assets basis).

LIFE plans to take many actions to build on its immense base of
affinity card agreements with prominent companies. To establish a
foundation for even more growth, more card alliances with financial
institutions are planned, such as for bank alliance cards. LIFE is also
considering the start of a corporate credit card business. Through
steps like these, LIFE believes it can raise the number of cardholders
from the present 11.91 million to 20 million. An infrastructure is
already in place that produces more than 2 million new cards every
year. By pursuing economies of scale as the cardholder base
expands, LIFE is confident that credit card business growth wiil trans-
late directly intc higher earnings.

\
E/PLAN FOR YEAR ENDING MARCH 2006
i (managed assets basis)
| H

| Receivables f Y799, 587 mittion F up @u@%

Operating revenue | ¥135,458 mivion | up 9::30/0
: Ordinary income | ¥21 p@@@ mauamj Up Z?.:ﬂ% :
z l
. /
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Established in January 2001, BUSINEXT provides mainly small business
loans to moderate-risk borrowers at interest rates of no more than
18% as prescribed by the Interest Rate Restriction Law. AIFUL hoids
60% of the company's equity and Sumitomo Trust & Banking owns the
remaining 40%.

BUSINEXT's loan business targets the approximately 5.6 million
companies in Japan with no more than 20 employees. In the past,
these companies had three primary financing options: loans with high
interest rates structured for high-risk borrowers; loans from financial
institutions secured by real estate or other collateral; and loans from
family and friends.

Recently, there has been growing interest among banks of all types
and sizes in moderate-risk small business foans. However, since corpo-
rate loans by banks are typically more than ¥10 million, bank loans are
restricted to middle-market companies. Furthermore, banks adopt the
basic stance of limiting credit risk when extending credit to small busi-
nesses. That forces small business owners to meet demanding condi-
tions, such as consistent profitability. For these reasons, the actual
supply of loans from financial institutions is inadequate to meet the
enormous demand for loans that still exists among small businesses.
Furthermore, competition in the moderate-risk business loan market is
minimal. Another reason for the appeal of this market is structural eco-
nomic changes that are expected as Japan's economy recovers. AIFUL
therefore believes that the moderate-risk business loan market has much
growth patential.

7+ 020  AIFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005

Speed is a key factor distinguishing the loans of BUSINEXT. The Card
Loan is often extended on the same day as the application; the Busi-
ness Loan, which is for working capital or bridging finance, can be
aporoved in less than three days. These loans combine the sense of
security offered by the Sumitomo Trust & Banking name while simplify-
ing the loan process. BUSINEXT thus breaks the commanly held per-
ception of banks as lenders that require extensive documentation and
long periods of time for credit investigations.

Clearly setting BUSINEXT apart from other specialists in small
business loans is its reliance on direct mail rather than face-to-face
sales activities. This allows BUSINEXT to use a network of only four
offices in which each employee manages about 600 customer
accounts. This highly efficient, low-cost structure is a key reason that
BUSINEXT can meet customers’ needs for loans that have reasonable
interest rates.

4 ™
BUSINEXT LOANS OUTSTANDING |
{Millions of yen) (Thousands) 5

50,000 - - 18
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30,000 -19 |
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In April 2004, BUSINEXT started using two scoring models: one for sole
proprietorships and one for companies. Both models are based on the

company's three years of data in extending credit to these borrowers.
This gives BUSINEXT a unique business model for loans that require no
collateral or guarantees. With these scaring models, the company was
able 10 post remarkable growth. Receivables increased 72.6% to
¥47,622 million during the past fiscal year while extending 13,000 new
loans, 6.8% more than one year earlier. Despite this growth, charge-
offs were held to less than 4% of all receivables.

Higher receivables were responsible for an 80.6% increase in oper-
ating revenue to ¥5,445 million. Earnings benefited from the growth in
revenue as well as measures to use BUSINEXT's low-cost operating
structure to operate even more efficiently. Consequently, ordinary
income was ¥633 million and net income was ¥601 million, the first
orofits in BUSINEXT's history.

BUSINEXT will continue to aim for strong growth in its receivables by

tapping its many strengths, notably as the frontrunner in the moder-
ate-risk business loan market. The two scoring madels that now in-
corporate four years of operating data are another invaluable advan-
tage. Other strengths are the respected Sumitomo Trust & Banking
name and synergies with other AIFUL Group members. Plans include
expanding the office network while carefully managing expenses.
Targeting mainly cities with a population of at least 500,000,
BUSINEXT will open offices for the purposes of raising its market
profile and serving more businesses.

In the fiscal year ending in March 2006, BUSINEXT expects greater
demand for funds among small companies because of Japan’s
rebounding economy. One indication of this upturn is the current sharp
decline in corporate bankruptcies. BUSINEXT thus expects rapid
growth to continue. The company plans to raise receivables 46.0% to
¥69,516 million, operating revenue 56.4% to ¥8,517 million and ordi-
nary income 116.7% to ¥1,372 million.

rPLAN FOR YEAR ENDING MARCH 2006 )
Receivables } %Q,Sﬂﬁmilﬂinn up @@:@%
Operating revenue ¥8,5ﬂ 7 million | up 5[&@:’%

| :
Ordinary income ¥1,372 mittion|  UP ﬂ ﬂ @j]%

. J
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City’s Corporation

City's was acquued by AIFUL in October 2002. This company special-
izes in loans to sole proprietorships and small and medium-sized busi-
nesses in the high-risk category. Loans are extended within the 23.2%
interest rate limit imposed by the Capital Subscription Law.

in the field of loans for high-risk sole proprietorships and small and
medium-sized businesses, outstanding loans fell sharply about six
years ago at major lenders like LOPRO Corporation and SFCG Co., Ltd.
in the wake of mass media reports of abusive lending practices in this
sector of the loan business. Despite the subsequent public outrage trig-
gered by these practices, high-risk business loans have been increasing
steadily, except at the two major lenders (see table below). This is
proof of the solid demand for loans among sole proprietorships and
small and medium-sized businesses. However, there is still an inad-
equate number of companies willing to make loans to these high-risk

borrowers because of the inability of banks and many other financial
institutions to serve this borrower segment. Consequently, this is a
market that has substantial growth potential while being largely
immune to excessive competition. City’s is therefore taking aggressive
measures to expand its operations while conducting a suitable risk
management program.

City's has a business model that facilitates the provision of loans that
meet specific requirements of small and medium-sized companies
unable to obtain satisfactory financing from other sources due to credit
risk and ather issues. The main product offered by City's is the Busi-
ness Loan, which accounts far about 90% of all its loans outstanding.
This loan takes advantage of City's outstanding know-how in the inves-
tigation of guarantors. Due to this expertise, ths ratio of bad debt

/’ Ia
_THE SME LOAN MARKET |N JAPAN *1 (Millions of yen) (Millions of yen|:
| TE e T I
T Rz <loutsiv ol oz lousianding R ofchanae) mmomtly  Soldmp  (omsowtnly  Sddmmp |
SFCG*2 332610 | 295997 -11.0% | 33031 7.8% | 378654 1.3% |
\ ; :
LOPRO ‘1 322,214 ! 248,922 -23.8% 96,830 -46.7% ¢ 102,805 5.2% ‘
i Other SME loan companies . 273,085 | 277,773 1.7% 326,381 10.2% . 379,051  16.1% ;f
. Total 927,883 820,692 -11.6% 776,242 -3.6% 859,550 10.9%
i *'Figures are based on data provided in financial releases of these companies.
. *2Loans for SFCG are as of January 31 because this company ends its fiscal year on July 31. :
N /
e \
i GROWTH IN SMALL BUSINESS LOANS AT THE AIFUL GROUP [Millions of yen);
e vy boelmp | maseuly  Gddmp  losasmly  Gddmp oy Balelng
‘ BUSINEXT 15397 89.7% | 27,591 79.2% @ 47,622 726% | 69,516 45.0%
; City's 28,176 - n‘ 31,214 7.0% £5,673 46.3% 70,033 53.3%
| ‘
AN J

%022 AIFUL CORPORATION ~Annual Report 2005




charge-offs for Business Loan receivables is consistently under 2%. In
addition, City's has used AIFUL know-how to estahlish a system for
selling to sole proprietorships and companies the home equity loan.
This product is currently about 7% of total loans at City's. This com-
pany is taking many other actions as well to meet an even broader
spectrum of funding needs among its customers. Exemplifying this drive
is the New Business Loan, which eliminates the need for a guarantor.

(HUSINESS RESLLYS
- )

in the fiscal year that ended in March 2005, the performance of small
and medium-sized companies improved as Japan's economic rebound
gained momentum, reducing the number of bankruptcies. During the
fiscal year, City's opened 13 offices, mostly to establish its first pres-
ence in Tohoku and Hokkaido. This raised the company’s office network
to 50 locations. Growth in the service network sparked rapid growth at
City's. The number of new loans rase by 107.7% ta 9,000 and receiv-
ables surged 46.3% to ¥45,673 million. Due to & large increase in inter-
est income from loans, operating revenue increased 29.2% to ¥9,579
million. However, expenses were much higher because of up-front
investments for new offices and other facilities and growth in the
workforce. Also contributing to the increase in expenses was a steep
drap in the provision for allowance for bad debt in the March 2004 fis-
cal year due to a one-time factor. The result was a 15.2% decrease in
ordinary income to ¥2,585 miflion, but this was well above the ¥1,811
million in the company’s business plan for the fiscal year.

Ve N

i CITY’S LOANS OUTSTANDING I
{Millions of yen) (Thousands) 1
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City's is focusing on several elements that will be crucial to its ability
1o sustain its current robust growth. More offices will be opened to
increase access to small and medium-sized companies, a customer
segment with substantial demand for loans. Actions will also target
improvements in operating efficiency and personnel training to build a
more powerful operating base.

Expansion of the office network will continue in all areas of Japan
based on City's belief that there is still considerable potential for open-
ing offices in and around Japan's large cities. To raise efficiency, City's
is centralizing the handling of customer telephone calls and deepening
ties with craditworthy borrowers. To strengthen its workfarce, City's is
seeking greater synergies with other AIFUL Group companies by
sharing know-how, primarily through personnel exchanges with AIFUL
and BUSINEXT.

City's, which targets high-risk borrowers, and BUSINEXT, which
targets moderate-risk borrowers, can together serve a diverse range of
customer segments. For example, customers that do not meet the loan
criteria at BUSINEXT have the potential of becoming City's customers.
City's and BUSINEXT plan to work even mare closely to meet the fund-
ing requirements of many types of businesses.

In the fiscal year ending in March 2008, City's plans to incraase its
service network to 83 locations. This growth is expected to raise new
loans by 66.7% to 15,000 and receivables by 53.3% to ¥70,039 million.
Based on these figures, City's is forecasting a 53.6% increase in oper-
ating revenue to ¥14,714 million and an 18.0% increase in ordinary
income to ¥3,050 million. This performance will make a big contribu-
tion to growth in consolidated earnings.

e N
' PLAN FOR YEAR ENDING MARCH 2006 ;

A |
| Receivables ; W@,@BQ million up 531:30/0
UP 531:60/0

V3,050 miion.  uP U DU ﬂ

| Operating revenue

¥14,714 mistion .

' Ordinary income

|
{

A J/
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TRYTO CORPORATION
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SURALER FNARNGE COMPARIE

Acquiring relatively small consumer finance companies offers a num-

GO RESISNIANEAND)

ber of advantages. Most important is the ability to target more custom-
ers by assembling a larger portfolio of brands. The graph below shows
the number of new loans at AIFUL and Japan's three ather major con-
sumer finance companies. New loans declined at all companies during
the four-year period that ended in March 2004. Mainly responsible was
a reluctance of consumers to take out loans because of Japan's lack-
fuster economy. In the fiscal year that ended in March 2005, new loans
at the four companies were flat or slightly lower despite signs of an
economic rebound. Holding down growth this time is intense competi-
tion. Shinpan companies, retailer card companies and bank card com-
panies are all expanding their retail operations. Another source of com-
petition is new entrants to the consumer finance industry, such as
members of the IT industry.

In response, the AIFUL Group has established & framework capable
of generating growth amid this fierce competition. By assembling a large
partfalio of brands, including AIFUL, LIFE, Wide, TRYTO, TCM, Passkey
and others, the group has achieved a large increase in the number of
new loans. As the number of companies offering consumer loans grows,
Japan's consumer finance market is expanding as these companies form
relationships with more customer segments. The result is an increasingly

[NEW LOANS AT JAPAN’S MAJOR FOUR CONSUMER h

FINANCE COMPANIES
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diverse customer base for consumer finance companies. These trends
make AIFUL confident of generating significant henefits from its strategy
of offering services through many brands by acquiring relatively small
consumer finance companies.

TRYTO

TRYTO CORPORATION

TRYTQ CORPORATION, a wholly owned subsidiary, was formed in April
2004 through the integration of three AIFUL consumer finance subsid-
iaries: Happy Credit, Sinwa and Sanyo Shinpan. Combining these com-
panies created a more efficient operating structure, giving TRYTO the
ability to conduct aggressive sales activities.

In the year that ended in March 2005, TRYTO tightened its credit
standards in consideration of the current operating enviranment. Be-
cause of this stance, receivables totaled ¥58,121 million and operating
revenue was ¥14,539 million, both slightly below the combined results
of the three predecessor companies in the prior fiscal year. Ordinary in-
come was ¥2,807 million and net income was ¥1,407 million, both
about twice as high as in the prior fiscal year mainly because of a
27.4% decline in credit costs.

In the current fiscal year, TRYTO is taking several actions aimed at

raising receivables and earnings. One is using AIFUL's expertise to
strengthen sales of loans collateralized by real estate. Anather is capturing
more synergies with other AIFUL Group companies. Sharing information on
prospective customers is one examp'e. Collaboration will also encompass
expertise in managing receivables and operating training programs and
other personnel systems. In the year ending in March 2006,
TRYTO plans to raise operating revenue 11.7%
to ¥16,244 million, erdinary
income 26.4%
to ¥3,548 mil-
lion and net in-
come 43.8% to
¥2 025 million.



WIDE

Wide Corporation

Wide is primarily engaged in the provision of unsecured loans te indi-
viduals in the high-risk segment. AIFUL purchased this company in
June 2004. A midsized consumer finance company operating mainly in
eastern Japan, Wide had 33 offices and 260 unmanned offices, a total
of 293 locations, at the end of March 2005. There is minimal overlap
with the operations of TRYTO, which is active primarily in western
Japan, making possible highly productive sales activities.

By joining the AIFUL Group, Wide has gained the ability to use the
group’s credit standing to procure funds at a lower cost. Operating
expenses are lower, too, because of economies of scale through the
placement of orders with other group companies. In addition, Wide is
using the group’s sales expertise to raise its receivables and conduct
more efficient sales activities. By using these advantages, Wide
expects to generate higher earnings in the coming years.

In the year that ended in March 2005, Wide had receivables of
¥95,345 million at year-end, including ¥17,000 million of off-balance-
sheet receivables that were securitized and sold, and operating rev-
enue of ¥23,312 million. Credit costs were higher as it conformed to
AIFUL Group standards for bad debt charge-offs and reserves, based on
a conservative assessment of receivables. These expenses were offset
by lower interest expenses as an AIFUL Group member and improve-
ments in other expense items as operating efficiency was improved.
This allowed Wide to report ordinary income of ¥1,692 million, well
above the initial plan of ¥1,050 million.

Prior to its acquisition by AIFUL, Wide was unable to make signifi-
cant investments in TV commercials and other advertising due to
limited financial resources. As an AIFUL Group member, Wide is now
raising awareness of its brand through TV commercials, the Internet,
media that target women and other high-profile activities. Due in part
to the benefits of advertising campaigns, Wide expects to raise receiv-
ables by 7.7% to ¥102,658 million during the year ending in March
2006 and increase operating revenue by 9.7% to ¥25,578 million. To hold
down expenses, the company will continue to use low-cost funding
sources. Results will also reflect a decline in credit costs because of the
substantial expenses recorded last year to conform to AIFUL Group stan-
dards. Accordingly, Wide is forecasting a 325.4% increase in ordinary
incame to ¥7,197 million. Achieving this goal will enable Wide to play a
big part in raising consolidated earnings in the March 2006 fiscal year.

Others

TCM. Co. Ltd. and Passkey Co., Ltd.

AIFUL purchased TCM. Co. Ltd., which is active mainly in Nagano Pre-
fecture, in February 2005. This midsized consumer finance company
became insalvent in February 2004. In April 2004, with the approval of
the Tokyo District Court, AIFUL signed a sponsorship contract with the
bankruptcy trustee of TCM. Work is now under way to restore TCM to
financial health as quickly as possible. At the end of March 2005, TCM
had receivables of ¥3,212 million.

Passkey Co., Ltd., which operates in Hokkaido, joined the AIFUL
Group in March 2005. Passkey's results are not included in AIFUL's
consolidated income statement for the year ended March 2005, but the
consolidated balance sheet includes Passkey receivables of ¥8,342 mil-
lion as of February 28, 2005. Both TCM and Passkey are feading con-
sumer finance brands in their respective markets.

The AIFUL Group is dedicated to sustaining the steady growth in
consumer finance business receivables, mainly at AIFUL, while making
aggressive investments in other companies when the opportunities
emerge in order to increase its market share.
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NUMBER OF NEW UNSECURED LOANS AT JAPAN'S
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50,000 -
f
- 40,000 |
; 30,000 -
| 20,000
1 10,000 &
i 02 03 04
|
; — AlFUL — Promise ~ Takefuji ~~ Acom
Y

A

NON-CONSOLIDATED LOANS OUTSTANDING OF
 JAPANESE CONSUMER FINANCE COMPANIES

L (Millions of yen)

lemmseutending
1] Acom 1,601,733 ‘

2| Takefuji 1,568,725

3| AIFUL 1,471,767

41 Promise 1,326,794

5| CFHJ 1,000,000

6| GE Consumer Finance 880,000

7| Sanyo Shinpan 419,663

8| ORIX Credit 300,000

9| SHINKI 211,828

10| Mobit 201,282
16| Wide 95,345 J
24| TRYTO 58,121 |
-| TCM 9212
? - | Passkey 8,342 |

{Calculated based on data from The Nikkei Financial Daily and data

i

provided in financial releases of all companies)

! NUMBER OF CARDHOLDERS AT JAPAN’S FOUR
i MAJOR SHINPAN COMPANIES

i (Thousands)
\
|
| 15,000 -
|
/OR

| 10,000 O—/ 2o

5,000 [
{ o -

02 03 04 05

| ©oelUE oo Nes oo 0Oico <o JACCS
9

OPERATING REVENUE MARGIN AT JAPAN’S FOUR

. MAJOR SHINPAN COMPANIES

(%]

20

15 =

o @ LIFE

I

Qe O O

o———0— o o
02 03 04 05 ‘
©0-<- Nicos oo 0Orico o JACES |
> 7e ;
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

THE AIFUL GROUP CSR FRAMEWORK

Dedicated to sustainable growth

Based on the corporate philosophy “Win the good favor of society,” the AIFUL Group is com-
mitted to responding to the needs of all customers. For this purpose, activities are focused on
becoming a comprehensive finance group that optimizes convenience for customers and has
a reputation for innovative thinking and reliability. To translate the corporate philosophy into
acticns, ail employees of the AIFUL Group must perform their work with an awareness of social
obligations. With this in mind, the Group has a corporate governance framework, a compli-
ance system and other components that provide the basis for achieving sustainable growth
whiie serving as a responsible corporate citizen.

The diagram below presents the structure of AIFUL’s corporate governance, infcrmation
disclosure, business execution, administration, internal control and risk management systems.

m o | | BOARD OF CORPORATE AUDITORS
o .0
B s %003'0 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2 audits T —— ‘
) ° {meets weekly, reaches decisions quickly) 6.0 g G AURITERS: =g it
Z o7 ’ e %% & naviauals (insluding 8 extemeliabdiors)
! e e T LS
Z | mnecmn-s R :
s e—_— e e e e e e e e e e e b e
o) | " - — P . ; N
% ) A . < : Reports‘ T Discussions
anagemen
= ! BRANDPROJECT Suparieion COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE !
2 ! Compliance hatling Chairman: AIFUL representative director |
L : “ntemmmSthﬂt‘;j_ﬁj:} Members: Includes an external attorneys s !
| '
{ N | s Guidance |
/ Suparvision o |
: Z| | HEADOFFICEUNITS | oA ere | [© ~: LOANBUSINESS |
& | information gathering | HEADQUARTERS
Ul [ e BRI ‘ !
Lo R : >
\ | (B Vipnagammen Gommies) ar (s AN 6 §reus Internal audits .| fOANIBUSINESS) |
= i zS| e oo DERARTMEN,
o | | limemmatien Monagerenm Ofse) | © O | eonpanies) ! ‘ v !
& \ BERNG cliplManagementisection S | i
@ i | (memegare of gioup cempenios) | - ! Support
5] 1 H o Zz= )
] i
I | 20 | ; !
2 - ; (VESTER > Tn TRATINE i 1 . !
&  Opinions of ‘ 5 ; o BT o Bt BRANGHIOEEIGHGREUR
9 investors and others g H E ; Training i :
w !
ae v . = | :
g (EE ) E 8 | — | | T |
& i J S CEPARTNENT || o '
of matlenals b § ; P ‘ T & v ‘
Fund procurement EINANCH g % CENIER] I Training [ RN G [
> wevsrEms) |5 = | ! |
! s = Y-S
f I s T ! !
T N P S A | Replies |
) Participation/Advice
2 Consultations -
s v v —9{ EXGTERNANATTORNEY.SEEE
@ GROUP COMPANIES S CORPORATE
> >OO°OOAudits égg{}'gns OF Questions/Consultati
( DIRECETORS OF EROUP CONPANIES | 05, R P NIES c-usmmsns i
AN
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AIFUL has four corparate auditors, three of whom are from outside the
group, to supervise management of the company. The auditors attend
weekly meetings of the Board of Directors, performing supervisory duties
from an independent, neutral standpoint. The auditors also attend monthly
meetings of the Compliance Committee, an advisory body to the Board of
Directors, and work closely with the Inspection Department, the company's
internal auditing unit, to maintain an effective preventive auditing system.
Furthermore, AIFUL's corporate auditors, along with the corporate auditors
of each group company, work with the company’s Group Management Sec-
tion and Inspection Department to provide a supervisory system for the
management of group companies.

'KI . REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE A
AUDITORS ’

Remuneration for AIFUL directors and corporate auditors for the fiscal year that ended in
| March 2005 was as follows.

J (Millions of yen}
Remuneration for directors (19 individuals) 380 {
Remuneration for corporate auditors {5 individuals) 61 “' §
Total 42 |

2. REMUNERATION FOR INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

! Remuneration for the AIFUL Group's independent accountant for the fiscal year that ended in |
March 2005 was as follows. !

i‘ {Millions of yen)

51 Contractual payments for audit certification 70 |
g Other payments 39 "
| | Total 109 | |
l\ )
QMPLIAN(EE ]

In April 2002, the Compliance Committee was established as an advisory
body to the Board of Directors. At its monthly mestings, this committee
examines risk-related data, preventive measures involving risks, and
employee training programs in line with committee policies, and takes
other actions to enhance the company-wide compliance system. The AIFUL
Group Ethical Guidelines have been prepared and distributed to all employ-
ees. For same time, the group has had a hotline to the Personnel Division
and Inspection Department for reporting violations of ethics and providing
advice. In addition, a Customer Service Center has been set up within the
Legal Department, providing quick responses to guestions and complaints
from customers. Furthermore, the center provides guidance and training to
sales departments, works closely with the Compliance Committee to
enhance customer satisfaction and builds a more powerful legal compli-
ance system. In June 2003, a compliance hotline was set up and internal
rutes for reparting compliance violations were established in order to pre-
vent the occurrence of violations of laws, regulations and internal rules.

The Risk Management Committee, which is part of the Management Plan-

ning Headguarters, takes the lead in gathering information on existing and
potential risks at the company. The committee works with the Investor
Relations Office, Public Relations Department, Legal Department and other
units to maintain a crisis management system. To prepare for the April 1,
2005 full enforcement of Japan's Personal Information Protection Law,
AIFUL started a personal information protection project in April 2004. This
project conducted a comprehensive review of safety management systems,
from the standpoints of personnel, the organization and technology, for the
purpose of ensuring the proper handling of personal information and pre-
venting unauthorized access to this information.

AIFUL has established an action plan ta be prepared for the occurrence
of problems associated with personal information or corporate information.
In addition, an information contingency plan has been established. Prima-
rily the responsibility of the Information Management Office within the
Management Planning Headquarters, this plan provides for quick and
appropriate responses in the event of an emergency.

(ﬁ@ EITZENSHIR oS J

Based on the corporate philosophy “Win the good favor of society,” the
AIFUL Group sponsors and supports many activities, with a particular
focus on sporting events. Among the best known events are the AIFUL
Cup Golf Tournament, the LIFE Card Women's Golf Tournament, and the
All-Japan University Women's Invitational Relay Race. LIFE issues char-
ity cards in which a portion of purchases is directed to a number of chari-
ties run by volunteers. in June 2005, LIFE issued the TRX Card, which
directs donations to a nature conservancy group, further increasing its

support for non-profit organizations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AIFUL CORPORATION  (as of June 24, 2005)

President and CEQ Directors
Yoshitaka Fukuda Yasutaka Fukuda
Yoshimasa Nishimura
Senior Managing Director and Koji Imada
Representative Director Takashi Koumoto
Taichi Kawakita Masami Munetake
Yasuo Yanagibashi
Senior Managing Directors Masayuki Sato
Katsuhide Horiba Hiroshi Abe
Sadatoshi Kobayashi Kazumitsu Oishi
Tsuneo Sakai
Managing Director Kazuyoshi Wakamatsu

Shintaro Hashima

LHFE C@W Lﬁ@‘]o {As of June 24, 2005)

Chairman Directors

Yoshitaka Fukuda Tetsuya Goto
Toshiki Yamanishi
Vice-Chairman Seiji Yamada
Toshihiko Nakamoto
Katsuhide Horiba
President Hiroshi Abe

Kazuyuki Isono

Makoto lwai

Senior Managing Directors
Masayuki Sato
Gen Hashimoto

Managing Director
Syouichiro Nakata
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Standing Corporate Auditors
Masanobu Hidaka
Yoshitaka Ebisuzaki
Yasuo Hotta

Corporate Auditor

Yoshinobu Azuma

Standing Corporate Auditor
Tadashige Horioka

Corporate Auditors
Yoshitaka Ebisuzaki
Keiji Kimoto
Minoru Shimamura
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Note: Figures in the financial section are based on audited English-language
statements. Figures in the feature section and review of operations are based
on Japanese financial statements. Due to certain reclassifications, some
figures and items do not match.
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SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002

FOR THE VEAR:
Total income 239,200 281,719 400,014
Total expenses 154,490 189,145 338,166
Credit costs 40,307 59,194 42,576
Income before income taxes and minority interests 84,710 92,574 61,848
Income taxes 42,399 44,371 27,385
Deferred income taxes 1,793 (1.833) (8,908)
Net income 44,104 48,253 35,064

AT VEAR-ZXND:

Loans 1,001,080 1,261,042 1,482,796
Bad debts 57,668 79,913 94,854
Loans in legal bankruptcy 16,299 13,071 16,457
Nonaccrual loans 15,797 25,644 28,723

Accruing loans contractually
past due three months or
more as to principal or

interest payments 5,251 7,196 11,945
Restructured foans 20,321 34,002 37,729
Total assets 1,182,468 1,865,537 2,029,834
Allowance for bad debts 56,720 98,395 109,337
Total liabilities 979,565 1,557,838 1,604,780
Interest-bearing debt 892,169 1,239,265 1,344,273
Minority interests - 1,149 35M
Total shareholders' equity 252,903 306,550 421,343

PEE SHARE DATA (VER):

Net income 349.38 379.54 260.00
Net income — diluted - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 2,003.48 2,407.83 3,015.34
Cash dividends 60 50 50

RATIC (%):

Shareholders’ equity ratio 214 16.4 207
ROE 193 15.7 9.6
ROA 40 26 1.8

QTHER DATA:
Number of shares

outstanding at year-end 56,103,000 84,876,000 93,376,000
Number of employees
at year-end 3,263 5,750 5,810

We started compiling our financial statements on a consolidated basis starting the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001.
Thus, figures for prior years are provided only on a non-consolidated basis.

{Reference) 2000 2001 2002
Operating Revenue 238,532 280,656 397,162
Ordinary Income 85,009 103,533 105,067
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2004

{Millions of yen)

pame

_ _ 00 5
451,168 479,473 220,557
343,715 375,659 STT233
138.479 157,349 TE5L3D
107,453 103,814 C28,642

47,426 41,016
{10,129) (5,158)
59,911 62,548
1,670,782 1,786,940 213,502
120,399 149,826 TEEIE3
20,830 28,637 31,225
39,897 52,452 C5.A8%
16,503 17,820 25,049
43,169 50,917 52,784
2,282,113 2,332,761 2,87
132,130 145,757
1,792,093 1,780,575
1,504,969 1,513,812
4,029 4,682
485,991 547,504
425.06 440,85 FE3.35
3,428.97 3,863.06
60 60 T
213 235 2643
13.2 12.1 8.
28 2.7 3.3
94,690,000 94,690,000
B 6,123 5,969 . 2510
~ {Millions of yen)
2003 2004 L 2005
449,458 473,458 518,416
11,797 112,446 135,294

Notes

1.

On May 20, 1999, each common, par value share held as of March 31, 1999, was
split into 1.2 shares according 1o the provisions of Article 218 of the Japanese
Commercial Code. As a result, the outstanding stock volume increased by 8,350,500
shares. Net income per share for the fiscal year through March 2000 was calculated
as if the stock split had been implemented at the beginning of the term.

. On May 22, 2000, each common, par value share held as of March 31, 2000, was

split into 1.5 shares according to the provisions of Article 218 of the Japanese
Commercial Code. As a result, the outstanding stock volume increased by 28,051,500
shares. Net income per share for the fiscal yzar through March 2001 was calculated
as if the stock split had been implemented at the beginning of the term.

. OnJune 1, 2000, 721,500 new shares were issued through an exchange of shares

agreement concluded with Sinwa Co., Ltd.

. On August 25, 2001, 3,500,000 new shares were issued through a domestic public

offering, while 5,000,000 new shares were issued through an overseas public
offering, primarily in Eurape.

. On October 1, 2002, 1,314,000 new shares were issued through an exchange of

shares agreement concluded with City Green Corporation in connection with the
QOctober 2002 acquisition of City's, & small business lean company.

. Starting in 2003, shareholders” equity per share, net income per share, and diluted

net income per share were calculated based on the Accounting Standard for
Earnings Per Share (Accounting Standard No. 2} and the Implementation Guidance
for Accounting Standard for Earnings Per Share (Implementation Guidance for
Accounting Standard No. 4).

. On May 23, 2005, each common, par value share held as of March 31, 2005, was

splitinto 1.5 shares according to the provisions of Article 218 of the Japanese
Commercial Code. As a result, the outstanding stock volume increased by
47,345,000 shares.

. Netincome and total shareholders’ equity per share for all the fiscal years shown

in the table through March 2005 were calculated as if the May 23, 2005 stock
split (See Note. 7) had been implemented at the beginning of the term.
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FINANCIAL DATA

AiFUL GROUP

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING {Millions of yen)
(Mitlions of yen) Bl T e e 114 . o o T e
3,000,000 Total Receivables Outstanding 1,821,875 2,002,499 2,210,889 2,298,444
2500,000 Loans 1,407,636 1,635,954 1,833,702 1,807,655
2 000,000 i Unsecured 1,167,837 1,332,218 1,442,980 1477430
T o Home Equity 227,601 278,893 325,437 346,183
1,500,000 |- Small Business 12,198 24,843 65,285 84,042
1,000,000 |- Credit Card Shopping Loans 83,490 51,687 64,117 71528
500000 Per-item Shopping Loans 165,970 164,715 184,324 85,650
' Loan Guaranteess 184,778 140,143 128745 *33610
01 02 03 04
E Unsecured " Home Equity
Smali Business T~ Credit Card Shopping Loans
_ BB Per-item Shopping Loans. B Loan Guarantees
TOTAL INCOME / NET INCOME (Millions of yen)
il of yer BEED L BT T
600,000 — — 80000 | Total Income 281,718 400,014 451,168 479,473 ,
£00,000 | Interest on Loans 272,237 359,318 406,484 429513 E28LET
130000 o | 80.000 Unsecured 234,374 311,910 348,887 358,142 397,858
o < Home Equity 34,974 43,150 47,650 55,022 BE580
3000001 - -| 20000 Small Business 2,888 4,257 9,945 18,348 I3
200,000 — Credit Card Shopping Loans - 6,742 7,878 8,140
00000 420000 | per-item Shopping Loans - 10,353 15,179 15,508
' Loan Guarantees - 4,076 4133 5,062
- 0 22577
01 02 03 04 05 Other 9,482 19,525 17,494 20,750 2577
& Interest on Loans . Credit Card Shopping Loans | Net Income 48,253 35,084 5991 62548 BIR
& Per-item Shopping Loans | . Loan Guarantees
& Qther +Z- {2+ Net Income
TOTAL ASSETS / ROA {Millions of yen / %)
{Millions of yen / %) : e Zﬁﬂ‘ fé 7
3,000,000 - -4 Total Assets 1,865,537 2,029,634 2,282,113 2,332,761
2,500,000 ROA (%) 26 1.8 28 2.7
2000000 -~ e 7 ROA=Net Income / Total Assets (average) x 100 {%}
\M\ ///
1,500,000 1 NS -2
1,000,000 |~
-1
500,000
0
01 02 03 04

& Total Assets .2+ RDA
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P e

" SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY / ROE
_ [Millions of yen / %]

it

{Millions of yen / %)

2005

800,000 ~20 Shareholders’ Equity 306,550 471,343 485,991 547,504 817333
ROE {%) 15.7 96 13.2 12.1 B
so000l- R = s .
\ o E ROE=Net Income / Shareholders’ Equity (average) x 100 (%)
4 \ /; ~\7Cw’
© 200000 b4 ‘ 410
:
Y 200000 1 s
i 01 02 03 04 05
| 'E8 Shareholders’ Equity  =C-=C= ROE
|
i
e e e . et o e e ot e’
g . S
‘ AVERAGE RATE OF BORROWINGS (%)
(%) : —
3- Average Rate of Borrowings 275 2.04 178 1.72 1.60
Indirect 262 252 197 1.88 0l B
Direct 291 154 157 155 .48
Long-Term Prime Rate (reference) 1.90 2.30 1.50 1.65 1.8
- Share of Indirect 53.7 518 535 56.2 el I
‘ Share of Direct 453 48.2 485 438 251
f
01 02 03 04 05
O =@~ Average Rate of Borowings <C=<C- Indirect
‘ «O- @ Direct
A ] . e
i NUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS (Thousands}
" {Thousands) S T : A 5 T
;o 4000~ umber of Customer Accounts 3,043 3,336 3520 bl i) B
: LT Unsecured 2,971 3,241 3,366 818
30001 : Home Equity 61 75 87 a4 g5
! 3 Small Business 10 19 45 59 o
;o 2000 Credit Card Holders 7,598 8,835 9,837 11,051 11,87
‘ Per-item Shapping Loans Accounts 833 845 897 740 EAE]
1,000 |-
0 : =
: 01 02 03 04 05
[ /M Unsecured  Home Equity
. 1M Small Business
}\] e — — f‘
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-

LOANS OUTSTANDING

{Millions of yen)

1,600,000 ~

1,200,000 |

300,000 |~

600,000 1~

300,000 (-

O S RO

01 02 03 04 05

3 Unsecured
L. Home Equity
- M Small Business

TOTAL INCOME / NET INCOME

(Millions of yen)
-
400,000 - 100,000 o Unsecureq
. Home Equity
8 __M Small Business
300,000 {75,000 .M Other
T+ L Net Income
200,000 | ) 450,000
|
|
* 100,000 |- i — 25,000
]
‘ 0
01 02 03 04 05

Loans Outstanding 1,158,734 1313630 1413340 1451638
Unsecured 921,891 1,019,293 1,068,151 1,081,058
Home Equity 225,645 277,671 322,840 342,837
Small Business 12,198 16,726 22,349 27,943

A . e
T T e e o e .

TOTAL ASSETS / ROA

(Miltions of yen / %)

2,500,000 4  Total Assets

=C-<C=ROA

2,000,000 - < ”2
T \\\ Lo N B

\\ // o i

1,500,000 of |
‘ ( 1

1,000,000 o
‘ o

500,000 -

‘ i
L 1 0

01 02 03 04 05

Total Income 272553 31843 330147 340224
interest on Loans 262,580 296,034 315600 326,979
Unsecured 224718 249088 263,262 265,959
Home Equity 34,974 43,054 47 483 54,663
Smal! Business 2,898 389 4,854 6,355
Othar 94973 15,809 14,547 13,245
Nat Incoms 48,512 38,349 55,318 53,086

(Millions of yen / %)

600,000
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000

0

— -2
F 9 {
'\‘ 1 P
- \
\\ /A\\ -
L &} ! (\ 10
v
I
L f
0

01 02 03 04 05

et .

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY / ROE

U] Total Shareholders’ Equity
<=+ ROE

{Millions of yen / %)

(Millions of yen / %}

Total Assets 1586410 1740868 1906212 1870076 &lIEIY Total Shareholders’ Equity’ 302,601 420493 470334 522906
RCA (%) 35 23 30 28 3 ROE (%) ' 175 106 124 10.7 Lk
S, R, e e® e - [ L
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- AVERAGE INTEREST RATIO ;
- (%)
» 0. <= 2 Average Interest Ratio !
=L= =" Unsecured :
4 o N ‘C“ . H
(%4/?\\@’_ :a_:o e Home Equ}tv .

A =0~ -@- Smail Business
200 i
O O gm0 0
] i
N oL :
|
E 01 02 03 04 05 i

1%)

e
NUMBER OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

! (Thousands)

, 2500 — .23 Unsecured

! ' _ .1 Home Equity
20001 - ” — .. M Small Business

©osofb N
1,000 |- o

| |

| 500 u

| K

Y .

01 02 03 04

{Thousands)

Ayarage interest Ratio 243 239 232 228 2.3 Number of Customer
Unsecured %0 57 52 w8 mg| || Avauns b na naee 12
Home Equity 172 171 158 184 33 Unsecured 2,050 2,155 2180 2,131 &
Small Business 257 269 248 53 4| | Home Equity 60 7 & %
" .| SmallBusiness 10 13 17 21 7
El
L
“ . . U — e
: NEW ACCOUNTS BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS / RATIO OF BAD DEBT CHARGE-OFFS‘
- {Accounts) ¢ (Millions of yen / %)
© 500,000 — _ . :[J Unsecured : 100,000 — _8 = Baq Debt Charge-offs
- 17 Home Equity ' ﬂ 22~ Ratio of Bad Debt
400000 - {18 Small Business o 80000 o Charge-offs
00,000 |- T S e
. [ o !
[ |
| 300000} L a0 / |
' ‘ | 4
] [ ~ .
{200,000 - Ty S L
‘ o S
100,000 [ : 20,000}
0 ol i J 0
01 02 03 04 05 01 02 03 04 05
{Accounts) i (Mitlians of yen / %)
New Accounts 479903 496085 440254 388,036 | Bad Debt Charge-offs| 40,793 53,880 78,986 £
| Unssoured 453437 4243 405075 35561 Unsecured 9 8N TR 86 £
| Home Equity 22,403 27,307 27,542 24222 ;Iom: ;qu.lty zjig 34915; 633)3 ?E;Z l
. mall Business )
Small Business 4,063 6,322 7,437 8,195 b [ Ratio of Bd Debt
Charge-offs (%) 352 410 559 671 i
Unsecured 412 486 6.74 800
Home Equity 1.06 141 1.96 281
Small Business 368 262 319 479 )
Nee e e e e e I - P p——— ps
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LiFE (MANAGED ASSET BASIS)

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING

(Millions of yen)

800,000 —

600,000 —

200000 ]

200,000 (-

01 02 03 04

4 Installment Receivables
2 loans (Cash Advance}
.M Loan Guarantees

{(Millians of yen)

Total Receivables
QOutstanding 606,313 612509 676093 702202
Instaliment Receivables| 225,376 22413 247,484 256,773
Loans (Cash Advance)] 196,559 250,903 310749 339137
Loan Guarantees 184,378 137392 117849 106,290
TOTAL ASSETS / ROA
(Mittions of yen / %)
750,000 35 B Total Assets
B &> <C-ROA
—30
600,000 |- R\
Q 1 25
/N
450,000 (- B, = P
300,000 L {15
{10
150,000
B Jos
0 0

S L e
Total Assets 405,314

(Millions of yen / %}

559,273

ROA (%) - 26

20 31
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OPERATING REVENUE / NET INCOME

{Millions of yen)
150,000 — 20000 ] E Installment Receivables
"M Loans (Cash Advance)
- "W Loan Guarantees
"\ 115,000 . M Other
100,000 AR 3+ Nettncome
S 10,000
50,000 -
- 5,000
0

01 02 03 04 05

{Millions of yen)
L080 o 005

" i

Operating Revenue ~ 79,824 103,880 113,738
Instaliment Receivables - 18,020 23,566 24,415
Loans (Cash Advance) ~ 51,387 69,578 78815
Loan Guarantees - 3992 3622 3.842
Other ~ 5424 7113 6,664

Net Income - 10,308 9,149 16,131

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY / ROE
{Millions of yen / %)
. Total Sharehalders' Equity

120,000 20
r Q=< ROE
90,000 . o I
~ /
N
60,000 |- © 410
30,000 |- Js

{Millions of yen / %
2042005

7, g

o

Total Shareholders’

Equity 70,142 81,004 90,284 106,486 193,188
ROE (%) - 144 10.7 16.4 £3




- R — -~ e e eomin i ot e e <o e 14 e e e e e+ e et e e
/ N
AVERAGE YIELD . PURCHASE RESULTS
\ (%) & (Millions of yen)
] | :
j 20— <= == Average Yield A o1 150000 - 600,000 . B Per :?em Shopping Loans ‘
i =G~ =C= Instaliment Receivables : ; 1 Credit Card
: =O- -@- Loans {Cash Advance) i "
| O L 4
| (o ©—e <3<~ Loan Guarantees 120,000 480,000
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

As of March 31, 2005, the outstanding amount of foans at AIFUL and
its 10 consolidated subsidiaries totaled ¥2,095,202 milfion {US$19,581
million), an increase of ¥187,546 million, or 9.8%, compared with one
year earlier. In addition to steady growth in loans at AIFUL, growth con-
tinued in the balance of loans extended by LIFE through credit card
cash advances and at its Cash Plaza {unsecured loans) operations.
BUSINEXT and City’s, which extend loans to small businesses, both
posted sharp growth in outstanding loans. This increase was also the
result of the inclusion of loans tataling ¥95,345 million (US$891 million}
at Wide Corporation, a consumer finance company that became a con-
solidated subsidiary in Jure 2004, and loans totaling ¥9,212 million
(US$86 million) at TCM. Co. Ltd., a company undergoing bankruptcy pro-
ceedings that became a consolidated subsidiary in February 2005.

Unsecured loans increased ¥144,602 million, or 9.8%, to ¥1,622,032
million (US$15,159 million), home equity loans (secured loans) increased
¥6,030 million, or 1.7%, to ¥352,214 million (US$3,292 million), and
small business loans increased ¥36,313 million, or 43.9%, to ¥120,956
million (US$1,130 million). Instaliment accounts receivable, mainly repre-
senting purchases using credit cards and per-item credit, increased
¥29,297 million, or 11.8%, to ¥276,849 million (US$2,587 million). Loan
guarantees increased ¥7,797 million, or 5.8%, to ¥141,407 million
(US$1,322 million), and other receivables increased ¥283 million, or
2.8%, to ¥10,489 million {US$98 million). The above figures include
¥184,027 million (US$1,720 million) of receivables, the total of ¥99,580
million (US$931 million) of loans and ¥84,447 million (US$783 millicn)
of installment accounts receivable, that are not on the balance sheet
because of their securitization and sale.
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In fiscal 2004, the year ended March 31, 2005, total income increased
¥41,264 million, or 8.6%, to ¥520,737 million {US$4,867 million). Inter-
est on loans increased 8.6% to ¥466,430 million (US$4,359 million), or
89.6% of total income. Interest on credit card shopping loans increased
11.7% to ¥9,091 million (US$85 million), which was 1.7% of total in-
come, interest on per-item shopping loans increased 10.9% to ¥17,201
million (US$161 million), which was 3.3% of total income, and interest
on loan guarantees increased 27.4% to ¥7,088 million (US$66 million),
which was 1.4% of total income, and other income increased 28.4% to
¥12.464 million {US$116 million), which was 2.4% of total income.

The growth in tota’ income was attributable in part to an increase of
¥3,550 million, or 1.1%, in interest on loans at AIFUL to ¥330,529 mil-
fion {US$3,089 miilion) and an increase of ¥10,396 million, or 9.3%, in
operating revenue at LIFE to ¥121,972 million (US$1,140 million).
Growth in operating revenue at LIFE was the result of increases of
¥6,728 million, or 8.8%, to ¥83,613 million {US$781 million} in interest
on loans and ¥2,674 million, or 11.3%, in installment income to ¥26,267
million {US$245 million). Small business loans made a significant contri-
bution to growth in total income. Interest on loans increased ¥2,424
million, or 80.8%, 1o ¥5,426 million {US$51 million) at BUSINEXT and
¥2,105 million, or 28.8%, to ¥9,413 million (US$88 million) at City’s. The
results of Wide, which became a consolidated subsidiary in June 2004,
have been consolidated from April 2004. Because of this, Wide contrib-
uted ¥23,312 million (US$218 million) to total income.

Total expenses increased ¥15,636 million, or 4.2%, to ¥391,295 mil-
lion (US$3.657 million). Credit costs and provisian for allowance for bad
debts, advances to an unconsolidated subsidiary and claims in bank-
ruptcy decreased ¥1,883 million, or 1.2%, to ¥155,466 million {US$1,453
million). The decline in these credit costs was mainly due to a recavery

OTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING TOTAL INCOME / TOTAL EXPENSES NET INCOME / ROE
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in Japan's GDP and other economic statistics, a downturn in the unem-
ployment rate, and a 12.8% decrease in fiscal 2004 personal bankrupt-
cies in Japan to 211 thousand, The decline in credit costs was limited,
however, by the inclusion of credit costs totaling ¥10,169 million
{US$95 million) at newly acquired subsidiary Wide. The March 2004
acquisition of New Frontier Partners resulted in the inclusion of ¥357
million as cost of operational investment securities.

Due to these items, income before income taxes and minority interests
increased ¥25,628 million, or 24.7%, to ¥129,442 million (US$1,210 mil-
lion). AIFUL was thus the only member of Japan's consumer finance in-
dustry to achieve growth in total income and earnings in fiscal 2004, just
as in fiscal 2003.

Income taxes increased ¥11,999 millian, or 29.3%, to ¥53,015 million
(US$495 million). Minority interests in net income increased ¥454 mil-
lion, or 181.6%, to ¥704 miltion {US$7 million), primarily the result of
the first fiscal year profit at BUSINEXT since this company was estab-
fished in 2001.

In December 2004, the family ownership was reduced to raise the li-
quidity of AIFUL shares. This action meant that the retained earnings

tax on closely held companies was no longer applicable to AIFUL Corpo-

ration {non-consolidated). This change, along with growth in pretax

earnings, resulted in an increase of ¥13,175 million, or 21.1%, in net in-

come to ¥75,723 million (US$708 million). The ROA increased from
2.7% to 3.1% and the ROE increased from 12.1% to 13.0%.

Basic net income per common share increased from ¥440.65 to
¥533.57 (US$4.99). Both figures reflect the 1-to-1.5 stock split that was
conducted on May 23, 2005 for shareholders of record on March 31,
2005. Diluted net income per common share was ¥533.53 ($4.99).
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Please refer to the discussion of operating results by group company for

information on operating results of individual companies.

TOTAL RECEIVABLES OUTSTANDING

{Millions of yen)
0t thange

Unsecured loans 1,477,430 9.8%
Home equity loans 346,183 1.7%
Small business loans 84,042 43.9%
Credit card shopping loans 71,528 11.3%
Per-item shopping loans 185,650 11.1%
Loan guarantees 133,610 5.8%

INCOME

Unsecured loans

A

358,142

Home equity loans

55,022

Small business loans

16,348

Credit card shopping loans

8,140 oA 1.7%

Per-item shopping loans

15,508

Loan guarantees

5,562

Unsecurad loans

Consolidated unsecured loans represent loans at AlFUL, the credit card

cash advances and Cash Plaza operations of LIFE, the unsecured loans
of TRYTO CORPORATICN, which was formed through the April 2004
merger of Happy Credit Corporation, Sinwa Co., Ltd. and Sanyo Shinpan

Co., Ltd., and the unsecured loans of Wide, which was acquired in June
2004, and TCM, which was acquired in February 2005.

Outstanding unsecured loans increased ¥144,602 million, or 9.8%, to
¥1,622,032 million {US$15,158 million). This was mainly attributable to
an increase in the average loan per account at AIFUL, an increase in
the number of accounts at LIFE, and the acquisitions of Wide and TCM.
The interest rate on unsecured loans increased 0.5 of a percentage

point to 25.1%. Interest on unsecured loans increased ¥29,696 miilion,
or 8.3%, to ¥387,839 million (US$3,625 millign).

AIFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005 043 =7+




Heme eguity icans

These loans mainly represent the home equity {oan business of AlFUL.

LIFE, BUSINEXT and City's have started selling home equity loans to
establish a marketing framework capable of targeting a broad spec-
trum of customer segments.

Home equity loans increased ¥6,030 million, or 1.7%, to ¥352,214
million (US$3,292 million). This was primarily the result of steady
growth in the balance of loans at AIFUL and the contributions of
subsidiaries. The interest rate on home equity loans decreased 0.2 ¢f a
percentage point to 16.2% and interest income increased ¥1,509 mil-
lion, or 2.7%, to ¥56,531 million (US$528 million).

Small business loans
Small business foans are axtended by BUSINEXT and City’s, which spe-
cialize in this business, and by AIFUL.

Outstanding loans increased ¥36,913 million, or 43.9%, to ¥120,956
million {US$1,130 million). There was substantial growth in loans at
BUSINEXT, which began using a new scoring system, and at City's,
which started opening off ces in eastern Japan. AIFUL also recorded an
increase in business loans. The interest rate on these loans decreased
0.4 of a percentage point to 21.5% and interest income increased
¥5,711 million, or 34.9%, to ¥22,059 million {US$206 million).

Credit card shopping loans

Credit card shopping loans mainly represent the credit card business of
LIFE. During fiscal 2004, LIFE achieved an increase of 910 thousand, or
8.3%, to 11.96 million in the active account of cardholders.

Cutstanding loans increased ¥8,094 miltion, or 11.3%, to ¥79,623 mil-

lion (US$744 million) because of growth in the number of cardholders.
The interest rate on credit card shopping loans decreased 0.1 of a per-
centage point to 12.3% and interest income increased ¥950 million, or
11.7%, to ¥9,091 million (IUS$85 million).

Per-item shopping loans

LIFE accounts for most of consolidated per-item shopping loans. The
shopping loan market is shrinking as shinpan companies withdraw from
this business. However, LIFE continues to take actions aimed at growth
because of the potential for capturing a greater market share.
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Qutstanding loans increased ¥20,637 million, or 11.1%, to ¥206,348
million (US$1,928 million) due to an increase in the number of customer
accounts as LIFE formed credit agreements with mare retailers. The inter-
est rate on per-item shopping loans increased 0.3 of a percentage point
to 9.0% and interest income increased ¥1,692 million, or 10.9%, to
¥17,201 million (US$161 million).

Loan guaranteses
Consolidated loan guarantees represent the loan guarantees businesses
of AIFUL and LIFE.

The volume of loans guaranteed increased ¥7,787 million, or 5.8%, to
¥141,407 million (US$1,322 million). Guarantees at AIFUL increased
¥15,862 million, or 58.1%, to ¥43,180 million (US$404 million) and guar-
antees of consumer loans increased ¥9,309 million, or 35.9%, to
¥35,267 million (US$330 million). The number of consumer loan guaran-
tees agreements with banks increased by nine to 41. In addition, guar-
antees of small business loans increased ¥6,553 million, or 482.6%, to
¥7,912 million {US$74 million} and the number of small business loan
guarantee agreements with banks increased by 25 to 32. At LIFE, the
balance of loan guarantees decreased ¥2,614 million, or 3.8%, to
¥65,305 million (US$610 million) as this company continued to discon-
tinue low-margin bank loan guarantees while increasing the number of
more profitable agreements. The interest rate improved 0.9 of a per-
centage point to 5.2%. Loan guarantees fees increased ¥1,525 million,
or 27.4%, to ¥7,088 million {US$66 million).

The net interest margin increased 0.8 of a percentage point to 5.8%.

This was mainly the result of the profitability o* all group companies

and a decline in credit costs.

NET MARGIN

Interest on loans 214 211 D
Fund procurement 1.9 18 e
Credit costs (including reserves) 6.4 10 37
Other expenses 76 73 2.
Net margin 55 50 .8




Total assets as of March 31, 2005 were ¥2,574,286 million {US$24,059
million}, ¥241,5625 million, or 10.4%, higher than one year earlier.

Current assets increased ¥247,051 million, or 11.4%, to ¥2,411,120
million (US$22,534 million). Much of this increase was due to &
¥208,682 million, or 11.7%, increase in loans to ¥1,995,622 million
(US$18,651 miilion). This includes loans of ¥78,345 million (US$732 mil-
lion) at Wide, which was acquired in June 2004, and ¥9,212 million
(US$86 million) in foans at TCM, which was acquired in February 2005.
In addition, growth in loans continued at other group companies. Loans
at AIFUL increased 1.4% to ¥1,471,767 million {US$13,755 million),
loans at LIFE increased 30.4% to ¥284,879 million (US$2,662 million),
and loans at BUSINEXT increased 72.6% to ¥47,622 million (US$445
million), and loans at City’s increased 46.3% to ¥45,673 million (US$427
million). Installment accounts receivable increased ¥38,117 million, or
24.7%, to ¥192,402 million (US$1,798 million), the result of growth in
credit card shopping and per-item shopping loan receivables at LIFE. Ag-
gressive marketing initiatives to expand bank loan guarantees resulted
in an increase of ¥7,797 million, or 5.8%, in loan guarantees to
¥141,407 million {US$1,322 million).

Property and equipment increased ¥2,773 million, or 6.1%, to ¥48,252
million (US$451 million). Investments and other assets decreased ¥8,299
million, or 8.7%, to ¥114,814 million {US$1,074 million). Investment se-
curities increased ¥5,400 million, or 28.9%, to ¥24,116 million (US$225
million} and claims in bankruptcy increased ¥4,875 million, or 20.6%, to
¥28,536 million (US$267 million). These increases were offset by a

million, or 11.8%, to ¥1,092,683 million (US$10,212 million). As a result,
total liahilities increased ¥170,973 million, or 9.6%, to ¥1,951,548 mil-
lion {US$18,239 million). To fund the growth in foans and installment
accounts receivable at AIFUL, LIFE and other group companies, as well
as the acquisitions of Wide and TCM, the sum of loans, commercial pa-

per, bonds and other funds procured increased 10.5% to ¥1,673,458 mil-
lion (US$15,640 million).

Shareholders' equity increased ¥69,843 mitlion, or 12.8%, to ¥617,353
mitlion (US$5,770 million), mainly a reflection of higher retained earn-
ings. The equity ratio increased 0.5 of a percentage point from 23.5%
to 24.0% as of March 31, 2005.
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Bad debt charge-offs increased ¥8,155 million, or 5.9%, to ¥145,327
million (US$1,358 million). The allowance for bad debt increased
¥13,726 million, or 9.4%, to ¥159,483 million (US$1,430 million).
The increases in bad debt charge-offs and the allowance for bad

debts are the result of credit costs at Wide and TCM, which were
acquired during the fiscal year that ended in March 2005, and to
growth in receivables at LIFE and other group companies. The ratio of
bad debt charge-offs declined by 0.21 of a percentage point from 5.97%
to 5.76% mainly because of a decline in the number of personal
bankruptcies in Japan.

{Mitlions of yen)

¥10,494 million, or 71.0%, dacrease in deferred tax assets to ¥4,288 Bad debt charge-offs 114485 137172
million (US$40 million) and other items. Ratio of bad debt charge-offs {%) 5.18 597
Current liabilities increased ¥55,533 milfion, or 6.9%, to ¥858,865 Allowance for bad debts 132,130 145757 ‘5
million (US$8,027 million) and long-term liahilities increased ¥115,440
- o~ e e -~
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Investment securities increased ¥5,400 million, or 28.9%, to ¥24,116
million {US$225 million). Of these investment securities, securities val-
ued at market were ¥17,621 million, including net unrealized gains of
¥8,867 million. On a purchase cost basis, these securities increased
¥1,850 million to ¥8,754 million.

Goodwill, net decreased ¥3,363 million, or 23.4%, to ¥11,007 million
{(US$103 million). The basic policy is to amortize goodwill associated

acquired in June 2004. Goodwil! of ¥205 million resulting from the
February 2005 acguisition of TCM was written off in a lump-sum during
with the acquisition of companies using the straight-line method over a fiscal 2004.

ten-year period. This expense is included in depreciation and amortiza-
tion. In fiscal 2004, the amortization of goodwilt totaled ¥1,340 million,
the sum of ¥824 million for LIFE, ¥434 million for TRYTO {formerly
Sinwa), ¥249 million for City's, and ¥437 million for Wide, which was

AIFUL received loss carryforwards that can be used for tax purposes
when it acquired LIFE. Due to this action, there was a one-time amorti-
zation expense of ¥3,830 million {US$36 millior) in fiscal 2004. From
now on, AIFUL plans to amortize goodwilf as follows.

SCHEDULE FOR AMORTIZATION OF GOODWILL

{Miltions of yen)

TRYTO (formerly Sinwa) (June 2000}

Narmal amortization 434 434 434 434 434
4,347 Year-end balance 2,608 2,173 1,738 1,304 869
LIFE (March 2001) Normal amartization 1,371 824 824 824 824
32,861 One-off amortization 5614 3,830 0 0 0

Total 6,985 4,654 824 824 824

Year-end balance 9,599 4,945 4,120 3,296 2472
City's (October 2002) Normal amortization 249 249 249 249 249
2,493 Year-end balance 2,119 1.870 1,620 1,37 1,122
NFP (March 2004) Normal amortization - -217 =217 ~217 =217
-2,176 Year-end balance - -1,959 -1.741 -1,523 ~1,306
Wide (June 2004) Normal amortization - 437 437 437 437
4,378 Year-end balance - 3,940 3,502 3,065 2,627
TCM {February 2005) Normal amortization - 205 - - -
205 Year-end balance - 0 - - -
Total Total amortization 7,675 5,770 1,734 1,734 1,734

Total year-end balance 14,370 11,007 9,272 7,538 5,803
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The AIFUL Group uses a variety of fund procurement methods and

sources in order to procure funds in a manner that is stable and holds
down expenses. The Group adjusts the composition of funds procured

as required to match changes in the financial enviranment while moni-
toring interest rate, liquidity and other forms of market risk.

Te minimize exposure to risks associated with interest rate movements,
“AIFUL Group has a policy of using interest rate swaps, caps and other
methods to apply fixed interest rates to about 80% of all funds pro-

cured on a non-consolidated basis. As of March 31, 2005, fixed-rate
foans accounted for 47% of non-consolidated funds procured. However,
the effective fixed-rate percentage is 82% after accounting for interest
rate caps and swaps, significantly reducing the Group’'s exposure to the
effects of interest rate fluctuations.

P TS NN I Y

To maintain adequate liquidity on a non-consolidated basis, AIFUL main-
taing an amaount equal to more than half of short-term funds pracured,
including the current portion of long-term debt, in the form of cash,
deposits and credit facilities. As of March 31, 2005, credit facilities
amounted to ¥230 billion on a non-consolidated basis. Including a ¥50
billion credit facility at LIFE, the consolidated credit facility is ¥280
billion. Regarding direct and indirect procurement methods, the Group
uses long-term repayment schedules for loans and spreads out its
repayment deadlines.

SHORT- AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

(Mitlions of yen)

Short-term borrowings 68,865 62,034 71,855
Borrowings 55,365 57,034 71,8553
Commercial paper 13,500 5,000 -

Long-term borrowings 1,693,494 1673367 0,783,712
Borrowings 887,734 917,728 1.251.3%0
Straight bonds 452,000 455,000  473.8E3
Asset-backed securities 353,759 300637 228447

The Japanese government's low-interest-rate policy continugs to create

an environment conducive to the smooth procurement of funds. From
the standpoints of the stability and cost of fund procurement, the
Group's target is to use direct {financial market} procurement for 50%
of funds and loans for the remainder. As of March 31, 2005, direct pro-
curement accounted for 38.9% of non-consolidated funds procured and
39.8% of consolidated funds procured. The Group employs a varigty of
fund-raising methods, including loans, syndicated loans, bonds, commer-
cial paper, the sale of asset-backed securities, and other means. in Feb-
ruary 2005, fund procurement channels were further diversified with the
sale of US$500 million of U.S. dollar-denominated unsecured bonds
with a maturity of five years.

Net cash used in operating activities increased from ¥42,735 million to
¥63.409 million {US$533 million). Income before income taxes and minarity
interests was ¥129,442 million (US$1,210 miltion), but cash was used for
the increase in loans, increase in instaliment accounts receivable and other

items. Net cash used in investing activities was ¥11,211 million (US$105
million) compared with net cash provided of ¥6,371 million one year earlier.
Payments to purchase companies were the main reason for the difference.
Net cash provided by financing activities increased from ¥3,097 million to
¥80,318 million (US$751 million) because proceeds from long-term debt and
shart-term borrowings exceeded repayments. The net result of these cash
flows was a ¥10,636 million increase in cash and cash equivalents to
¥108,965 million (US$1,018 million).

VERAGE RATE OF BORROWINGS
{%]
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As of March 31, 2005, AIFUL's non-consolidated equity ratio was 28.7%
and the asset-equity ratio was 3.6. The non-consolidated ROA was
3.4% and the ROE was 12.2%.

At LIFE, the equity ratio was 14.4%, asset-equity ratio about seven
times, the ROA 1.3% and the ROE 9.5%.

On a consolidated basis, the equity ratio was 24.0%, asset-equity ra-
tio 4.2, the ROA 3.1% and the ROE 13.0%.

At other large Japanese consumer finance companies, the equity ratio
is generally between 40% and 50% and asset-equity ratio is between 2
and 2.5. Since the ROA is about the same far all consumer finance com-
panies, AIFUL is able to generate a higher ROE because of its greater
asset-equity ratio, thereby using capital more productively.

On a non-consolidated basis, AIFUL is highly profitable but faces de-
mands by rating agencies for a higher equity ratic because of the poor
public image of the consumer finance business in Japan. Credit card
companies, on the other hand, do not have this image problem, and are
thus not asked to maintain high equity ratios. Consequently, the Group's
fundamental capital policy and financial strategy are to increase the
consolidated ROE in order to use capital more productively.

Unsecured consumer loans have a higher profit margin than any other
category of retail financial services. However, the growth potential of
this market is not unlimited. By using LIFE to expand in the credit card
business, the AIFUL Grou is both increasing operating assets and in-
creasing returns on capital.

ROE (CONSOLIDATED /
NON-CONSOLIDATED)
(%)

20~

01 02 03 04 05
=C=-<C» Consolidated -7 - 7. Non-cansolidated
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CAPITAL PRODUCTIVITY AT JAPAN’S MAJOR FOUR
CONSUMER FINANCE COMPANIES

Fiscal 2004

HCA (non-consola.:ted) | 3.5% 4'~2;)/0v 4.1%
ROE (non-consolidated] TRV 7.2% 10.7% 9.7%
ROA (consolidated) 5% 3.6% 3.9% 4.3%
ROE (consolidated) el 7.4% 10.4% 10.5%
Asset-equity ratio

{consolidated) G873 2.1x 2.7x 2.4x
Asset-equity ratio

(non-consolidated) 2.1x 2.5x 2.4
Rating (S&P) BBB BBB+ BBB+
Equity ratio (consolidated) 50.5% 41.6% 44.5%
Total shareholders’ equity

{consolidated)

{Biltions of yen) S 960 863 793
Total assets

(consolidated)

(Billions of yen) 2,555 1.903 2,077 1,785

D POLICY

N
DOIVIDEND

At the annua! meeting held on June 24, 2005, shareholders approved a
resolution to pay a year-end ordinary dividend of ¥30 per share. As an
interim dividend per share of ¥30 has been paid, this resulted in an
annual dividend of ¥60 per share applicable to fiscal 2004.

The fundamental dividend pelicy of AIFUL is to aggressively and con-
tinuously return earnings to shareholders hased on operating results as
well as economic and financial trends. Based on this policy, AIFUL aims
to return earnings to shareholders and maximize sharehalder value by
sustaining earnings growth over the long term.

Retained earnings are used to fund loans as well as investments re-
quired by growth strategies, including mergers and acquisitions that en-
large the Group's base of operations. The Group will reinvest retained
earnings so as to meet the expectations of sharehalders by improving
operating results and raising efficiency. A 1-to-1.5 stock split was con-
ducted on May 23, 2305.




ON-CONSCL.DATED RESULTS

Outstanding loans increased steadily at AIFUL during fiscal 2004 as the
company pursued a diversification strategy centered on unsecured loans,
as well as on home equity ioans {secured loans) and small business
loans, to meet a broader range of customer needs. To diversify chan-
nels for attracting customers, AIFUL expanded the foan guarantees busi-
ness through alliances with banks and other partners, strengthened the
Internet cash advance service and took other steps to offer products
that target customer needs.

Qutstanding loans at AIFUL increased 1.4% to ¥1,471,767 million
(US$13,755 million). The number of accounts decreased 1.4% to 2,214
thousand, a reflection of a decrease in new customers. The average
loan per account increased 2.8% to ¥664 thousand.

Total income increased ¥6,933 million, or 2.0%, to ¥347,157 million
(US$3,244 million). This was mainly due to a ¥3,550 million, or 1.1%, in-
crease to ¥330,529 million {US$3,089 million} in interest on loans and in-
creases in interest on deposits, securities and other and in other income.

Outstanding unsecured loans increased 1.2% to ¥1,093,663 million
{US$10,221 million} and interest on these loans increased 0.4%, to
¥2686,930 miilion. Outstanding home equity loans increased 0.7% to
¥345,180 million {US$3,226 million) and interest increased 2.2% to ¥55,875
million. Qutstanding small business loans increased 17.8% to ¥32,924
million (US$308 million) and interest increased 21.5% to ¥7,722 million.

Expenses decreased ¥7,872 million, or 3.2%, to ¥234,391 million
(US$2,191 million). The decrease was primarily the result of a 10.8%
decrease in charge-offs and provision for doubtful loans to ¥97,385 mil-
lion {(US$910 million) because of a 12.8% decline in personal bankrupt-
cies in Japan to 211 thousand, the first downturn in 10 years.

Income befare income taxes increased 15.1% to ¥112,766 million
{US$1,054 million). Income taxes increased 1.3% to ¥45,455 million
{US$425 millign), including an adjustment for the adoption of tax effect
accounting. However, income taxes, current decreased 11.1% to
¥39.914 million (US$373 million) because retained earnings were no
longer taxable following changes in family ownership that occurred in

December 2004. The result was a 26.8% increase in net income to
¥67,301 million (US$629 million).

Amounts per common share have been adjusted to reflect the 1-to-
1.5 stock split conducted on May 23, 2005. On this basis, basic net
income per common share increased from ¥373.88 to ¥474.13 (US$4.43),
Diluted net income per common share was ¥474.09 (US$4.43).

ROA increased from 2.8% to 3.4% and ROE increased from 10.7% to 12.2%.

Unsecured loans
In fiscal 2004, the number of new loan applications decreased 2.4% to 547
thousand and the number of new loans decreased 3.4% to 343 thousand.
These declines reflect weakness in personal incomes and a tightening of
credit standards in response to growth in credit costs. The annual accep-
tance ratio, which is the number of new loans divided by the number of
new loan applications, decreased by 0.7 of a percentage point to 63.4%.
However, AIFUL retained its leading position among Japanese consumer
finance companies in the number of loan applications. Contributing to this

T N F I NN
TOTAL INCOME / NET INCOME / ROE (AIFUL) EPS (AIFUL)
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performance was the Company's highly effective marketing activities, includ-
ing TV commercials that consistently eam high ratings.

Due to the need to offer lower interest rates to capture business
from creditworthy customers, a highly competitive market segment, and
to the rising share of larger loans, the average vyield on unsecured loans
decreased 0.2 of a percentage point to 24.6% and the average loan per
account increased 3.1% to ¥522 thousand (US$4,879).

Total unsecured loans outstanding increased 1.2% to ¥1,093,663 mil-
lion (US$10,221 million) and the number of unsecured loan accounts as
of March 31, 2005 was 2,091 thousand, a decrease of 1.9%.

" R h 7 o o[ 0
Home eguity oans [securca [oans)

New home equity loan customers are mainly individuals that already
have an unsecured loan. In fiscal 2004, the downturn in unsecured
loan new customers severely impacted home equity loans, bringing
down applications by 5.2% to 31 thousand and reducing the number of
new customers by 3.4% to 23 thousand. AIFUL continued to adhere to
a lending policy that stresses safety. For example, about 56% of home
equity toans to new customers are first mortgages and more than 80%
of new loans are limited to less than 75% of appraised collateral
value. Compared with new entrants to the home equity loan market,
including foreign companies, AIFUL is far superior in terms of training
employees to sell secured loans, property appraisal skills gained over
many years, the head office credit investigation infrastructure, and
cther aspects of operations.

As of March 31, 2005, outstanding home equity loans were ¥345,180
miltion (US$3,226 million), 0.7% more than one year earlier. The number
of accounts increased 5.0% to 98 thousand as AIFUL continued to
differentiate itself from competitors and establish a base for stable
growth. The average yield on home equity loans decreased 0.2 of a

LOANS OUTSTANDING (AIFUL)

{Millions of yen) {Thousands)
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NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS (AIFUL)

01 02 03 04

percentage point to 16.3% and the average loan per account decreased
4.0% to ¥3,499 thousand (US$32,701).

Smei business ioans

Small business loans are the third major foan business of AIFUL, along
with unsecured loans and home equity loans. AIFUL extends loans mainly
to individuals who operate businesses. The average loan per account is a
comparatively low ¥1,323 thousand (US$12,364). AIFUL offers several
types of loans to meet the fundraising needs of small businesses. Busi-
ness loans include the business loan with guarantor, which allows busi-
nesses to obtain supplementary financing, and loans for creditworthy
small businesses, and require no collateral or guarantees. In fiscal 2004,
new applications increased 32.8% to 22 thousand and new loans increased
10.8% to 9 thousand. As of March 31, 2005, outstanding small business
loans amounted to ¥32,924 million (US$308 million), 17.8% more than one
year earlier. The number of accounts increased 17.4% to 24 thousand and
the average yield improved 0.1 of a percentage point t0 25.4%.

_o&arn guzrentess

[n the loan guarantees business, AIFUL receives fees for screening
loans extendad by banks to individuals and small businesses, as well as
for monitoring these loans after they have been extended. As of March
31, 2005, AIFUL had guarantees for loans totaling ¥43,180 million
(US$404 million), an increase of ¥15,862 million, or 58.1%, compared
with one year earlier. There were consumer lozn guarantees agree-
ments with 41 financial institutions and loan guarantees totaling
¥35,267 million ({US$330 million), 35.9% more than one year earlier. For
small business loan guarantees, a business started in earnest only ane
year ago, there were 32 agreements and loan guarantees totaling
¥7,912 million (US$74 million), 482.4% more than one year earlier.

TOTAL ASSETS / ROA (AIFUL)
(Millions of yen / %)
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As of March 31, 2005, total assets were ¥2,033,547 miltion {US$19,005 mil-
lion), ¥163,471 milfion, or 8.7%, more than one year earlier. Current assets
increased ¥3,348 million, or 0.2%, to ¥1,504,048 million (US$14,057 million),
property and equipment decreased ¥1,749 million, or 3.9%, to ¥28,495 mil-
fion {US$266 miltion), and investments and other assets increased ¥161,272
million, or 47.5%, to ¥501,004 million (US$4,682 million).

The major reasons for the growth in current assets were a ¥7,081 mil-
fion, or 11.7%, increase in cash and cash equivalents to ¥67,457 million
{US$B30 million) and a ¥20,129 million, or 1.4%, increase in loans to
¥1.471,787 million (US$13,755 million). The increase in investments and
other assets was mostly attributable to a ¥158,026 milfion, or 58.1%,
increase in investments in and advances to subsidiaries to ¥429,978 mil-
lion {US$4,018 million).

Current liabilities increased ¥29,479 million, or 6.3%, to ¥498,285
million (US$4,657 million) and long-term liabilities increased ¥72,589
million, or 8.3%, to ¥350,954 million (US$8,887 million). Both increases
were mainly a reflection of an increase of ¥104,888 million, or 8.2%, to
¥1,388,615 million (US$12,878 million} in short-term borrowings and
long-term debt, including the current portion.

Shareholders' equity increased ¥61,403 million, or 11.7%, to ¥584,308
miflion {US$5,461 million). The equity ratio rose 0.7 of a percentage
point fram 28.0% to 28.7%.

As of March 31, 2005, bad debts amounted to ¥128,663 million

(US$1,202 million), ¥10,778 million, or 9.1%, more than one year earlier.
Credit costs decreased ¥11,836 million, or 10.8%, to ¥97,385 million

(US$910 million) and charge-offs and provision for doubtful loans, advances

" SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY / SHARE-
HOLDERS’ EQUITY RATIO (AIFUL) :
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to subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy decreased ¥682 miltion, or 0.7%, to
¥90,316 million (US$844 million). The allowance for bad debt was ¥81,928
million (US$766 million) as of March 31, 2005.

BAD DEBT

{Millians of yen)

Loans in legal bankruptcy 20,339

31,834 42,141 gk

Nonaccrual foans

Aceruing oans cantractually past due three months

or more as 1o principal or interest payments | 11,217 12,376
Restructured loans 32517 37,260
Total 95,908 117,885

The partion of charge-offs that exceeded the allowance for doubtful
loans and receivables at beginning of fiscal year was recorded as a
loss on direct charge-offs on the income statement. The provision for
doubttu! loans and receivables, on the other hand, represents an ex-
pense for expected bad debts in the following fiscal year. Therefore,
operating results in each fiscal year are affected by the sum of direct

charge-offs and the provision for doubtful loans.

(Miliions of yen)
t e

Allowance for bad debt

at beginning of fiscal year 58,689 70,479
Bad debt charge-offs 74,598 90,998
Direct charge-offs 15,892 9,352

Allowance for bad debt 70,479 99,871

Charge-offs and provisian for doubtfu! loans,

advances to subsidiary and claims in bankruptey | 90,725 108,221 34588

There are three categories of bad debt charge-off timetables. Receiv-
ables from bankrupt borrowers are charged off immediately, receivables
from borrowers who have disappeared or died are written off after six
months, and receivables from borrowers who cannot service their loans
are written off after one year. For unsecured loan charge-offs, bankruptcy
decreased 6.4 percentage points to 40.8% of all charge-offs, borrowers
who have disappeared or died accounted for 29.4% of charge-offs, a de-
crease of 0.1 of a percentage peint, and borrowers who cannot service

their loans increased 6.5 percentage points to 29.8% of all charge-offs.

Bankrupt
Disappeared or died 295 224 =01
Nonperforming 233 283 6.5
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LIFE Co., Ltd.

LIFE is engaged in @ number of highly profitable businesses, including
credit card shopping, credit card cash advances and consumer loans.

This company is gradually withdrawing from auto loans, housing loans
and other low-margin businesses in a move to build a more profitable
portfolio of receivables.

As of March 31, 2005, total receivables outstanding were ¥751,553
million {US$7,024 million), an increase of ¥49,351 million, or 7.0%, com-
pared with one year earlier. Credit card shopping receivables increased
¥8,114 million, or 11.3%, to ¥79,622 million (US§744 million). Per-item
shopping loans increased ¥20,982 million, or 11.3%, to ¥206,245 million
{US$1,928 million), credit card cash advances increased ¥6,481 million,
or 3.2%, to ¥209,300 million {US$1,956 million), and unsecured loans
{Cash Plaza) receivables increased ¥22,087 million, or 16.3%, to
¥157,630 million {US$1,473 million).

LIFE continued to make progress in reducing the scale of low-margin
businesses that are being discontinued. In addition to reducing the auto
loan balance to zero, LIFE reduced partner loan receivables by ¥1,310
million, or 52.3%, to ¥1,194 million (US$11 million) and housing loan
receivables declined ¥4,140 million, or 11.5%, to ¥31,726 million
{(US$297 million).

Due to the above items, operating revenue increased ¥10,143 million,
or 8.9%, to ¥123,881 million {US$1,158 million) and operating income
increased ¥4,443 million, or 36.8%, to ¥16,524 million (US$154 million).
Net income fell ¥5,452 milion, or 33.8%, to ¥10,679 million (US$100
million), which reflects the effect of losses carried forward for tax pur-

poses since LIFE was acquired by AIFUL.

Credit cards

As the credit card business is the most important element of LIFE's op-
erations, efforts continued to focus on increasing the number of
cardholders, which represent the operating base for this business. In a
move to increase the number of member stores, an affinity card alliance
was formed with Fujita Corporation, a general retailer that operates
mainly in Gunma Prefecture. In addition, LIFE provided support to existing
alliance partrers, resulting in growth in cardhelders at apparel retailer
Aoyama Capital Co., Ltd, consumer electronics retailer DEODEO Corpora-
tion, EIDEN Ce., Ltd., home improvement center operator Komeri Co., Ltd.
and other companies. The number of new affinity credit card customers
decreased 2.6% to 2,086 thousand, but remained over the 2 million leval.
The LIFE Proper Card was supported by the April 2004 introduction of a
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new visual identity along with a new advertising campaign. Due to aggres-
sive promotions, 207 thousand cards were issued to new customers, 7.8%
more than a year earlier, resulting in 17.1 million LIFE Proper Cards as of
March 31, 2005. As a result, the total number of credit card holders
increased 884 thousand, or 8.0%, to 11,916 thousand.

Due to the increase in cardholders, shopping charge volume increased
17.3% to ¥373,130 million {US$3.487 million) and cash advance volume
decreased 0.5% to ¥224,184 million (US$2,095 million). The balance of
installment receivables increased 11.3% to ¥79,822 million (US$744 million)
for credit card shopping and increased 3.2%, to ¥209,300 million {US$1,356
miflion) for loans {cash advances). The average yield on shopping receivables
increased 0.3 of a percentage point to 9.8% and the average vield on cash
advance receivables decreased 0.4 of a percentage point to 23.4%.

Per-item shopping foans

The volume of transactions increased ¥21,239 million, or 15.8%, to
¥155,752 million {US$1,456 million) and receivables outstanding increased
¥20,982 million, or 11.3%, to ¥206,245 million {US$1,928 million). Demand
for this type of credit is expected to continue to fall as credit cards ac-
count for a higher share of purchases relative to cash. However, LIFE is
aggressively developing this business based on a conviction that there is
still considerable potential to grow in this business because of its low
market share. LIFE has been taking steps to conduct more effactive per-
item shopping loan sales activities. For example, branch offices have au-
thority to make decisions within certain fee bands, clear standards have
been set for profitability of transactions with each affiliated store, and
administrative processes have been centralized. Due to these actions, the
number of affiliated stores increased 4,725, or 5.2%, to 95,281. The aver-
age vield on receivables improved by 0.3 of a percentage point to 9.5%,
a reflection of a review of unfavorable contract terms with certain affili-
ated stores and a policy of avoiding the practice of offering per-item
shopping loans at fees that are below cost.

Loan guarantees

During fiscal 2004, LIFE continued to reduce guarantees of bank loans un-
der the previous system, which was unprofitable, instead concentrating on
new bank loan guarantees agreements that mainly target consumer loans.
As a result, the balance of bank loan guarantees under the pravious sys-
tem decreased 14.6%, to ¥41,258 million (US$388 million) while the bal-
ance of bank loan guarantees under the new system increased 22.7%, to
¥24,048 million (US$225 million). The total balance of loan guarantees
thus decreased 3.8%, to ¥65,305 million (US$610 million). With regard to
the new bank loan guarantees, measures were taken to increase the vol-
ume of consumer loan guarantees products, which have advantageous fee
structures. New agreements were established with 38 banks, raising to
103 the number of banks that use LIFE loan guarantees. The average
yield improved 0.8 of a percentage point to 4.0%.




LIFE Cash Plaza {unsecured [oans)

LIFE issues cashing cards similar to those of consumer finance compa-
nies that are used exclusively for the provision of unsecured loans
through its cash plazas. During fiscal 2004, AIFUL's expertise was used
to open more plazas in prime locations, resulting in a net increase of
six offices to 204. The result was an increase of 18.1% in the number
of new loans to 95 thousand. Strong growth in loans outstanding con-
tinued, with the balance rising ¥22,087 million, or 16.3%, to ¥157,630
million (US$1,473 million). The average vield on loans decreased 0.5 of
a percentage point to 24.8% because lower interest rates were offered
to existing customers and competitive pressure.

g i ke e

During fiscal 2004, bad debt charge-offs increased ¥1,092 million, or 3.1%,
to ¥36,658 million {US$343 million) and the allowance for bad debts
increased ¥3,225 million, or 9.2%, to ¥38,358 million (US$358 miflion).

(Millions of yen)
Bad debt charge-offs 30,190 35,566 I5.558
Ratio of bad debt charge-offs 447 5.06 4.88
Allowance for bad debts 32,796 35132 SRR

1. CREDIT CARD SHOPBING LOANS

LIFE's cards allow consumers to use credit to shop at or get cash ad-
vances from affiliated retailers and merchants that accept MasterCard,
JCB, or Visa cards. Unlike shopping, credit cards involve a credit check
only at the time they are issued and not at each time of purchase. They
are also convenient because consumers can freely make purchases up to
their credit limits, and attractive since they include a host of card member
services, LIFE's credit cards include ones issued with partner companies,
which benefit from added convenience for their customers, improved cus-
tomer management capabilities, and another way to promote sales.

@ Credit vard application

(@ Credit review apptication

@ Use of card and signature
to make purchase

@ Product or service provided

to customer
(® Credit card receipt submitted
@ Lump-sum payment
@ Bill sent to customer )
Payment (instaliment/revolving)

’/®/©;

Affiliated retailer

2. PERITEN SHOPPING LOARS

reviews are conducted at the time of purchase.

-~ - e e e 2
- - ——— s Np—
(@ Purchase credit application
@ Credit review application
Under this system, consumers without credit cards or the required cash @ Credit review
are able to purchase the goods they want with financing from LIFE. Credit ® Results of credit review
0] ® Product or service provided
Consumers can choose to make a one-time payment, installment pay- 1o tustomer
ments, or payments out of future boruses, depending on whichever financ- ® Conurait submitied
; ; : P . : e Lump-s t
ing option fits their lifestyle. The system is also attractive to affiliated re- © Lump-sum paymen
X . . . , Bill sent to customer
tailers since LIFE services the loans, thereby freeing the retailers from cus- o .
, . . . . ) Affiliated retailer ® Payment
tomers’ credit risk and allowing them to streamling their operations.
e e e e et e e - ‘)/'/
e e e e JE— e R e

3. LOAN GUARANTEES

Under this system, LIFE conducts credit reviews on behalf of partner financial
institutions that provide financing to customers, and guarantees the financing.

This system allows banks to quickly provide their customers with unse-
cured loans, with the help of LIFE's scoring system. At the same time,
banks can minimize their credit risks and benefit from having another
source of stable earnings. LIFE's expertise comes heavily into play in the
credit guarantee business, which requires strong risk-management capa-
bilities based on access to a voluminous amount of consumer credit infor-
mation and the ability to manage customers” credit.

@ Loan application
@ Credit review request
@ Credit review
(@ Guarartee approval
IR © Loan provided
peaRr® (© Loan repaid

=
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Other subsidiaries

TRYTO CORPORATION. Receivables decreased ¥234 million, or 0.4%, to
¥58,121 million (US$543 million) due to the establishment of tighter credit
standards to prevent an increase in credit costs. Operating revenue de-

creased 7.2% to ¥14,539 million (US$136 million) and ordinary income in-
creased 103.7% to ¥2,807 million (US$26 million). Earnings rose despite
the lower revenue mainly because of a 27.4% decrease in credit costs to
¥5,749 million (US$54 million).

Note: Al year-on-year comparisons for TRYTO are based on the sum of revenue and
earnings of its three predecessor companies in the prior fiscal year.

In June 2004, AIFUL acquired Wide Corporation, a second-tier con-
sumer finance company operating mainly in the Kanto area of Japan,
which is centered in Tokyo. Receivables totaled ¥95,345 million (US$891
mitlion) as of March 31, 2005 and operating revenue was ¥23,849 million
{US$223 million) for the year that ended in March 2005. To conform to
the same bad debt charge-offs and reserve standards as at AlFUL, Wide
recorded ¥10,169 million (US$95 million) of credit costs based on a con-
servative evaluation of receivables. Despite this expense, ordinary income
was ¥1,692 million {US$16 million).

In February 2005, AIFUL acquired TCM. Co. Ltd., a company that is
undergoing bankruptcy proceedings. This company operates mainly in
Nagano Prefecture. Only the balance sheet of TCM has been in-
cluded in the fiscal 2004 consolidated financial statements of AIFUL.
As of March 31, 2005, TCM had receivables totaling ¥9,212 million
. (US$86 millign).

On March 30, 2005, AIFUL concluded a final agreement to purchase
all outstanding shares of Passkey Co., Ltd., which operates in Hokkaido.

BUSINEXT CORPORATION, a joint venture with The Sumitomo Trust &
Banking Co., Ltd., started operations in April 2001 with the remit of

extending small business loans to moderate-risk borrowers. In April 2004,
BUSINEXT completed two scoring systems based on data covering the
past three years of operations. These systems were used to rapidly
increase loans to individual proprietorships and companies. tn addition,
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BUSINEXT opened an office in Nagoya in September 2004 and in Sendai
in March 2005, raising its office network to four locations. The result was
a ¥20,030 million, or 72.6%, increase in receivables to ¥47,622 million
{US$445 miltion), allowing BUSINEXT to extend its record of rapid grawth.
Furthermore, operating revenue increased ¥2,431 million, or 80.6%, to
¥5,445 million (US$51 million) and ordinary income was ¥633 million
(US$6 million), the first time the company has been profitable in terms of
ordinary income.

City’s Corporation

AIFUL acquired City’s, which extends high-risk business loans, in Octo-
ber 2002. To extend its service area, City’s opened 12 offices during fis-
cal 2004, raising its network to 50 locations. The new offices gave the
company its first presence in the Tohoku region {northeastern Honshu)
and Hokkaido. Previously, the company’s operations were located mainly
in the Tokyo area and regions of Japan to the west of Tokyo. Due to
this expansion, receivables increased ¥14,459 million, or 46.3%, to
¥45,673 million (US$427 million) and operating revenue increased
29.2%, to ¥9,579 million (US$90 million). Operating expenses rose
53.8% to ¥6,985 million (US$65 million) because of the cost of the new
offices and other up-front expenses to support growth. As a result, ordi-

~ nary income was down 15.2% to ¥2,585 million (US$24 million).

AsTry Loan Services Corporation
AsTry is a debt servicer that was established by AIFUL and Aozora Bank

in November 2001. In fiscal 2004, this company purchased receivables
totaling ¥8,039 million (US$75 million) on a book-value basis. Operating
revenue increased 167.8% to ¥1,751 million (US$16 million) and
ordinary income increased 3,647.3% to ¥162 million (US$2 million).

New Frontier Pariners Co., Ltd.

AIFUL acquired Kokusai Capital Co., Ltd., a venture capital company, on
March 31, 2004 and renamed the company New Frontier Partners in July
2004. By adding to its group a company with considerable expertise in
the venture capital field, AIFUL plans to acquire know-how in making in-
vestments, a new maans for the Group to provide funds to businesses.
This will enable the Group to assist small and m'dsize companies as well
as promising new companies by providing funds as either loans or invest-
ments. In fiscal 2004, operating revenue was ¥1,060 million (US$10 mil-
lion) and ordinary income was ¥130 million (US$" million).




QUTLOOCK

In the fiscal year ending in March 2006, the outlook is for a gradual im-

provement in the Japanese eccnomy as a recovery continues in the
GDP growth rate and other macroeconomic statistics. In the consumer
finance industry, the number of personal bankruptcies in fiscal 2005 is
expected to decline further following the substantial 12.8% drap to 211
thousand in these bankruptcies in fiscal 2004. {n this environment, the
AIFUL Group belisves that it can generate stable earnings backed by
steady growth in the volume of receivables along with a projected de-
cline in credit costs.

On a non-consolidated basis, AIFUL plans to increase receivables
based on the belief that the level of credit costs has passed its peak.
The company is thus forecasting a 3.5% increase in receivables to
¥1 523,860 million (US$14,242 million). This includes a 3.6% increase in
unsecured loans 10 ¥1,133,005 million (US$10,589 mitlion), a 0.9% in-
crease in home equity loans to ¥348,154 million (US$3,254 million) and
a 29.7% increase in small business loans to ¥42,700 million (US$399
million). AIFUL is projecting a 6.1% increase to 364 thousand in the
number of new unsecured ioans. AIFUL wilt continue to increase the
number of “Suguwaza” simple auto contract machines, a relatively new
channel for serving customers. In fiscal 2005, AIFUL had originally
planned to increase from seven to 50 the number of offices using these
machines. However, in the interest of increasing service channels to
aftract more customers, the decision was made at the end of the first
quarter of fiscal 2005 to raise the target to 250 offices using auto con-
tract machines by the end of March 2006.

Regarding fund procurement, AIFUL expects a further improvement in
the terms for funds procured on a non-consolidated basis but is aware
of the possibility that interest rates will rise. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted a fund procurement plan based on the conservative as-
sumptions that the average interest rate on loans will rise 0.58 of a
percentage point from 1.66% to 2.24% and that the average interest
rate on funds procured from securities markets will be largely un-
changed, rising from 1.69% to 1.70%. The overall outlook is therefore
for an increase in the average interest rate on funds procured of 0.33
of a percentage point from 1.67% to 2.00% in March 2005.

Based on this outlook, AIFUL is forecasting a 2.6% increase in
non-consolidated aperating revenue to ¥349,578 million {US$3,2567

million), a 7.5% increase in ordinary income to ¥121,000 million
(US$1,131 million), and a 10.5% increase in net income to ¥74,351
million (US$695 million).

LIFE will continue to strengthen ties with current joint credit card
partners, such as Aoyama Capital Co., Ltd, consumer electronics retailer
DEODEQ Corporation, EIDEN Co., Ltd., home improvement center opera-
tor Komeri Co., Ltd. and other companies, white forming more joint card
alliances. In a new development, LIFE, in December 2004, formed a
credit card agreement with THE HIGASHI-NIPPON BANK, LIMITED for
the issuance of the Bank Alliance Card. This card functions as a cash
card as well as a LIFE Card that can be used as a credit card and to
receive cash advances. This multi-functional card is expected to attract
a broader range of customers for LIFE.

Based on these strategies, plans for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2006 call for the issuance of 2,184 thousand new credit cards; an in-
crease of 12.5% in shopping charge volume to ¥419,629 million; and an
increase of 8.0% in cash advance volume to ¥242,109 million.

Based on this outlock, LIFE is forecasting a 9.3% increase in operat-
ing revenue to ¥135,458 million (US$1,266 million), a 27.1% increase in
ordinary income to ¥21,000 million (US$196 million), and a 14.9% in-
crease in net income to ¥12,265 million (US$115 million).

In the small business loan category, BUSINEXT and City's both plan
to continue the rapid growth in their receivables. By continuing to make
effective use of the scoring system completed in 2004, BUSINEXT plans
to raise receivables ¥21,894 million, or 46.0%, to ¥69,516 million
(US$650 million). This is expected to raise operating revenue 56.4% to
¥8,517 million (US$80 million) and ordinary income 116.7% to ¥1,372
miltion {US$13 million). City's, which plans to open more new offices to
extend its geographic coverage, is forecasting a ¥24,366 million, or
53.3%, increase in receivables to ¥70,039 million (US$555 million).
City's thus plans to achieve a 53.6% increase in operating revenue to
¥14,714 million (US$138 million) and an 18.0% increase in ordinary
income to ¥3,050 million (US$29 million).

For consolidated results in the fiscal year ending in March 2006,
AIFUL is forecasting a 7.1% increase in operating revenue to ¥555,049
million (US$5,187 million), a 14.6% increase in ordinary income to
¥155,000 million (US$1.448 million), and a 21.2% increase in net in-
come to ¥91,762 mitlion {US$858 miltion). AIFUL therefore expects to
achieve another record-setting performance in fiscal 2005.
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RISK FACTCRS

The following is a list of the major risk factors that can have an effect
on the AIFUL Group's ope-ating results, stock price and financial pasi-
tion. This is not a complete list of the risk factors that, in the opinion
of management, have the potential of significantly affecting the Group.
Other than the risk factors listed below, there are a number of risk fac-
tors that are difficult to predict. Management is aware of the possibility
of a negative impact an the Group’s operating results, stock price and
financial position due to these risk factors, and has a policy of taking
actions to prevent these problems and to respond properly in the event
a problem occurs. However, there is no assurance that the Group can
avoid all risk factors or can respond properly to a problem. Forward-
locking statements in this section are based on judgments of the Group
as of June 27, 2005, the date on which the Ministry of Finance Securi-
ties Report (Yukashoken Hokokusho) was submitted.

1. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

{a) Business restrictions

With regard to legal restrictions, the AIFUL Group’s core consumer loan
business is subject to various restrictions imposed by the Law Concern-
ing Restrictions on the Moneylending Business, Etc. (Moneylending
Business Restriction Law} and Law Concerning the Regulation and Re-
ceiving of Capital Subscription, Deposits and Interest on Deposits (Capi-
tal Subscription Law}. These restrictions include the prohibition of ex-
tending excessive credit; requirements to disclose and advertise loan
terms; the prohibition of exaggerated advertisements; requirements to
distribute written copies of agreements and receipts; requirements to
keep ledgers on hand:; restrictions on obtaining ungualified letters of
proxy; restrictions on debt collection actions; return of loan agreements;
requirements regarding business license plates; the sale of receivables;
the selection of registered moneylending officers; the carrying of per-
sonal identification documents; and a legal framework for written no-
tices demanding payment of amounts due.

Guidelines (Administrative Guidelines for Precautions Regarding Finan-
cial Supervision issued on October 29, 2003, "Administrative Guidelines”)
of the Financial Services Agency, which supervises moneylenders, have
been established for the prevention of extension of excessive credit. The
standard for preventing excessive credit is ¥500,000 or an amount equal
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to 10% of the annual income of a borrower, whichever is higher, at each
moneylender for the provision of loans that are not secured or guaranteed
through a simple approval at the loan application reception desk.

In the event that these laws and regulations are amended, there
could be a negative impact on the Group's operating results depending
on the nature of the amendments.

The Group's credit card and shopping loans business are subject to
the provisions of the Installment Credit Sales Law. Restrictions include
the disclasure of transaction terms; the provision of written agreements;
limits on liability when a contract is terminated; rights of consumers to
submit complaints to the merchant selling the item purchased through
credit; prevention of purchases exceeding an individual’s financial re-
sources; prevention of prablems for consumers concerning the continu-
ous fulfillment of obligations; and other items. In the event that this
law is amended, there could be an impact on the Group’s operating re-
sults depending on the nature of the amendments.

{b) Interest rates on loans

Amendments to the Moneylending Business Restriction Law that be-
came effective on June 1, 2000 lowered from 40.004% to 23.2% the
upper limit on the annual interest rates that can be charged on mon-
gtary loans by companies engaged in this business under the Capital
Subscription Law. Viclators are subject to pun'shment. Since the maxi-
mum interest rates of the AIFUL Group are below these legal limits,
management believes there is no material impact on Group earnings
or financial soundness. On August 1, 2003, a law was promulgated
that partially amended the Moneylending Business Restriction Law
and the Capital Subscription Law. With regard to the article concemn-
ing maximum interest rates in the Capital Subscription Law, a provi-
sion has been made to review as necessary maximum rates with a
goal of January 2007, which is three years after enactment of the Au-
gust 1, 2003 amendments. This review is to take into account
whether interest rates are being set in a8 manner that reflects demand
for loans as well as economic and financial conditions and the finan-
cial soundness and credit standing of barrowers. The state of busi-
ness operations at moneylenders and other factors will also be taken
into consideration. There is a possibility that the maximum interest
rate may be reduced as a result, and that this reduction may have an
effect on operating results in the Group's lending business.




Under the Interest Rate Restriction Law, consumer loan contracts are
regarded as invalid with regard to the portion of interest rates that ex-
ceeds the legal limits. These limits are annual rates of 20% for loans
of less than ¥100,000 {principal), 18% for loans from this amount up 1o
¥1 million, and 15% for loans of ¥1 million or more.

The Moneylending Business Restriction Law contains a provision cover-
ing cases where a loan contract as prescribed by the law is supplied to
borrowers and where borrowers voluntarily pay the amount exceeding the
interest rate limit. In cases where these are contractual payments as pre-
scribed in the contract conforming to this law, there is a legal obligation
to pay the entire interest rate irrespective of the provisions of the Interest
Rate Restriction Law. However, there have been several instances in the
consumer finance industry where legal action has been taken for the re-
turn of the portion exceeding the limit prescribed by the Interest Rate Re-
striction Law on the grounds that defects exist in the terms of the con-
tract prescribed by the Moneylending Business Restriction Law. Several
verdicts have been reached in favor of the plaintiffs. The AIFUL Group has
been sued by a number of parties who are demanding the return cf the
portion of interest payments that exceeds the legal limit. The plaintiffs al-
lege that the Group, which conducts a lending business, has not fulfilled
its obligation to provide a written contract as stipulated in the
Maneylending Business Restriction Law that is required for the application
of the assumed exemption from the obligation to repay this portion of in-
terest payments. Furthermore, it is difficult to predict future trends in the
submission of similar requests for repayments. As is stated in item (c) be-
low, there is a growing possibility that the courts will support the allega-
tions of plaintiffs that the Group has not completely fulfilled its legal obli-
gations, including the obligation to provide a written contract.

~ (c) Administrative Guidelines of the Financial
Services Agency

a. Obligation to provide a written agreement
In accordance with the Maneylending Business Restriction Law, the
AIFUL Group, which is engaged in the moneylending business, is subject
to requirements in cases where loan or guarantee contracts are signed
and loans are extended. In such cases, the Group is gbligated to
promptly provide customers, both borrowers and guarantors, with a writ-
ten document containing prescribed items concerning the loan terms.

In addition to requiring the provision by moneylenders of a prescribed

written document when contracts are signed, the Administrative Guide-
lines also require the prompt provision {including a prompt mailing) to
customers of a document containing legally prescribed items each time
a customer obtains a loan from an ATM or manned office. In August
2003, AlFUL revised software associated with its ATMs to add a function
that provides a written document containing all legally mandated items.

At affiliated ATMs, with the prior consent of customers, a document
containing a!l legally mandated items is sent by postal mail to all cus-
tomers promptly after a loan is taken out. However, this document is
not sent to customers from whom prior consent has not been received.
According to regulations of the Financial Services Agency, moneylenders
that do not fulfill their obligation to provide written documents can be
punished through partial or complete suspension of business activities
and other administrative restrictions, as weli as restrictions on the use
of ATMs of other companies. In addition, registration as @ moneylender
may be cancelled. In the event that such actions are taken against the
AIFUL Group, there could be an impact on the Group’s operating results
and financial condition.

b. Obligation concerning explanations
To provide thorough protection of customers, Administrative Guidelines
were revised on May 1, 2005 from the standpoint of meeting demands
for strengthening the responsibility of moneylenders to provide explana-
tions and establish a framewaork for providing these explanations. To
supplement the responsibility for providing explanations concerning de-
scriptions and guarantees involving proxies for the preparation of offi-
cial documents, a clause was established providing for the responsibility
to provide explanations to individuals who are about to become a guar-
antor. Such explanations are required to include effective risks, such as
legal consequences and other risks, including, for example, a scenario
for cases where guarantors would be required to fulfill their obligations.
The Moneylending Business Restriction Law prohibits predatory,
improper and other blatantly improper methods for the management or
collection of receivables involving loan and loan contracts. To the list of
examples of practices highly likely to fall under these provisions, the
law has added failing to take necessary and suitable measures regard-
ing the adesquate fulfillment of the responsibility to provide explanations
involving business operations as a moneylender. Such measures include
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clearly stipulating in internal company regulations and other rules the
need to fulfill adequately the obligation to provide explanations of con-
tract contents to customers when closing a loan contract, and conduct-
ing training programs that make all employees aware of obligations
involving explanations.

The Company is dedicated to complying with these amendments,
resulting in actions that may result in unforeseen expenses. In addition,
the Company may be subject to sanctions in the event that the Finan-
cial Services Agency concludes that the Company has violated the
Moneylending Business Rastriction Law or Administrative Guidelines.
Such sanctions could have an impact on the Group's operating results
and financial condition.

} Cther laws and reguiations

Laws concerning the protection of persona! information
and Group handling of personal information

The Personal Information Protection Law along with related guidelines

a.

by government ministries and agencies concerning the protection of per-
sonal information were enacted on April 1, 2005. Under this law, com-
panies that handle personal information (a classification that applies to
AIFUL Corporation, LIFE Co., Ltd., TRYTO CORPORATION, Wide Corpora-
tion, City's Corporation, BUSINEXT CORPORATION, TCM. Co. Ltd., Pass-
key Co., Ltd., AsTry Loan Services Corporation and other AIFUL Group
companies) are required to specify to the greatest degree possible how
personal information, as defined by the law, is being used. Companigs
are prohibited from using personal information beyand the scope of
measures required by the specified purposes of its use. Furthermore,
companies are required to take necessary and proper measures concern-
ing safe management, employee supervision and many other items.
Such measures are required in cases where a database of information,
including personal informetion, concerning individuals is handled by the
employees of a company engaged in the handling of personal informa-
tion. Moreaver, companies are required to submit certain reports when
judged necessary by supervisory government agencies. In the event of a
violation of the Personal Information Protection Law, the minister of the
applicable government ministry may, when needed to protect the inter-
ests of individual customers, order a halt to the illegal actions and re-
quest or arder that necessary actions be taken to remedy the violation.
The law imposes many other requirements. For example, companies
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must provide notice of and disclose the purposes of the use of personal
information; receive the consent of customers when necessary concern-
ing the handling of personal information and other items; establish an
operating framework involving the organization, people and technology
far the safe management of personal information; and make public fun-
damental policies regarding the handling of personal information. In
accordance with these items, the Group has reviewed how personal in-
formation has been handled until now and, on Aprit 1, 2005 when the
Personal Information Protection Law was enacted, established policies in
response to the law. The Group also took measures to prevent leaks of
personal information. However, there is no assurance that these measures
are adeguate. In the event of a personal information leak or that the
Group violates the Personal information Protecticn Law, the Group could
be subject to sanctions as well as a loss in public trust. These events
could have an impact on the Group's operating results.

b. Amendment of Judicial Scrivener Law

Amendments to the Judicial Scrivener Law that were enacted on April
1, 2003 extended the scope of judicial scriveners to act as legal repre-
sentatives, just as an attorney, in courts for mediations, civil suits and
other matters (for payment of damages of not more than ¥1,400,000)
that can be handled by summary courts. Bue to these amendments and
the extended scope of activity of judicial scriveners, there has been an
increase in the number of lawsuits, liability reorganizations and other
matters that are handled using judicial scriveners as legal representa-
tives. The resulting extension in the loan repayment plans of the AIFUL
Group and growth in bad debts may have an impact on the Group's op-
erating results.

c. Amendment of Bankruptcy Law

Amendments to the Bankruptcy Law were enacted on January 1, 2005.
The amendments simplify and speed bankruptcy proceedings. If these
amendments raise the number of bankruptcy filings, there could be
growth in the volume of bad debts, resulting in an impact on the
Group's operating results.




d. Possible increase in customers’ reorganization of liabili-
ties due to enactment of Special Conciliation Law and
amendments to Civil Rehabilitation Law

The Law Concerning Special Conciliation for Promotion of Reorganiza-

tion of Special Liabilities was enacted on February 17, 2000. This law

provides for revisions in payment dates and other adjustments in liabili-
ties based on negotiations with debtors that may soon no longer make

payments on debt. Such negotiations are handied by a judge and a

mediation committee composed of civil mediators with specialized

knowledge and experience in law, taxes, finance, corporate finance,
asset evaluations and other matters as required in accordance with the
nature of the debtor's business operations, Furthermore, during the
mediation pracess, debtors may ask for the suspension of civil proceed-
ings regarding their assets.

Amendments to the Civil Rehabilitation Law that were enacted on
April 1, 2001 provided a number of options for extending repayments of
loans to individuals in an economically insolvent state without the receipt
of a declaration of insolvency. One of the options does not require the
approval of the rehabilitation plan by the lender. In certain cases, spe-
cial conditions for housing loans can be applied to avoid the need to
relinguish ownership of a house for which a home loan is outstanding.

Due to the enactment of these laws, there has been an increase in the
number of individuals {inctuding customers of AIFUL) who request legal
protection from lenders. This situation may lead to an increase in exten-
sions of loan repayment periods and loans that cannot be recovered,
events that could have an impact on the Group's operating results.

e. Law Concerning Issuance of Bonds by Finance Companies
for Moneylending
Enactment in May 1999 of the Law Concerning Issuance of Bends by
Finance Companies for Moneylending eased restrictions that had been
imposed on the AIFUL Group and other so-called non-banks in Japan on
the issuance of bonds. This faw made it possible to use proceeds from
bonds to fund moneylending operations in cases where companies have
registered as specified finance companies as prescribed by the law.
AIFUL and its subsidiary LIFE have registered under this law as speci-
fied finance companies. As of March 31, 2005, aggregate bonds out-
standing at these two companies were ¥478,890 million (face value).

ND PROCUREMENT

Trends in interest rates on loans
a. Interest rate fluctuation risk

Interest rates on funds procured change along with shifts in market
conditions and other factors. To minimize exposure to the resulting
risks, the Group establishes hedges against higher interest rates by
using interest rate caps and swaps. However, a future increase in
interest rates could have an impact on results of operaticns.

b. Fund procurement activities and diversification

The Group is diversifying its sources of funds, procuring funds through
foans from financial institutions, syndicated loans, bonds, commercial
paper, asset-backed securities and other means. Although the Group
currently is experiencing no difficulty procuring funds for its loan busi-
ness, a general reluctance of financial institutions ta extend credit, a
waorsening in lean terms or reduction in foans due to a deterioration in
the Group's credit standing, and other similar events could make it diffi-
cult to procure funds under current terms, having a negative impact on
results of operations.

3. TRENDS IN OPERATING RESULTS

S S I

The AIFUL Group has sustained consistent growth in revenue and earn-
ings. This growth has been due to the Group’s diversification beyond
consumer loans to include home equity loans and smail business loans;
addition of the consumer credit and credit card businesses; and other
diversification moves including the provision of guarantees far bank
foans and the acguisition of businesses. On the other hand, the com-
petitive environment is changing due to a shift in the structure of the
market served by the Group. In the past, competition was restricted to
companies specializing in consumer loans. Now, there is an intensely
competitive, unified market for consumer credit, including loans, that
includes banks, credit card companies, Shinpan companies and con-
sumer finance companies. At the same time, growth in personal
bankruptcies is causing a large increase in bad debts in the consumer
finance industry. Since July 2003, the growth rate in bankruptcies has
been declining, and the number of bankruptcies has been below prior-year
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levels each manth since November 2003. However, unemployment
remains high due to deterioration in the perscnal income and employ-
ment environments. The number of personal bankruptcies is thus ex-
pected to remain high as long as income levels continue to weaken.

Changes of this nature in the market environment could have an im-
pact on operating results.

The AIFUL Group relies on internal and external information as well as

technological systems to manage its business operations. The Group is
becoming even more reliant on software systems and netwaorks in order to
manage the various types of data, including customer information and
account data, that make up the Group’s operations.

Hardware and software used by the Group are vulnerable to
problems resulting from human errar, natural catastrophes, power
interruptions, computer viruses and similar types of events, as well as
10 interruptions in third-party support services, such as those of
telephone companies and Internet service providers.

A disruption, malfunction, delay or other problem involving
information or technological systems may have a detrimental effect on
the Group's operating results due to a decline in the number of
accounts by new customers, a delay in loan repayments, a loss in
customers' trust in the Group's businesses and other effects.

The Group maintains back-up systems for its hardware and
communications equipment, making it possible to minimize damages
caused when a problem occurs. However, earthquakes, typhoons and
other natural catastrophes may force the Group to suspend its
business operations.
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At present, the AIFUL Group is involved in no significant legal disputes.

However, the Group is aware of recent media reports that certain
organizations have requested that administrative actions be taken
against the Group due to certain of its manner to collect receivables
from its borrowers. The details of the claims of these organizations are
not clear at this time, but these allegations might lead to any litigation
or ather legal actions against the Group in future. Such actions, if any,
could cause the Group to incur unexpected costs. If any such legal
action is commenced against the Group and reported through media to
the public, there is certain risk that the creditworthiness of the Group
may be deteriorated, thereby adversely affecting the ability of the Group
to acquire new customers, its share price on the market, and its
funding capability, in any of which cases the financial condition or
results of operation of the Group may be adversely affected.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
ASSETS pisier 2004 2303
CURRENT ASSZTS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 108985 ¥ 98329 $ 1,018,384
Time deposits {Note 9) 510 834 5,701
Marketable securities (Note 8) 120
Trading securities held by venture capital subsidiary {Note 8) 1.822 15,138
Loans (Notes 4 and 9} ,535,822 1,786,940 18,530,673
Installment accounts receivable (Notes 5 and 9) 192,602 154,285 £,798,130
Loan guarantees (Note B) 141,637 133,610 1,521,551
QOther receivables 18,325 11,215 173,989
Allowance for doubtful loans and receivables {137,238) {126.918) (1,289,421,
Net loans and receivables 2,290,024 1,959,132 20,854,637
Inventories (Notes 7 and 3) 343 318 3,223
Prepaid expenses £, 364 4,415 £2.£57
Deferred tax assets {(Note 12} 30,809 29,312 287,933
QOther current assets {Note 9) 54,203 71,609 528,570
Total current assets 2,411,220 2,164,069 22,523,832
PROPERTY AXD EQUIPMENT (Note 9k
Land 15,624 14,635 145,283
Buildings and structures £2,851 45577 435,881
Machinery and equipment 232 220 2,163
Furniture and fixtures 19,209 16,066 179,523
Construction in progress 219 181 2,047
Total 82,175 76,679 795,028
Accumulated depreciation 133,£23) (31,200) {345,073)
Net property and equipment (3,252 45,479 £30,833
INVESTRAENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Note 8} 26,118 18,716 225,383
investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 7,392 7,353 §9.024
Claims in bankruptcy (Note 4) 28,533 23,661 285,682
Allowance for advances to an unconsolidated subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy (21,547} (18.839) (201,374}
Goodwill, net 11,207 14,370 102,838
Software, net 18,823 21,050 185,103
Long-term loans receivables {less current portion) 1,590 1,158 10,374
Lease deposits 12,185 10,777 143,972
Long-term prepayments 5,824 7,758 34,243
Deferred tax assets (Note 12} 4,238 14,782 £0,075
Deferred losses on hedging instruments, mainly interest rate swaps (Note 14} 18,971 18,975 177,289
Other assets 3,238 3,452 30,243
Total investments and other assets 174,814 123,213 1,073,283
TOTAL 42,574,285 ¥2,332,761 $26,028,748

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2803 2004 2035
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) ¥ 71,898 ¥ 62,035 $ 676,047
Current portion of fong-term debt (Note 9) 538,687 498,204 4,352,449
Trade notes payable ’ 11,186 11,139 106,243
Trade accounts payable (Note 9) 27,523 23,526 257,280
Obligation under loan guarantees {Note 6} 141,407 133,610 1,321,561
income taxes payable 23,597 25,848 220,533
Accrued expenses 90,229 9,358 85,652
Other current liabilities {Notes 5 and 6) 42,583 39,614 397,31
Total current liabilities 858,865 803,332 8.026,776
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt {less current portion) (Note 9} 1,071,122 953,573 10,810,299
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 10) 2,907 3,681 19,832
Interest rate swaps (Note 14) 17,835 18,832 166,582
Other long-term liabilities 1,639 1,157 15,318
Total long-term liabilities 1,552,883 977,243 10.211,5%1
MINCRITY INTERESTS 5,385 4,682 39,327
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Notes 11 and 16):
Common stock,

authorized, 373,500,000 shares;

issued, 94,690,000 shares 83,217 83,317 778,554
Capital surplus -

Additional paid-in capital 104,928 104,126 373,140
Retained eamings 427,616 357,706 3,996,255
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 5,364 4,417 56,151

Total 626,417 549,566 5,798,230
Treasury stock, at cost
284,465 shares in 2005 and 222,866 shares in 2004 {3.064) (2,062) (28,636)
Total shareholders’ squity 617,353 547,504 5,768,654
TOTAL %2 574,285 ¥2,332,761 $24,058,748
AIFUL CORPORATION
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AIFUL Corporation and Consclidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thausands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
515 2004 2083
INCON:E:
Interest on loans ¥455,430 ¥429,513 $4,339,159
Interest on credit card shopping lcans 9,031 8,140 84,883
Interest on per-item shopping loans 17,201 15,508 180,737
Interest on loan guarantees 7,088 5,562 68,243
Interest on deposits, securities and other 327 236 3638
Recovery of loans previously charged off 7,723 6,778 72,350
Gain on exemption from pension obligation of the governmental program (Note 10) 203 4,026 1,964
Gain on transfer of pension plans (Note 10} 233 1,964
Other income 12,686 9,710 116,484
Total income 528,737 479,473 £,866,70%
EXPEZNSES:
Interest on borrawings 35,812 34,712 332,822
Charge-offs and provision for doubtful loans and receivables, advances to
an unconsolidated subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy 125,465 157,349 1,652,853
Salaries and other employees” benefits 52,587 48,076 491,934
Advertising expenses 23,870 19,963 227,295
Rental expenses 23,362 23,532 218,335
Commissicns and fees 25,555 21,502 238,841
Bepreciation and amortization 18,959 15,539 158,433
Provision for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 10) 2,998 679 18,897
Provision for retirement oenefits to directors and corporate auditors 85 137 888
Other expenses . 55,930 54,170 522,111
Total expenses 381,283 375659 3,856,562
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS 129,442 103,814 1,285,738
[NCOME TAXES (Note 12):
Current 41,025 46,174 383,411
Deferred 11,889 (5.158) 112,555
Total income taxes 53,01% 41,016 285,487
MINORITY INTERESTS JN MET INCOME 704 250 £.573
NET IRCINME ¥ 75,723 ¥ 52,548 § 707,652
Yen U.S. Dallars
AROUNTS PER COMRION SHARE (Notes 2.q and 15)
Basic net income ¥533.57 ¥440.65 $4.98
Diluted net income 533.53 4.93
Cash dividends applicable to the year 50.00 £60.00 2.8

See nates to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
‘Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands

Millions of Yen
Number of Net Unrealized
Shares of Capital Surplus Gain on Treasury
Common Stock Common Additional Retained Available-for- Stock,
Issued Stock Paid-in Capital Earnings sale Securities at Cost
BALANCE AT APRIL 1, 2003 94,690 ¥83,317 ¥104,126 ¥300,924 ¥ (323) ¥(2,053)
Net income 62,548
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share (5,668)
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (98)
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 4,740
Net increase in treasury stock {1,228 shares) 9
BALANCE AT MARCH 3%, 2004 94,690 83,317 104,126 357,706 4,417 (2,062)
Net income 75,723
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share (5,870;
Bonuses to directors and corparate auditors {107)
Net loss on disposal of treasury stock {42)
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 867
Net increase in treasury stock (61,599 shares) (1,002)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 94,690 ¥83,317 ¥104,126 ¥427,610 ¥5,364 ¥(3,064)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars {Note 3)
Net Unrealized
Capital Surplus Gain on Treasury
Common Additional Retained Available-for- Stock,
Stock Paid-in Capital Earnings sale Securities at Cost
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2004 $778,664 $973,140 $3,343,046 $41,280 $(19,271)
Net income 707,692
Cash dividends paid, $0.56 per share {52,99%)
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (1,000)
Net loss on disposal of treasury stock (392)
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 8,851
Net increase in treasury stock {61,599 shares} {9,365}
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 $778,664 $973,140 $3,996,355 $50,131 $(28,636)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

AIFUL Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Miliions of Yen {Note 3)
2803 2004 2t33
OPERATING ACTIVITIZS:
Income before income taxes and mingrity interests ¥ 128442 ¥ 103814 $ 1,202,733
Adjustments for:
Income taxes - paid {64,258} {57,958) 1413,837)
Depreciation and amortization 15,858 15,539 158,685
Increase in allowance for doubtful foans and receivables,
advances to an unconsolidated subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy 5.002 13,627 £5,948
Decrease in liability for employees’ retirement benefits {1,536, (1,080) (14,542}
Amortization of bonds issue costs 591 504 5.523
Loss on write-down of investment securities 459 601 4,83
Loss on sales of property and equipment, net 376 260 3514
Loss on disposal of prcperty and equipment 543 668 3,731
Gain on exemption from pension obligation of the governmental program (238) {4,026) {9,246)
Gain on transfer of pension plans (208} (1.84£)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from newly consolidated subsidiaries:
Increase in loans (134,638) {116,159) {1,238,402)
Increase in installment accounts receivable {32.,117) (6,429) (353,236}
Decrease in trading securities held by venture capital subsidiary g0 £,728
(Increase) decrease in other receivables {7,314) 1,752 {68,333)
Increase in claims in bankruptcy {€,873) (6,297 {45,581)
(Increase) decrease in inventorigs {22) 177 {223)
Decrease {increase) in prepaid expenses g3 (121) 77%
Decrease (increase) in long-term prepayments 1.81% (230} 16,983
Decrease in other current assets £.207 3,871 £8,854
Increase in other current liabilities 8,175 4,708 57,710
Other ~ net 378 4,042 3.532
Total adjustments 1952,85%) (146,543) 11.802,343)
Net cash used in operating activities (63,409) (42,735) (532,828)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (9,223) (17,018) (83,531)
Decrease in loans 7.284 18,523 76,517
Purchases of investment securities (£,028) (308) (37,617)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) {9,297) (82,493)
Decrease in investment in trust 1,820 2,000 8,368
Other — net 3033 3172 28,324
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities - (Forward) ¥ {19,211) ¥ 6,37 $ (104,775)
{Continued)

" 066 AIFUL CORPORATION Annual Report 2005




Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
2005 2004 2005
Net cash provided by (used in] investing activities - {Forward) ¥ {11,21%) ¥ 8371 $ (104,776)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 835 (6,831) 7,304
Proceeds from long-term debt (net of bonds issue costs) 742,880 620,815 6,942,304
Repayments of long-term debt (658,663) (605,610 {6,137,224)
Cash dividends paid {5,670) (5.868) (52,991)
Acquisition of treasury stock {1,064) (9) {9,757)
Proceeds from minority shareholders upon capital increase of subsidiary 400
Net cash provided by financing activities 80,318 3097 750,636
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {8) (47) {56)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,592 (33,314) 53,196
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF NEWLY
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARY, BEGINNING OF VEAR 4,544 45,206
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINMING CF YEAR 98,329 131,643 913,962
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥ 108,365 ¥ 98,329 $ 1,013,364
NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
During the year ended March 31, 2005, the Company acquired Wide Corporation
and TCM. Co. Ltd as follows:
Assets acquired ¥ 87,606 $§ 813,729
Liabilities assumed {75.338) {704,093)
Goodwill 4,584 42,341
Cash paid for the capital 15,850 157,477
Acquired cash and cash equivalents {6,853} (64,982)
Net cash used in acquisition of subsidiaries ¥ 9,897 $ 9249
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
{Concluded)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AIFUL Corparation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

1s BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Securities and
Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in
certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and accaunting principles generaltly accepted in
the United States of America.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is mare familiar to readers outside Japan.

In addition, certain reclassification have been made in the 2004 financial statements to conform to the classification used in 2005.

Z

2, SUMBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Aiful Corporation {the "Company”} and its significant subsidiaries {ten
in 2005 and nine in 2004) (together, the “Group”}. Consolidation of the remaining subsidiaries would not have a material effect on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

On April 1, 2004, Tryto Corporation was formed through the integration of consolidated subsidianes, Happy Credit Corporation, Shinwa Co., Ltd. and
Sanyo Shinpan Co., Ltd.

Wide Corporation (“Wide") and TCM. Co. Ltd {"TCM"), which engage in consumer finance, became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company effective
June 30, 2004 and February 21, 2005, respectively. The accounts of Wide, TCM and New Frontier Partners Co., Ltd., a venture capital, were newly
consolidated for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Under the cont-ol or influence concept, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise cantral over operations are fully
consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.

Investments in the remaining unconsclidated subsidiaries {three in 2005 and four in 2004) and associated companies {two in 2005 and one in 2004) are
accounted for on the cost basis because the effect on the consolidated financial statements of not applying the equity method is immaterial.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is amartized using the straight line method over ten years. However, when the excess of cost over net asssts of
subsidiaries acquired is not material, it is charged to income when incurred.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets resulting
from transactions within the Group is eliminated.

b. Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificate of deposits which mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

c. Inventories — Inventories inctude property for sale and supplies. Property for sale is stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the
specific identification method. Depreciation of property for sale currently rented is computed by the same method as applied to property and equipment.
Supplies are stated at the most recent purchase price, which approximates cost determined by the first-in, first-out method.

d. Marketable securities, Trading securities held by venture capital subsidiary and Investment securities — Marketeble securities, trading
securities held by vanture capital and investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as foltows: i) trading
securities, which are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term are reported at fair value, and the related unrealized gains and losses are
included in earnings, ii} available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a
separate component of shareholders’ equity. The cost of securities sold is determined based on the moving-average cost method. Non-marketable available-
for-sale securities zre stated at cost determined by the moving-average cost method.

Investments in limited liability investment partnerships and ather similar partnerships are initially recorded at cost, and the carrying amount is adjusted
to recognize the Company's interests in earnings or losses in such partnerships based on the most recent available financial statements of the partnerships.

For other than temporary declines in fair value, marketable and investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

e. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the declining-balance method. The range of
useful lives is principally from 2 to 62 years for buildings and structures, from 2 to 15 years for machinery and equipment and from 2 to 20 years for
furniture and fixtures.

f. Software — Expenditures for the purchase of software, which meet certain future-tests, are capitalized as software and amortized by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of five years.
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g. Liability for Retirement Benefits — The Group accounted for the liability for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan
assets at the halance sheet date.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit plans at March 31, 2005.

Prior to September 30, 2004, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries had contributory and non-contributory funded defined benefits pension
plans covering substantially all employees. Effective October 1, 2004, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries established a defined contribution
pension plan and a prepaid retirement benefits plan, and terminated the above defined benefits plans. Contributions to the defined contribution plan and
payments to prepaid retirement benefits plan are charged to income when incurred. See Note 10.

Liability for retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors is provided at the amount which would be required if they retired at each balance
sheet date.

h. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts — The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Group's
past credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the accounts outstanding.

i. Leases— All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deem to transter
ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s consolidated financial statements.

j- Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statements of income. The
asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differances
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
temporary differences.

k. Appropriations of Retained Earnings — Appropriations of retained earnings are reflected in the consalidated financial statements for the following
year upon shareholders’ approval.

I.  Foreign Currency Transactions — All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in the
consolidated statements of income.

m. Revenue recognition :

Interest on Loans - Interest on loans is recorded on an accrual basis. In accordance with the practice prevailing in the industry, the Group records accrued
interest to the extent that the realization of such income is considered to be certain.

Interest on credit card shopping loans, Interest on per-item shopping loans - Fees from customers and member stores applying the add-on method are
generally recorded callectively as unearned income when credit contracts become effective and are recognized in equal instaliments over the lives of contracts.
Fees from customers applying the remaining principal method or revolving method are generally recognized in equal installments over the lives of contracts.

n. Interest on Borrowings — Interest on financial liabilities is accounted for as operating expenses while other interest is included in other expenses.
0. Bonds Issue Costs — Bonds issue costs, which are included in other assets, are amortized ratably over periods up to three years.

p. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and
foreign exchange. Interest rate swaps and caps, and currency swaps contracts are utilized hy the Group to reduce interest rate and foreign currency
exchange risks. The Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The accounting standard for derivative financial instruments
requires that: a} all derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on derivative transactions are
recognized in the consolidated statements of income, and b) for derivatives used for hedging purposes, if derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of
high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the
hedged transactions.

Currency swaps contracts are utilized to hedge foreign currency exposure in principal and interest payments of U.S. dollar straight bonds. U.S. dollar
straight bonds are translated at the contracted rates.

The interest rate swaps and caps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value but the
differential paid or received under the swap or cap contracts are recognized and included in interest expense or income.

q. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to comman shareholders by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net income per share of comman stock reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised or converted into common
stock and assumes full exercise of outstanding stock options.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income are dividends applicable to the respective years including
dividends to be paid after the end of the year, which is not retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

AIFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005 069 A




r. New Accounting Pronouncements — [n August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of Gpinion, “Accounting for Impairment of
Fixed Assets”, and in October 2003 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASB) issued ASB Guidance No. 6, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for
tmpairment of Fixed Assets”. These new pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005 with early adoption permitted for
fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2004.

The new accounting standard requires an entity to review its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset
group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual dispesition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

The Company expects to adopt such accounting standards effective April 1, 2005 and is currently in the process of assessing the effect of their adoption.

3. TRANSLATION INTO UNITED STATES DOLLARS

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is incorparated and operates. The
transfation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the
rate of ¥107 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

4, LOANS

Loans at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following (before allowance for doubtful loans):

Thousands of

Miltians of Yen U.S. Dollars
205 2004 2083
Unsecured ¥1,622,032 ¥1,477,430 $15,153,177
Secured 332,244 346,183 3,281,723
Small busingss loans 128,338 84,042 1,130,439
Tota! ¥2 035,202 ¥1,807,655 $79,581,327
Off-balance sheet securitized loans {982,580) {120,715) {830,684)
Net ¥9,933,622 ¥1,786,940 398,650,673

Registered moneylenders are required to disclose the following infarmation under the Non-Bank Bond Law.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 Cmis

Loans in legal bankruptcy ¥ 31,020 ¥ 28,637 $ 285,507

Nonaccrual loans £0,283 52,452 563,332
Accruing loans contractually past due three months or more as to

principal or interest payments 21,943 17.820 185,720

Restructured loans €2.784 50,917 583,785

Total ¥175,138 ¥149,826 $1,635,78%
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Loans in legal bankruptey are loans in which accruals of interest are discontinued {excluding the portion recognized as bad debts), based on
management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal or interest resuiting from the past due payment of interest or principal and other factors.
Allowance for claims in bankruptey is stated at such amount less net realizable value of collateral.

Nonaccrual loans are loans in which accruals of interest are discontinued, and those other than loans in legal bankruptcy as welt as loans receiving
regular payments in case of granting deferral of interest payment to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery.

Accruing loans contractually past due three months or more as to principal or interest payments are loans for which payments of principal or interest
have not been received for a period of three months or more beginning with the next business day following the last due date for such payments. Loans
classified as loans in legal bankruptcy and nonaccrual loans are excluded from accruing loans contractually past due three months or more.

Restructured loans are loans on which creditors grant concessions (e.g., reduction of the stated interest rate, deferral of interest payment, extension of
maturity date, waiver of the face amount, or other concessive measures) to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery and eventually
enable them to pay creditors. Loans classified as loans in legal bankruptcy, nonaccrual loans and accruing loans contractually past due three months or more
are excluded,

The securitized loans, which were not recognized on the balance sheets, amounted to ¥99,580 mitlion ($330,654 thousand) and ¥120,715 million at
March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

At March 31, 2005 and 2004, the Graup had the balances related to revolving loan contracts of ¥1,931,164 million {$18,048,252 thousand) and
¥1,496,120 million, respectively, whereby a commitment is set up for each loan customer and the Group is obligated to advance funds up to a predetermined
amount upon request. At March 31, 2005 and 2004, the balances of unadvanced commitments were ¥5,182,848 million {$48,437,832 thousand) and
¥4,784,929 million, respectively. The loan contract contains provisions that allow the Group to reduce the contract amount of the commitment or refuse to
advance funds to loan customers under certain conditions.

5. INSTALLMENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Installment accounts receivable and unearned income, included in other current liabilities, at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Unearned Unearned Unearned
Receivables Income Receivables income Receivables income
Credit card shopping loans ¥ 79,623 ¥ 533 ¥ 71,528 ¥ 378 $ 744,960 $ 4,981
Per-item shopping loans 197,226 13,646 176,022 9,938 7,843,234 127,533
Other 1
Total ¥276,849 ¥14,17¢ ¥247 551 ¥10,316 $2,587,374 $132,514
Off-balance sheet securitized installment
accounts receivable (84,847) (93.266) {789,224)
Net ¥192,402 ¥14,179 ¥154,285 ¥10,316 $1,798,150 $132,514
In addition, the Group has unearned income of ¥30 million {3280 thousand) and ¥83 million at March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to loans
other than thase shown in the above table.
6. LOAN GUARANTEES AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER LOAN GUARANTEES

The Group, as guarantor, recorded loan guarantees as a contra account of obligations under loan guarantees. Unearned income relating to loan guarantees
was ¥315 million (32,944 thousand) and ¥428 million at March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which was included in other current liabilities.
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7. INVENTORIES

Inventories at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

20905 2004 2303
Property for sale ¥1639 ¥181 $1,580
Supplies 174 137 4,828
Total ¥343 ¥318 $3,203

8. MMARKETABLE SECURITIES, TRADING SECURITIES HELD BY VENTURE CAPITAL SUBSIDIARY AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2035
Current:
Equity securities ¥ 1,884 $15,884
Government and corporate bonds 8 ¥ 120 74
Total ¥ 1,822 ¥ 120 $15,158
Non-current:
Equity securities ¥13,302 ¥15,498 $180,392
Other 4,814 3,218 £4,891
Total ¥24,116 ¥18,716 $223,383

The carrying amounts and fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of Yen
2005
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:

Trading:

Equity securities ¥ 1,614

Government and carporate bonds 8
Total ¥ 1,522
Available-for-sale-

Equity securities ¥3,734 ¥3,038 ¥201 ¥i7,62%

Millions of Yen
2004
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as-

Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥6,784 ¥7,537 ¥345 ¥13,976

Debt securities 120 120
Total ¥6,904 ¥7,537 ¥345 ¥14,096
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Thousands of U.S. Dallars

2005
Unreslized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Trading:
Equity securities $ 15,084
Government and corporate bonds 74
Total $ 15,158
Available-for-sale-
Equity securities $81,813 $84,748 $1,87¢ $164,682

Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Carrying amount

Thousands of

Milliens of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 T
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥1,681 ¥1,522 $15,710
Investments in limited liability investment partnerships 3314 1,718 30,972
Other 1.500 1,500 14,018
Total ¥6,495 ¥4,740 $60,701

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were ¥1,644 million (315,364 thousand) and ¥2,046
million, respectively. Gross realized gains on these sales, computed on the moving average cost basis, were ¥713 million (86,664 thousand) and ¥738 million
for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and gross realized losses were ¥170 million ($1,589 thousand) and ¥44 million for the years
ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The carrying values of debt securities by contractual maturities is not disclosed because the Company had no such securities at March 31, 2005.

9. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2095 2004 2085
Commercial paper, 0.18% to 0.25% at March 31, 2004 ¥ 5,000
Loans from banks, 0.70% to 1.70% {0.80% to 2.05% at March 31, 2004} ¥13,400 10,700 $125,234
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.38% tc 1.48% (1.48% at March 31, 2004) 11,000 6,000 102,304
Cther (principally from feasing and factoring companies), 1.85% to 2.55%
{0.18% to 2.65% at March 31, 2004) 47,285 40,335 442,009
Total 474,695 ¥62,035 $670,047
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Long-term debt at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2335 2004 2005

Loans from banks, 0.58% tc 3.20%, due serially to 2010 {0.69% to 4.20%,

due serially to 2008 at March 31, 2004) ¥ 691,535 ¥ 555,428 $ £,482,%44
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.45% to 3.35%, due serially to 2010

{1.45% to0 4.00%, due serially to 2008 at March 31, 2004} 238,985 217,432 2,214.813
Syndicated loans, 0.79% to 1.94%, due serially to 2011 (0.89% to 1.87%,

due serially to 2009 at March 31, 2004) 107,078 104,878 1,003,738
Unsecured 2.00% to 2.53% yen straight bonds, due 2004 90,000
Unsecured 0.80% to 2.00% yen straight bonds, due 2005

(0.80% to 2.00% at March 31, 2004) £0.,000 80,000 747 554
Unsecured 1.30% to 3.27% ven straight bonds, due 2006

(1.30% to 3.27% at March 31, 2004) 78,539 78,500 733,345
Unsecured 1.66% to 2.51% yen straight bonds, due 2007

(1.66% to 2.51% at March 31, 2004) £3,888 43,000 405,859
Unsecured 0.54% to 2.48% vyen straight bonds, due 2008

{1.07% to 2.48% at March 31, 2004) 51,020 50,000 478,835
Unsecured 1.01% to 3.28% yen straight bonds, due 2009

(1.44% to0 3.28% at March 31, 2004} €8,609 38,000 633,514
Unsecured 1.25% to 3.00% yen straight bonds, due 2010

(1.25% to 3.00% at March 31, 2004} 30,009 30,000 281,374
Unsecured 1.50% to 1.58% yen straight bonds, due 2011 20,309 185,916
Unsecured 1.20% yen straight bonds, due 2012 10,000 83,438
Unsecured 1.74% yen straight bonds, due 2013 {1.74% at March 31, 2004) 13,000 10,000 83,458
Unsecured variable rate Euro-yen straight bonds, due 2006

(1.80% at March 31, 2005, 1.80% at March 31, 2004} 12,500 12,500 116,822
Unsecured 4.45% J.S. dollar straight bonds, due 2010 52,8380 484,259
Unsecured 0.86% medium-term notes, due 2005 4,000 4,000 37,383
Unsecured 2.21% medium-term notes, due 2007 £,000 1,000 9,345
Unsecured 3.00% medium-term notes, due 2008 3,000 3,000 28,037
Unsecured 3.50% medium-term notes, due 2015 15,000 15,000 148,187
Other (principally from leasing and factoring companies), 0.79% to 1.95%,

due serially to 2010 (0.85% to 2.30%, at March 31, 2004) ¥ 87274 ¥ 119,039 3 815,845
Total 1,88%,7563 1,451,777 14,989,748
Less current portion {530,681) (498,204} {4,959,449)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥1,071,102 ¥ 953,573 $10,010,289
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2006 ¥ 330,667 $ 4,959,449
2007 £38,863 4,101,570
2008 ' 270,977 2,532,495
2009 133,313 1,245,916
2010 150,720 1,403,538
2011 and thereafter 77,224 721,720
Total ¥1,601,733 $14,968,748

At March 31, 2005, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings and long-term debt (including current pertion of long-term debt):

Thousands of

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Time deposits ¥ 53 5 4872
Loans §25,523 7,995,542
Installment accounts receivable £8,736 548,878
Inventories 713 1,056
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 2,391 22,346
Total ¥097,283 $8,572,794
Related liahilities:

Short-term borrowings ¥ 13,249 $ 497,570

Long-term debt {including current portion of long-term debt) $10,213 5,703,860

Trade accounts payable 171 1,598
Total ¥§33,726 $6,203,028

The above table includes loans related to securitized loans of ¥344,039 million ($3,215,318 thousand), and related liabilities (long-term debt including
current portion} of ¥134,266 million ($1,254,822 thousand).

In addition, if requested by lending financial institutions, the Group has committed to pledge collateral for loans other than those shown in the abave
table. At March 31, 2005, related liabilities for which lending financial institutions can request the Group to pledge collateral consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Shart-term borrawings ¥ 418 $ 3738
Long-term debt {including current portion of long-term debt) 934,812 1,439,385
Total ¥734,412 $1,443,103

At March 31, 2005, other current assets amounting to ¥4,456 million ($41,645 thousand) were pledged as collateral for the interest rate swap contracts.

A portion of the Company’s and Life’s syndicated loans are subject to repayment if the Company or Life fails to meet certain financial criteria, such as
those relating to minimum tangible net worth levels, specified ratios of liabilities to tangible net worth and to equity, specified asset compositions and
minimum recurring income levels, and operating criteria, such as those relating to bad debt charge—off levels. As of March 31, 2005, the Cornpany and Life
were in compliance with all of these covenants. ‘
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T0. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries had contributory and non-contributory funded pension plans covering substantially all employees. Under
the pension plans, employees terminating their employment were, in most circumstances, entitled to pension payments based on their average pay during
their employment, length of service and certain ather factors. If the termination was involuntary, employees were usually entitled to larger payments than in
the case of voluntary termination.

The contributory funded defined benefit pension plan, which is established under the Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law, cavers a
substitutional partion of the governmental pension program managed by the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries on behaif of the government
and a corporate portion established at the discretion of the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries. In accordance with the Defined Benefit
Pension Plan Law enacted in April 2002, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries applied for an exemption from obligation to pay benefits for
future employee services related to the substitutional portion which would result in the transfer of the pension obligations and related assets to the
government upon approval.

On September 25, 2003, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries obtained approval for exemption from the future obligation by the Ministry
of Health, Labar and Welfare. The Company and a certain consolidated subsidiary applied for the transfer of the substitutional portion of past pension
obligations to the government and abtained approval by the Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare on September 30, 2004. The Company and & certain
consolidated subsidiary thereafter transferred the substitutional partion of the pension obligations and related assets to the government on March 186, 2005.
The Company and a certain consolidated subsidiary recognized a gain on exemption from pension obligation of the governmental program in the amount of
¥208 million ($1,944 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2005.

According to the enactment of the Defined Contribution Pension Plan Law in October 2001, effective October 1, 2004, the Cornpany and a certain
cansolidated subsidiary implemented a defined contribution pension plan and prepaid retirement benefits plan while the former qualified defined benefit
pensions plan and severance lump-sum payment plan were terminated on September 30, 2004. As cf March 31, 2005, the amount of retirement benefits
relating to prior services incurred by each employee, which has to be allocated to sach emplayee's accounts has not been finally detarmined.

One consolidated subsidiary chose to apply the transitional measure of the accounting standard {Article 47-2 of Accounting Committee Report No.13
“Practical Guidelines for Accounting for Retirements Benefits”), which permits the subsidiary to account for the exemption of pension obligations and plan
assets related to the substitutional portion as of the date of obtaining approval of exemption (i.e., before the transfer of the related plan assets to the
government). The subsidiary obtained approval of exemption from future obligation by the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare on September 25, 2003.
As a result, the subsidiary recognized a gain on exemption from future and prior pension obligation of the government program in the amount of ¥4,026
million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

Effective October 1, 2004, the Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries established a defined contribution pension plan and prepaid retirement
benefits plan, having terminated the defined benefit pension plans. Also, according to the enactment of the Defined Contribution Pension Plan Law in
October 2001, a consolidated subsidiary terminated its qualified defined benefit pensions plan and severance lump-sum payment plan on March 31, 2005
and implemented a defined contribution pension plan and prepaid retirement benefits plan on April 1, 2005. For the transfer from a defined benfits planto a
defined contribution pension plan, the consolidated subsidiary applied accounting treatments specified in the guidance issued by the Accounting Standards
Board of Japan and the effect of this transfer was to increase income before income taxes and minority interests by ¥208 million ($1,944 thousand) and
recorded a gain on transfer of pension plans in the statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Another consolidated subsidiary terminated its severance lump-sum payment plan and implemented a defined contribution pension plan and prepaid
retirement benefits plan.

The liability for retirement benefits includes retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors of ¥1,420 million {$13,271 thousand) and ¥1,263
million at March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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The liability for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Doitars
2005 2004 2005

Projected benefit obligation ¥8237 ¥ 14511 $ 76,981

Fair value of plan assets (7,033) {10,919) (65,729)

Unrecognized actuarial loss (517) {1,212 (4,831)

Net liability ¥ 687 ¥ 2,380 $ 642
Prepaid pension cost 38 .

Liability for employees’ retirement benefits ¥ 687 ¥ 2418 $ 6421

The components of net periadic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 5
Service cost ¥ 762 ¥1,168 LR VA
Interest cost 278 306 2,598
Expected return on plan assets (183) (147) {1,710)
Amortization of prior service cost, net of settlement charge 620 (550) 5,794
Recognized actuarial {gain) loss 242 {98) 2,262
Payments for prepaid retirement benefits plan 150 1,402
Premiums for defined contribution pension plan 229 2,140
Net periodic benefit costs 2,098 679 19,607
Gain on transfer of the substitutional portion of the governmental pension program (208) (4,026) {1,944)
Gain on transfer of pension plans (208) (%,944)
Total ¥1,682 ¥(3,347) $15,719
Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were set forth as follows:
2005 2004

1.5%t0 2.5%
1.5%t0 2.0%

Discount rate

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Amortization period of prior service cost:
Company Full amount charged to
income as incurred

One consolidated subsidiary 10 years

Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss:
Company Full amount charged to
income as incurred

One consolidated subsidiary 10 years
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11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Japanese companiss are subject to the Japanese Commercial Code { the “Code”).

The Code requires that all shares of common stock are recorded with no par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is required to be
recorded as common stock and the remaining net proceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus. The Code permits Japanese
companies, upan agproval of the Board of Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a stock split. Such issuance of shares
generally does not give rise to changes within the shareholders’ accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal to 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other appropriations of retained
garnings associated with cash outlays applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve (a companent of retained earnings) until such
reserve and additicnal paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve that exceeds 25% of
common stock may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the Code permits the transfer of a portion of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Code allows Japanese companies to repurchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount available for future dividends plus the amaunt of common stock, additional paid-in capital
or legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such reduction was resolved at a general shareholders’ mesting.

In addition to the provision that requires an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash payment, the Code imposes certain limitations
on the amount of retained earnings available for dividends. The amount of retained eamings available for dividends under the Code was ¥430,915 million
($4,027,243 thousand) as of March 31, 2005, based on the amount recorded in the parent company’s general books of account.

Dividends are appraved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable. Semiannual interim
dividends may also be paid upon resclution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations impased by the Code.

At the Sharehalders” General Meeting held on June 27, 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved the stock option plan for the Company's directors
and key employees. The plan provides for granting options to directors and key employaes to purchass the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of
¥6,386 per share during the period from July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2008. The maximum number of shares to be issued upaon exercise of the options were 67
thousand shares as of March 31, 2005.

At the Shareholders’ General Meeting held on June 25, 2004, the Company’s shargholders approved the stock option plan for the Company's and
subsidiaries’ directors and key employees. The plan provides for granting options to purchase the Company’s common stack at an exercise price of ¥7,774
per share during the period from July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2008. The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the options were 343
thousand shares as of March 31, 2005.

The Company made a stock split subsequent to the date of the option grants mentioned above, and the number of shares to be issued and exercise price
was adjusted based upon a certain formula, as defined.

The Company issues acquired treasury stock upon exercise of the stock options.

Pursuant to the revision of the Japanese Commercial Code, the Company revised its articles of incorporation as the Company cou d repurchase its common
stock as treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

12. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in normal effective
statutory tax rates of approximately 40.6% and 41.9% for the years endad March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise tax was enacted in Japan which changed the narmal effective statutory tax rate from 41.9%
to 40.6%, effective for years beginning on or after April 1, 2004.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities which will realize on or after April 1, 2004 are measured at the effective tax rate of 40.6% as at March 31, 2004.
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005
and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of
Mitlions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Current Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for doubtful loans ¥ 1,584 ¥ 7931 $ 14,804
Charge-offs for doubtful loans 12,519 11,115 117,000
Tax loss carryforwards 10,102 5,379 94,411
Enterprise tax payable 1,494 1,522 13,963
Accrued bonuses 1,724 1,576 16,112
Accrued interest on loans 3,348 1,929 31,290
Other 91 295 8,607
Total 31,692 29,747 296,187
Less valuation allowance (869) {429} {8,121}
Net 30,823 29,318 288,066
Current Deferred Tax Liabilities 14 6 131
Net deferred tax assets ¥30,809 ¥29,312 $287,935
Non-current Deferred Tax Assets:
Tax loss carryforwards ¥ 2,108 ¥14,278 $ 19,701
Provision for doubtful loans 669 712 6,252
Depreciation and amortization 3,153 2,453 29,467
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities 1,240 86 11,589
Other 2,284 3,188 21,346
Total 9,454 20,717 88,355
Less valuation allowance (1,535) {2,915) {14,346)
Net 7,919 17.802 74,009
Non-current Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 3,631 3,004 33,934
Other 16
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 4,288 ¥14,782 $ 40,075

A valuation allowance is established to reduce certain deferred tax assets with respect to deductible temporary differences and net aperating loss
carryforwards where it is more likely than not that they will not be realized.

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

2005 2004
Normal effective statutory tax rates 40.6% 41.9%
Additional taxation on undistributed income 49
Expenses not deductible for income taxes purposes 1.7 28
Decrease of valuation allowance (1.4) 9.7}
Other, net 0.1 {0.4)
Actual effective tax rates 41.0% 39.5%

AIFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005 079




13. LEASES

The Group leases vehicles, computer equipment, furniture and fixtures, office space and other assets.
Total rental expenses including lease payments under finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Total Lease Payments Total Lease Payments
Rental Under Finance Rental Under Finance
Expenses Leases Expenses Leases
Year Ended March 31:
2005 ¥23,362 ¥6,802 $218,336 $63,570
2004 23,532 6,460

Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligations under finance leases, depreciation expense,
and interest expensz of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended
March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

As of March 31, 2005

Millions of Yen
Machinery Furniture Buildings
and and and
Equipment Fixtures Structures Total
Acquisition cost ¥13 ¥13,556 ¥9 ¥19,878
Accumulated depreciation 170 12,756 3 12,929
Net leased property ¥143 ¥ 6,800 ¥6 ¥ 6,949

As of March 31, 2004

) Millions of Yen
Machinery Furniture Buildings
and and and
Equipment Fixtures Structures Total
Acquisition cost ¥481 ¥727,601 ¥9 ¥78,091
Accumulated depreciation 327 18,649 2 18,978
Net leased property ¥154 ¥ 8,952 ¥7 ¥ 9113

As of March 31, 2005

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Machinery Furniture Buildings
and and and
Equipment Fixtures Structures Total
Acquisition cost $2,925 $182,767 $84 $185,776
Accumulated depraciation 1,589 115,215 28 120,832
Net leased property $1,336 $ 63,552 $56 $ 64,9494
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Obligations under finance leases:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥3,791 ¥4,729 $35,430
Due after one year 3,109 4,498 29,056
Total ¥6,900 ¥9,227 $64,486

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, computed under a
straight-line method and the interest method were as follows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of Yen U.S. Dollarg

2005 2004 2005
Depreciation expense ¥6,240 ¥6,214 $58,318
Interest expense 237 207 2,215

The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases at March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2005
Due within one year ¥109 ¥104 $1,019
Due after one year 14 222 1,318
Total ¥250 ¥326 $2,337

14.

DERIVATIVES

The Group enters into interest rate swap and cap, and currency swap contracts as a means of managing its principal and interest rate exposures on
certain liabilities.

Such derivative transactions are entered intg to hedge interest expasures incarparated within its business. Accardingly, market and fareign
exchange risks in these derivatives is theoretically offset by opposite movements in the value of hedged liabilities. The Group does not hold or issue
derivatives for trading and speculative purposes.

Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major financial institutions, the Group does not anticipate any losses arising from
credit risk.

Derivative transactions entered into by the Group have been made in accordance with internal policies, which regulate the authorization and credit
limit amount.

The Group did not disclose market value information about derivative instruments because interest rate swap and cap, and currency swap contracts
which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are permitted to be omitted from disclosure of market value information under
Japanese GAAP.
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15. NETINCOME PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share {"EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Yen in millions Thousands of shares Yen Dollars
Net income Weighted average shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2005:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥75,596 141,679 ¥533.57 $4.99
Effect of Dilutive Securities -
Stock Options 1"
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥75,596 141,690 ¥533.53 $4.99
For the year ended March 31, 2604:
Basic EPS
Net income available to commaon shareholders ¥62,441 141,702 ¥440.65

Diluted EPS for the year ended March 31, 2004 is not disclosed because it is anti-dilutive.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a. Stock Split

On February 21, 2005, the Board of Directors declared a three for two stock split to shareholders of record on March 31, 2005. As a result, the number of the
issued and outstanding common stock increased by 47,345,000 shares effactive May 23, 2005.

b. Appropriations of Retained Earnings

The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31, 2005 were approved at the Shareholders” General Meeting held on June 24, 2005:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Year-end cash dividends, ¥30 ($0.28) per share ¥2,832 $26,467
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 127 1,187

¢. Stock option plan
At the Shareholders’ General Meeting held on June 24, 2005, the Company’s shareholders approved the following stock aption plan:

The plan provides for granting options to directors and key employees of Company and subsidiaries to purchase up to 400 thousand shares of the
Company’s common stock in the period from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2010. The options will be granted to purchase common stock at the higher of 103% of
the average fair market price for the preceding manth of the grant, or the fair market price at the time or grant. The Company plans to grant stock purchase
warrants and issue stock upon exercise of the stock options.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Most of the Group's business is related to a single segment, lending. The Group does not operate outside Japan. Accordingly, information about industry and
geographic segments was not presented.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Deloitte. % Shimbashi & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Aitul Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Aiful Corporation and
consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements
of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese
yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Aiful Corporation and consolidated
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and

their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts

and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3.
Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

acds, SohuTo g’%f/;%/% 4/@ & Ca.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU SHIMBASHI & CO.
Kyoto, Japan Osaka, Japan
June 24, 2005 June 24, 2005
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NON-CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AIFUL Carporation
March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
ASSETS 2005 2004 2005
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 67,457 ¥ 60376 $ 630,439
Time deposits 18 50 729
Loans (Notes 4 and 7) 1,471,767 1,451,638 13,754,832
Allowance for doubtful toans (81,928) (81,693) {765,682}
Net loans 1,389,839 1,389,945 12,985,150
Inventories (Notes 5 and 7} 169 181 1,579
Prepaid expenses 3,437 3,688 21
Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 8,203 13,629 76,664
Other current assets (Note 7) 34,865 52,831 325,841
Total current assets 1,504,048 1,500,700 14,056,523
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 5,613 5613 52,458
Buildings and structures 28,040 28,054 262,056
Machinery and equipment 161 161 1,505
Furniture and fixtures 15,157 15,024 151,000
Construction in progress 209 57 1,953
Total 50,180 48,909 468,972
Accumulated depreciation {21,685) {19,265} (202,664}
Net property and equipment 28,495 29,644 266,308
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Note 6) 19,319 16,042 180,551
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries (Note 10) 428,978 271,952 4,018,486
Claims in bankruptcy (Note 4) 25,278 22,925 236,243
Allowance for advances to subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy (19,125) (18,265) (178,738}
Software, net 11,113 10,405 103,860
Long-term loans {less current portion) 1,103 1,142 10,308
Lease deposits 8,716 8,118 81,458
Long-term prepayments 3,193 4,774 29,841
Deferred tax assets (Note 9) 14 769 131
Deferred losses on hedging instruments, mainly interest rate swaps 18,971 18,975 171,299
Other assets 2,444 2,895 22,842
Total investments and other assets 501,004 339,732 4,682,281
TOTAL ¥2,033,547 ¥1,870,076 $19,005,112

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements,
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Thousands of

U.S. Dotlars
Millions of Yen {Note 3)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2005 2004 2005
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 7) ¥ 95,000 ¥ 8500 $ 140,187
Current portion of long-term debt (Nate 7} 442,065 417,815 4,131,458
Trade notes payable £,589 4,162 42,981
Trade accounts payable 5,683 5,348 $2,832
Income taxes payable 22,545 24,661 210,701
Accrued expenses £,952 7.067 84,972
Other current liabilities 1,470 1,252 13,738
Total current liabilities 498,285 468,806 4,556,858
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (less current portion) (Note 7) 931,542 857,414 8,706,065
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 2.g) 1,528 2,027 14,290
Interest rate swaps 17,835 18,832 166,682
Other long-term liabilities 41 a2 384
Total long-term liabilities 950,954 878,365 8,887,421
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Nate 12)
SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY (Notes 8 and 14):
Comimon stock,
authorized, 373,500,000 shares;
1ssued, 94,690,000 shares 83317 83,317 778,554
Capital surplus —
Additiona! paid-in capital 80,225 90,225 843,224
Retained earnings:
Legal reserve 1,566 1,566 14,636
Unappropriated 485,979 345,497 3,003,542
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 5,285 4,362 48,392
Total 587,372 524,967 5,489,458
Treasury stock, at cost — 284,465 shares in 2005
and 222,866 shares in 2004 (3,064) {2,062} (28,536)
Total shareholders’ equity 584,308 522,805 5,660,822
TOTAL ¥2,033,547 ¥1,870,076 $19,005,112
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

AIFUL Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands of

U.S. Dallars
Miltions of Yen {Note 3)
2185 2004 2583
INCOREE:
tnterest on loans ¥33D,529 ¥326,979 $3.088.825
Interest on deposits, securities and other (Note 10} £,323 3.961 43,621
Sales of property for sale 50
Recavery of loans previously charged off 4,030 3,739 38,224
Gain on exemption from pension obligation of the governmental program 268 1,964
Other income 8,005 5,495 76,813
Total income 347,157 340,224 3,264,458
EXPENSES:
Interest on borrowings 23,835 31,187 278,832
Charge-offs and provision for doubtful loans, advances to subsidiary and claims in bankruptcy 97,383 109,221 390,140
Salaries and other employees’ benefits 28,478 28,651 285,150
Advertising expenses 16,972 13,697 133,921
Rental expenses 14,056 13,926 139,881
Commissions and fees 19,967 10,833 519,841
Supplies 1.028 1,859 9,807
Depreciation and amortization 8,752 4,874 £3,103
Provision for employees’ retirement benefits 1,369 " 12,734
Provision for retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors 76 121 79
Other expenses 28,508 27,883 268,414
Total expenses 234,391 242,263 2,153,570
{NCOME BEFORE INCORME TAXES 112,788 97,961 1,083,888
INCGRAE TAXES (Note 9):
Current 38,974 44,918 373,028
Deferred 5,551 (43) 51,879
Total income taxes 45,455 44,875 £24,807
NET INCOME ¥ £7,301 ¥ 53,086 $ 523281
Yen U.S. Dollars
AMOUNTS PER COMMGCN SHARE (Notes 2.q and 13):
Basic net income ¥474.13 ¥373.88 $£.43
Dituted net income L7239 £.483
Cash dividends applicable to the year £0.00 60.00 0.55

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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NON-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

AIFLIL Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

Thousands Millions of Yen
Capital Surplus Retained Earnings
Number of Net Unrealized
Shares of . Additional Gain on Treasury
Cammon Stock Comman Paid-in Legal i Available-for- Stock,
Issued Stock Capital Reserve Unappropriated  sale Securities at Cost
BALANCE AT APRIL 1, 2003 94,690 ¥83,317 ¥90,225 ¥1,566 ¥298,177 ¥ (398) ¥(2,053)
Net income 53,086
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share {5,668}
Bonuses to directors and
corporate auditors (98)
Net unrealized gain on
availahle-for-sale securities 4,760
Net increase in treasury stock
{1,228 shares) {9)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2004 94,690 ¥83,317 ¥90,225 ¥1,566 ¥345,497 ¥4,362 ¥(2,062}
Net income 67,301
Cash dividends paid, ¥60 per share {5,870)
Bonuses to directors and
corporate auditors (707)
Net loss on disposal of treasury stock {62)
Net unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities 823
Net increase in treasury stock
(61.599 shares) {1,002)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 84,690 ¥83,317 ¥90,225 ¥1,566 ¥406,979 ¥5,285 ¥(3,088)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars [Note 3}
Capital Surplus Retained Earnings
Net Unrealized
Additional Gain on Treasury
Common Paid-in Legal Available-for- Stock,
Stock Capital Reserve Unappropriated  sale Securities at Cost
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2004 $778.664 $843, 224 $14,636 $3,228,944 $40,766 $019.271}
Net income 628,987
Cash dividends paid, $0.56 per share (52,891)
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors {1,800}
Net loss on disposal of treasury stock (352)
Net unrealized gain on avaitable-for-sale securities 8,25
Net increase in treasury stock {61,599 shares) (,365)
BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2005 $778,654 $843, 224 $14,636 $3,803,542 $49,392 $(26,636)

See notes to non-consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AIFUL Corporation
Years Ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

To BASIS OF PRESENTING NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of Aiful Corporation {the “Company”) have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Japansse Securities and Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan (Japanese GAAP), which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As consolidated statements of cash flows and certain disclosures are presented in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, non-
cdnsolidated statements of cash flows and certain disclosures are not presented herein in accordance with Japanese GAAP.

In preparing these non-consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the Company's non-
consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is'more familiar to readers outside Japan.

In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in the 2004 financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2005.

2. SUMMIARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Non-Consolidation - The non-cansclidated financial statements do not include the accounts of subsidiaries. Investments in subsidiaries and
associated companies are stated at cost.
b. Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits and certificate of deposits which mature or become due within three months of the cate of acquisition.
¢. Inventories - Inventories include property for sale. Property for sale is stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the specific
identification method. Depreciation of property for sale currently rented is computed by the same method, as applied to property and equipment.
d. Marketable and Investment Securities — Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management's
intent, as follows: i) investment securities in subsidiaries and associated companies, are reported at cost, and ii) available-for-sale securities are reported at
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate compenent of shareholders” equity. The cost of sacurities sold is
determined based an the moving-average method.

Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method. For other than temporary declines in fair
value, marketable and investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

Investments in limited liability investment partnerships and other similar partnerships are initially recorded at cost, and the carrying amount is adjusted
to recognize the Company's interests in earnings or losses in such partnerships based on the recent available financial statements of the partnerships.
e. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the declining-balance method. The range of
useful lives is principally from 3 to 50 years for buildings and structures, from 13 to 15 years for machinery and equipment and from 3 to 20 years for
furniture and fixtures.
. Software — Expenditures for the purchase of software, which meet certain future-tests, are capitalized as software and amartized by the straight-line
methad over the estimated useful lives of five years.
g. Liability for Retirement Benefits — The Company had cantributory and nan-contributory funded pension plans covering substantially ail employees.
Under the pension plans, employees terminating their employment were, in most circumstances, entitled to pension payments based on their average pay
during their employment, length of service and certain other factors. If the termination was involuntary, employees were usually entitled to larger payments
than in the case of voluntary termination.

The Company accounted far the net liability for retirement benefits based on projected benefit obligation and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

The contributory funded defined benefit pension plan, which is established under the Japanese Welfare Pension Insurance Law, covers a substitutiona!
portian of the governmental pension program managed by the Company on behaif of the government and a corporate portion established at the discretion of
the Company. In accordance with the Defined Benefit Pension Plan Law enacted in April 2002, the Company applied for an exemption from obligation to pay
benefits for future employee services related to the substitutional portion which would result in the transfer of the pension obligations and related assets to
the government upon approval. On September 25, 2003, the Company obtained approval for exemption from the future obligation by the Ministry of Health,
Labor and Welfare,
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The Company applied for the transfer of the substitutional portion of past pension obligations to the gavernment and obtained approval by the Ministry
of Health, Labor and Welfare on September 30, 2004

The Company thereafter transferred the substitutional portion of the pension obligations and related assets to the government on March 18, 2005. The
Company recognized a gain on exemption fram pension obligation of governmental program in the amount of ¥208 million ($1,944 thousandi for the year
endad March 31, 2005.

According to the enactment of the Defined Contribution Pension Plan Law in October 2001, effective Octaber 1, 2004, the Company implemented a
defined contribution pension plan and prepaid retirement benefits plan while the former qualified defined benefit pensions plan and severance lump-sum
payment plan were terminated on September 30, 2004. As of March 31, 2005, the amount of retirement benefits relating to prior services ircurred by each
employee, which has to be allocated to each employee’s accounts has not been finally determined. Contributions to the defined contribution plan and
payments to prepaid retirement benefits plan are charged to income when incurred.

Liability for retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors is provided at the amount which would be required if they retired at each balance
sheet date.

The balances of retirement benefits include those to directors and corporate auditars in the amount of ¥1,210 million ($11,308 thousand] and ¥1,221
million for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

h. AHowances for Doubtful Loans — The allowance for doubtful loans is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Company’s past
credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding.

i. Leases~ All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deem 1o transfer
ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s non-consolidated financial statements.

j- Income Taxes — The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the non-consolidated statements of income. The
asset and liahility approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
temporary differences.

k. Appropriations of Retained Earnings — Appropriations of retained eamings are reflected in the non-consolidated financial statements for the
following year upon shareholders” approval.

I.  Foreign Currency Transactions — All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in the non-
consolidated statements of income.

m. Interest on Loans - Interest on loans is recorded on an accrual basis. In accordance with the practice prevailing in the industry, the Company records
accrued interest to the extent that the realization of such income is considered to be certain.

n. Interest on Borrowings — Interest on financial liabilities is accounted for as operating expenses while other interest is included in other expenses.
o. Bonds Issue Costs — Bonds issue costs, which are inciuded in other assets, are amortized ratably over periods up to three years.

p. Derivatives and Hedging Activities — The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in interest rates
and foreign exchange. Interest rate swaps and caps, and currency swaps contracts are utilized by the Company to reduce interest rate and foreign currency
exchange risks. The Company dogs not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The accounting standard for derivative financial
instruments requires that: a) all derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on derivative
transactions are recognized in the non-consolidated statements of income, and b} for derivatives used for hedging purposes, if derivatives gualify for hedge
accounting because of high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives are
deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions.

Currency swaps contracts are utilized to hedge foreign currency exposures in principal and interest payment of U.S. dollar straight bonds. U.S. dollar
straight honds are translated at the contracted rates.

The interest rate swaps and caps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value but the
differential paid or received under the swap or cap contracts are recognized and included in interest expense or income.
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q. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common sharehalders by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

Diluted net inccme per share of common stock reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised into common stock and
assumes full exercise of outstanding stock options.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying non-consolidated statements of income are dividends applicable to the respective years
including dividends o be paid after the end of the year, which is not retroactively adjusted for stock splits.
r. New Accounting Pronouncements — In August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for Impairment
of Fixed Assets”, and in October 2003 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan {ASB) issued ASB Guidance No. 6, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Impairment of Fixed Assets”. These new pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2005 with early adoption permitted for
fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2004. The new accounting standard requires an entity to review its fong-tived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes ir circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected ta result from the continued
use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net
selling price at dispesition,

The Company expects to adopt such accounting standards on April 1, 2005 and is currently in the process of assessing the effect of their adoption.

3. TRANSLATION INTO UNITED STATES DOLLARS

The non-consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is incorporated and operates. The
translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the
rate of ¥107 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2005. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts cauld be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any ather rate.

&, LOANS

Loans at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following (before allowance for doubtful loans):
Thousands of

Miltions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2803 2004 2655
Unsecured ¥1,093,663 ¥1,081,058 $10,221,150
Secured 345,180 342,637 3,225,981
Small business loans 32,924 27,943 307,7G%
Total ¥1,471,767 ¥1,451,638 $13,754,832

Registered moneylenders are required to disclose the following information under the Non-Bank Bond Law.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
28¢5 2004 2005

Loans in legal bankruptcy ¥ 28,145 ¥ 25,108 $ 263037
Nanaccrual loans 48,321 4214 450,664
Accruing loans contractually past due three months or mare as to

principal or interest payments 12,101 12,376 113,033
Restructured loans 40,198 37,260 375,684
Total ¥128,663 ¥117,885 $1.202 458
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Loans in legal bankruptcy are loans in which accruals of interest are discontinued {excluding the portion recognized as bad debts}, based on
management’s judgment as to the collectibility of principal or interest resulting from the past due payment of interest of principal and other factors.
Allowances for claims in bankruptcy are stated at such amount less net realizable value of collateral.

Nonaccrual loans are loans in which accruals of interest are discontinued, and those other than loans in legal bankruptey as well as loans receiving
regular payments in case of granting deferral of interest payment to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery.

Accruing loans contractually past due three months or mare as to principal or interest payments are loans for which payments of principal or interest
have not been received for a period of three months or more beginning with the next business day following the last due date for such payments. Loans
classified as loans in legal bankruptcy and nonaccrual loans are excluded from accruing loans contractually past due three months or more.

Restructured loans are loans on which creditors grant concessions {e.g., reduction of the stated interest rate, deferral of interest payment, extension of
maturity date, waiver of the face amount, or other concessive measures) to the debtors in financial difficulties to assist them in their recovery and eventually
enable them to pay creditors. Loans classified as loans in fegal bankruptcy, nonaccrual loans and accruing loans contractually past due three months or more
are excluded.

At March 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had the balances related to revolving loan contracts of ¥1,365,871 million ($12,765,150 thousand) and
¥1,083,951 million, respectively, whereby a commitment is set up for each loan customer, and the Company is obligated to advance funds upto a
predetermined amount upon request. At March 31, 2005 and 2004, the balances of unadvanced commitments were ¥549,903 million ($5,139,280 thousand)
and ¥535,216 million, respectively. The loan contract contains provisions that allow the Company to reduce the contract amount of the commitment or refuse
to advance funds to loan customers under certain conditions.

5. INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dolfars
2005 2004 2005
Property for sale ¥169 ¥181 $1,579
6. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Disclosure of cost and fair value of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 is not presented herein, as such information is
permitted to be omitted if disclosed in consolidated financial statements under Japanese GAAP.
7. SHORT-TERIVI BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars

2605 2004 2005
Loans from banks, 0.70% to 0.74% (0.80% to 1.05% at March 31, 2004} ¥10,000 ¥6,500 $ 93,458
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.38% t0 1.48% (1.48% at March 31, 2004) 5,000 2,000 48,729
Total ¥15,000 ¥8,500 $140,187
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Long-term debt gt March 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars
2243 2004 2035

Loans from banks, 0.58% to 3.20%, due serially to 2010

{0.89% to 4.20%, due serially to 2008 at March 31, 2004} ¥ 530,824 ¥ 446,258 $ £,.351,807
Loans from other financial institutions, 1.45% to 3.35%, due serially to 2010

(1.45% to 4.00%, due serially to 2008 at March 31, 2004) 999,789 194,767 1,887,587
Syndicated Loans, 0.79% to 1.94%, due serially to 2011

(0.89% 1o 1.87%, due serially to 2003 at March 31, 2004) 84,3C4 87,603 881,346
Unsecured 2.00% to 2.53% yen straight bonds, due 2004 90,000
Unsecured 0.80% to 2.00% yen straight bonds, due 2005

{0.80% to 2.00%, at March 31, 2004) 80,330 80,000 767,684
Unsecured 1.30% to 3.27% yen straight bonds, due 2006

(1.30% to 3.27% at March 31, 2004) 78,500 78,500 733845
Unsecured 1.86% to 2.51% yen straight bonds, due 2007

{1.66% to 2.51% at March 31, 2004) 43,309 43,000 £91,859
Unsecured 0.54% to 2.48% yen straight bonds, due 2008

(1.07% to 2.48% at March 31, 2004) 58,030 50,000 £78,635
Unsecured 1.01% to 3.28% yen straight bonds, due 2009

(1.98% to 3.28% at March 31, 2004) 53,8¢D 28,000 542,055
Unsecured 1.25% to 3.00% yen straight bonds, due 2010

{1.25% to 3.00% &t March 31, 2004) 30,822 30,000 280,374
Unsecured 1.50% to 1.58% yen straight bonds, due 2011 20,230 185,216
Unsecured 1.20% yen straight bonds, due 2012 10,620 £3,458
Unsecured 1.74% yen straight bonds, due 2013

{1.74% at March 31, 2004) 13,C00 10,000 93.458
Unsecured variable rate Euro-yen straight bonds, due 2006

{1.80% at March 31, 2005, 1.80% at March 31, 2004) 12,530 12,500 116,822
Unsecured 4.45% U.S. dollar straight bonds, due 2010 52,820 686,289
Unsecured 0.86% medium-term notes, due 2005 4,530 4,000 37,383
Unsecured 2.21% medium-term notes, due 2007 7,880 1,000 9,345
Unsecured 3.00% medium-term notes, due 2008 3,079 3,000 28,037
Unsecured 3.50% medium-term notes, due 2015 15,222 15,000 163,187
Other {principally from leasing and factoring companies),

0.79% to 1.90%, due serially to 2010 {0.85% to 2.30%, at March 31, 2004) 79,708 101,601 744,933

Total 1,373,613 1,275,229 92,837,523

Less current portion ’ {6£2,035) (417.815) (£,131,£38)
Long-term debt, less current portion ‘ ¥ 931,549 ¥ 857414 $ 8,705,085
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Milligns of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 ¥ 442,066 $ 4,131,458
2007 363,282 3,395,159
2008 233,164 2,179,103
2008 111,237 1,039,598
2010 146,642 1,370,485
2011 and thereafter 77,224 721,720
Total ¥1,373,615 $12,837,523

At March 31, 2005, the following assets werg pledged as collateral for long-term debt {including current portion of long-term debt):

Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
Loans ¥712,805 $6,661,729
Inventaries 113 1,056
Total ¥712.918 $6,662,785
Related liabilities —
Long-term debt {including current portion of long-term debt) ¥473,070 $4,821,215

The above table includes loans related to securitized loans of ¥344,033 million {$3,215,318 thousand), and related liabilities {long-term debt including
current portion) of ¥134,266 million ($1,254,822 thousand).

Property and equipment of Marutoh KK, the Company's subsidiary, were pledged as collateral for the above liabilities.

In addition, if requested by lending financial institutions, the Company has committed to pledge collateral for loans other than those shown in the above
table. At March 31, 2005, related liabilities for which lending financial institutions can request the Company to pledge collateral consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Mitlions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Long-term debt {including current portion of long-term debt) ¥109,885 $1,026,963

At March 31, 2005, other current assets amounting to ¥4,456 mitlion {$41,645 thousand), were pledged as coltateral for the interest rate swap contracts.

A portion of the Company’s syndicated loans are subject to repayment if the Company fails to meet certain financial criteria, such as those relating to
minimum tangible net worth levels, specified ratios of liabilities to tangible net worth and to equity, spacified asset compositions and minimum recurring
income levels, and operating criteria, such as those relating to bad debt charge—off levels. As of March 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all
of these covenants.
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8. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Japanese Commercial Code {the “Code”).

The Code requires that all shares of common stock are recorded with no par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is required to be
recorded as commaon stock and the remaining net proceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus. The Code permits Japanese
companies, upon approval of the Board of Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without consideration as a stock split. Such issuance of shares
generally does not give rise 10 changes within the shareholders’ accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal ta 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other appropriations of retained
garnings associated with cash outlays applicable to each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve {a component of retainec earnings) until such
reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve that exceeds 25% of
common stock may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the Code permits the transfer of & portion of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Code allows Japanese companies to repurchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
repurchased amount of treasury stock cannot exceed the amount available for future dividends plus the amount of common stock, additional paid-in capital
or legal reserve ta he reduced in the case where such reductian was resolved at a general shareholders” meeting.

in addition to the provision that requires an appropriation for a legal reserve in connection with the cash payment, the Code imposes certain limitations
on the amount of retained earnings available for dividends. The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Codle was ¥430,315 million
($4,027,243 thousand) as of March 31, 2005, based on the amount recorded in the Company’s general books of account.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable. Semiannual interim
dividends may also be paid upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by the Code.

At the Shareholders’ General Meeting held on June 27, 2001, the Company's shareholders approved the stack option plan for the Company's directors
and key employees.

The plan provides for granting options to directors and key employees to purchase the Company's common stock at an exercise price of ¥6,386 per share
during the period from July 1, 2003 to June 30, 2008. The maximum number of shares to be issued upan exercise of the option was 67 thousand shares as of
March 31, 2005.

At the Shareholders’ General Meeting held on June 25, 2004, the Company’s shareholders approved the stock option plan for the Company’s and
subsidiaries’ directors and key employees. The plan provides for granting options to purchase the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of ¥7,774
per share during the period from July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2009. The maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the option was 343 thousand
shares as of March 31, 2005.

The Company made a stock split subseguent to the date of the option grants mentioned above, and the number of shares to b= issued and exercise price
is adjusted based upon a certain formula, as defined.

The Company issues acquired treasury stock upon exercise of the stock options. Pursuant to the revision of the Japanese Commercial Code, the
Company revised its articles of incorporation as the Company could repurchase its common stock as treasury stock by reselution of the Board of Directors.
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INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates of
approximately 40.6% and 41.9% for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On March 31, 2003, a tax reform law concerning enterprise tax was enacted in Japan which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate from 41.9%

to 40.6%, effective for yaars beginning on or after April 1, 2004. The defarred tax assets and liabilities which will realize on or after April 1, 2004 are
measurad at the effective tax rate of 40.6% as at March 31, 2004.
The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and lighilities at March 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2085

Current Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for doubtful loans ¥ 6,732

Enterprise tax payable ¥1,288 1,409 $12,038

Charge-offs for doubtful ioans 3,668 2,518 34,280

Accrued interest on loans 2,163 1,881 20,215

Accrued benuses 968 973 9,047

Other 116 116 1,084
Current deferred tax assets ¥8,203 ¥13,629 $76,664
Non-current Deferred Tax Assets:

Provision for doubtful loans ¥ 550 ¥ B48 $ 5140

Depreciation and amortization 1,636 1,606 15,290

Provision for retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors 491 485 4,589

Other 946 999 8341
Non-current deferred tax assets 3,623 3,748 33,360
Non-current Deferred Tax Liabilities—

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 3,609 2979 33,729
Net non-current deferred tax assets ¥ 14 ¥ 769 § 13

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2004 and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the
accompanying non-consolidated statements of income was as follows:

2004
Normal effective statutory tax rates 418%
Increase in tax rate resulting from:
Additional taxation on undistributed income 53
Other, net (1.4)
Actual effective tax rates 45.8%

As the difference between the normal effective statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the accompanying non-consolidated
statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2005 is not more than 5% of the normal effective statutory tax rate, a reconciliation has not been
disclosed as permitted under Japanese GAAP.
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70. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The balances due from subsidiaries at March 31, 2005 and 2004 and transactions of the Company with subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2005 and
2004 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2605 2004 2005
Advances to subsidiaries ¥298,224 ¥157,087 $2,787,140
Interest income 4,076 3,821 38,083
11. LEASES
The Company leases vehicles, computer equipment, furniture and fixtures, office space and other assets.
Total rental expenses including lease payments under finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were &s follows:
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Total Lease Payments Total Lease Payments
Rental Under Finance Rental Under Finance
Expenses Leases Expenses Leases
Year Ended March 31:
2005 ¥14,016 ¥ 2,565 $1390,991 $23972

2004 13,926 3,986

Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligation under finance leases, depreciation expense, and
interest expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended
March 31, 2005 an¢ 2004 were as follows;

As of March 31, 2005

Miltions of Yen
Machinery Furniture
and and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Acquisition cost ¥163 ¥6,188 ¥6,351
Accumulated depreciation 80 5,118 5,198
Net leased property ¥ 83 ¥1,070 ¥1,153

As of March 31, 2004

Millions of Yen
Machinery Furniture
and and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Acquisition cost ¥259 ¥17 642 ¥17,901
Accumulated depreciation 206 14,132 14,338
Net leased property ¥ 53 ¥ 3510 ¥ 3,563

As of March 31, 2005

Thousands of U.S. Dallars

Machinery Furniture
and and
Equipment Fixtures Total
Acquisition cost $1,523 $57,832 $58,355
Accumulated depreciation 47 47,832 48,579
Net leased property $ 776 $19,000 $10,776

096  AIFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005




Obligations under finance leases:
Thousands of

Millians of Yen U.S. Dollars

2005 2004 2305
Due within one year ¥ 916 ¥7,499 $ 8,561
Due after one year 268 1,102 2,505
Total ¥1,184 ¥3,607 $11,066

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in the accompanying non-consolidated statements of income, computed under a
straight-line method and the interest method were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2005 2004 2005
Depreciation expense ¥2,45% ¥3,820 $22,944
Interest expense 50 104 a67
12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2005, contingent liabilities were ¥43,180 miltion ($403,551 thousand) of guarantees and similar items of bank loans.
13. NETINCOME PER SHARE

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Yen in millions Thousands of shares Yen Dotiars
Net income Weighted average shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2005:
Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders ¥67,175 141,680 ¥474.13 $4.43
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Stock Options 1
Diluted EPS
Net income for computation ¥67,175 141,691 ¥474.69 $4.43
For the year ended March 31, 2004;
Basic EPS
Net income available to comman sharehalders ¥572,980 141,702 ¥373.88

Diluted EPS for the year ended March 31, 2004 is not disclosed because it is anti-dilutive.

AJFUL CORPORATION  Annual Report 2005

097 s




14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. Stock Split
On February 21, 2005, the Board of Directors declared a three for two stock split to shareholders of record an March 31, 2005. As a result, the number of the
issued and outstanding common stock increased by 47,345,000 shares effective May 23, 2005.

b. Appropriations of Retained Earnings
The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31, 2005 were approved at the Sharehalders' General Meeting held on June 24, 2005:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dallars
Year-end cash dividends, ¥30 (30.28) per share ¥2,832 $26,467
Bonuses 1o directcrs and corporate auditors 127 1187

c. Stock option plan
The following stock option plan was approved at the Shareholders’ General Meeting held an June 24, 2005:

The plan provices for granting options to directors and key employees of Company and subsidiaries to purchase up to 400 thousand shares of the
Company's common stock in the period from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2010. The options will be granted to purchase comman stock at the higher of 103% of
the average fair market price for the preceding month of the grant, or the fair market price at the time or grant. The Company plans to grant stack purchase
warrants and issue stock upon exercise of the stock options.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Deloitte. % Shimbashi & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Aiful Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying non-consolidated balance sheets of Aiful Corporation as of
March 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related non-consolidated statements of income, shareholders’
equity for the years then ended, all expressed in Japanese yen. These non-consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these non-consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the non-consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Aiful Corporation as of March 31, 2005 and 2004, and
the results of its operations for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

QOur audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts

and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 3.
Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

R Fucke SohuisTou Shunppsbic & Cs.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU SHIMBASHI & CO.
Kyoto, Japan Osaka, Japan
June 24, 2005 June 24, 2005
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GROUP NETWORK (As of March 31, 2005)

URL (Japanese only)

Business Classification | Eqi

o -~ - Gompanies. .

AIFUL CORPORATION http/iwww.aiful.cojp

http:/iwww.ir-aiful.com

Unsecured loans / -
Home equity lpans /

Small business loans /

Loan guarantees

LIFE Co., Ltd. http://www lifecard.co.jp Credit card shopping / 95.88
Shopping loans /
Unsecured loans / Loan guarantges /

Home equity loans

Small business loans 60.00
(Middle risk) /
Home equity loans

BUSINEXT CORPORATION nttp://www.businext.co.jp

Smali business loans 100.00
(High risk) /
Home equity loans

£ity's Corporation http://www.citys.co.jp
Includes shares owned indirectly through

City's holding campany City Green
Corporation

TRYTO CORPORATION  hup//365157.jp

Unsecured loans 100.00
(High risk) /
Home equity loans

Wide Corporation http://www.wide-net.co.jp Unsecured loans 100.00
{High risk)

TCM. Co. Ltd. http://www.pockeclub.com Unsecured loans 100.00
{High risk]

Passkey Co., Lid. hitp://www.passkey.co.jp Unsecured loans 100.00
{High risk) /
Home equity loans

AsTry Loan http://www.astry-s.co.jp Debt collection 86.00

Services Gorporation (Servicer)

New Frontier http://www.nf-partners.co.jp Venture capital 100.00

Partners Co., Ltd.

Marutoh KK http://www.marutoh.com Real estate business 100.00
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INVESTOR INFORMATION  (As of March 31, 2005)

Corporate Name: AIFUL CORPORATION Number of Shares of
Address of Head 0ffice: 381-1, Takasago-cho, Common Stock:
Gojo-Agaru, Karasuma-Dori, Authorized: 373,500,000 shares

Shimagyo-ku, Kyoto 600-8420, Issued and Outstanding: 142,035,000 shares

Japan
Date of Establishment: April 1967 Number of Shareholders: 4.381
Common Stock: ¥83.317 million Independent Auditars: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Number of Employees: Non Consolidated: 3,184 Shimbashi & Co.
Consolidated: 6,510 Transfer Agent and Begistrar: The Sumitomo Trust & Banking
Co., Ld.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION AND ADDITIONAL COPIES OF h
THIS ANNUAL REPORT, PLEASE CONTACT
Investor Relations Section
. . Tokyo Office  8th-Floor Toho-Hibiya Bldg. {Hibiya Chanter), 1-2-2
Tokyo Stock Exchange: The First Section Yurakucho, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0006 Japan ;
Osaka Securities Exchange: The First Section Phone: +81-3-4503-6100  Facsimile: +81-3-4503-6109 !
Securities Code: 8515 E-mail: ir@aiful.co.jp
o v
e

. TRANSITION OF A STOCK PRICE AND VOLUME OF TRADING (April 1, 2002~March 31, 2005}

{Yen)
| 15,000 —
1 12,500 |-
| Log [e°
‘ T
| 10000 - E:] [:] T D El‘] E‘F (Thousands of
;; Ij shares)
y 7,500 + D — 15,000
5 ] Lot=s
i
I 5,000 - $ D . & D O -+ —10,000
' 2500 |- : I 7"

02/45 6 7 89 10111203/12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10111204/12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10111205/12 3

" Note: On May 23, 2005, each common, par value share held as of March 31, 2005, was split into 1.5 shares according to provisions of Article 218 of the Japanese Commercial Code.

A\ /

4 A
'~ INVESTOR RELATIONS WEBSITE o —

To imprave its disclosure activities, AIFUL maintains an IR section within its website that contains not
only operating results and other statistics, but also the corporate philosophy, management strategy, data
on the consumer finance market and business alliances, and other types of information that go beyend
financial statements.

hitp: //www.ir-aiful.com/english/index.htm] , o | )
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¥ AIFUL CORPORATION
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